
PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust
Form 10-K
March 07, 2011

Use these links to rapidly review the document
 TABLE OF CONTENTS
 INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K
(Mark One)

ý ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

Or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                                 to                                
Commission file number: 001-34416

PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

27-0186273
(IRS Employer

Identification No.)

27001 Agoura Road, Calabasas, California
(Address of principal executive offices)

91301
(Zip Code)

(818) 224-7442
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

         Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Shares of Beneficial Interest, $0.01 Par Value New York Stock Exchange

         Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

         Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes o    No ý

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

1



         Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o    No ý

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý    No o

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes o    No o

         Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. o

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act
(check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer ý Non-accelerated filer
(Do not check if a

smaller reporting company)

Smaller reporting company o

         Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o    No ý

         As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate market value of the registrant's common shares of beneficial interest, $0.01 par value ("common
shares") held by non-affiliates was $262,357,409 based on the closing price as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on that date.

         As of March 3, 2011, there were 27,762,843 common shares of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust outstanding.

Documents Incorporated By Reference

Document Parts Into Which Incorporated
Definitive Proxy Statement for 2011 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders
Part III

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

2



Table of Contents

 PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST
FORM 10-K

December 31, 2010
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 2
PART I. 5
Item 1. Business 5
Item 1A. Risk Factors 15
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 43
Item 2. Properties 43
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 43
Item 4 Reserved 43
PART II. 44
Item 5 Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 44
Item 6 Selected Financial Data 46
Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 47
Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 73
Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 73
Item 9 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 73
Item 9A(T) Controls and Procedures 73
Item 9B Other Information 76
PART III. 77
Item 10 Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 77
Item 11 Executive Compensation 77
Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 77
Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 77
Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services 77
PART IV. 78
Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 78

Signatures
1

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

3



Table of Contents

 SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

        This Annual Report on Form 10-K ("Report") contains certain forward-looking statements that are subject to various risks and
uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are generally identifiable by use of forward-looking terminology such as "may," "will," "should,"
"potential," "intend," "expect," "seek," "anticipate," "estimate," "approximately," "believe," "could," "project," "predict," "continue," "plan" or
other similar words or expressions.

        Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions, discuss future expectations, describe future plans and strategies, contain
financial and operating projections or state other forward-looking information. Examples of forward-looking statements include the following:

�
projections of our revenues, income, earnings per share, capital structure or other financial items;

�
descriptions of our plans or objectives for future operations, products or services;

�
forecasts of our future economic performance, interest rates, profit margins and our share of future markets; and

�
descriptions of assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing expectations regarding the timing of generating
any revenues.

        Our ability to predict results or the actual effect of future events, actions, plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Although we believe
that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, our actual results and performance
could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. There are a number of factors, many of which are beyond our
control, that could cause actual results to differ significantly from management's expectations. Some of these factors are discussed below.

        You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement and should consider the following uncertainties and risk factors, as
well as the risks and uncertainties discussed elsewhere in this Report and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

        Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those anticipated include, but are not limited to:

�
changes in our investment objectives or investment or operational strategies, including any new lines of business or new
products and services that may subject us to additional risks;

�
volatility in our industry, interest rates and spreads, the debt or equity markets, the general economy or the residential
finance and real estate markets specifically, whether the result of market events or otherwise;

�
events or circumstances which undermine confidence in the financial markets or otherwise have a broad impact on financial
markets, such as the sudden instability or collapse of large depository institutions or other significant corporations, terrorist
attacks, natural or man-made disasters, or threatened or actual armed conflicts;

�
changes in general business, economic, market, employment and political conditions, or in consumer confidence and
spending habits from those expected;

�
continued declines in residential real estate and significant changes in U.S. housing prices and/or activity in the U.S. housing
market;

�
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the availability of, and level of competition for, attractive risk-adjusted investment opportunities in residential mortgage
loans and mortgage-related assets that satisfy our investment objectives;

�
our success in winning bids to acquire loans;
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�
the concentration of credit risks to which we are exposed;

�
the degree and nature of our competition;

�
changes in personnel and lack of availability of qualified personnel;

�
our dependence on our manager, PNMAC Capital Management, LLC, or PCM, potential conflicts of interest with PCM and
its affiliated entities, and the performance of such entities;

�
the availability, terms and deployment of short-term and long-term capital;

�
the adequacy of our cash reserves and working capital;

�
our ability to match the interest rates and maturities of our assets with our financing;

�
the timing and amount of cash flows, if any, from our investments;

�
unanticipated increases in financing and other costs, including a rise in interest rates;

�
the performance, financial condition and liquidity of borrowers;

�
incomplete or inaccurate information or documentation provided by customers or counterparties, or adverse changes in the
financial condition of our customers and counterparties;

�
the quality and enforceability of the collateral documentation evidencing our ownership and rights in the assets in which we
invest;

�
increased rates of delinquency, default and/or decreased recovery rates on our investments;

�
our ability to foreclose on our investments in a timely manner or at all;

�
increased prepayments of the mortgages and other loans underlying our MBS and other investments;

�
the degree to which our hedging strategies may or may not protect us from interest rate volatility;

�
the effect of the accuracy of or changes in the estimates we make about uncertainties and contingencies when measuring and
reporting upon our financial condition and results of operations;

�

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

6



our failure to maintain appropriate internal controls over financial reporting;

�
our ability to obtain and/or maintain licenses and other approvals in those jurisdictions where required to conduct our
business;

�
our ability to comply with various federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern our business;

�
developments in the secondary markets for our mortgage loan products;

�
legislative and regulatory changes that impact the mortgage loan industry or housing market;

�
changes in regulations or the occurrence of other events that impact the business, operations or prospects of
government-sponsored entities such as Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac;

�
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and any other legislative and regulatory changes that
impact the business, operations or governance of publicly-traded companies;

�
changes in government support of homeownership;

3

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

7



Table of Contents

�
changes in governmental regulations, accounting treatment, tax rates and similar matters (including changes to laws
governing the taxation of real estate investment trusts, or REITs, or the exclusions from registration as an investment
company);

�
limitations imposed on our business and our ability to satisfy complex rules for us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes and qualify for an exclusion from the Investment Company Act of 1940 and the ability of certain of our
subsidiaries to qualify as REITs and certain of our subsidiaries to qualify as taxable REIT subsidiaries for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, and our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to operate effectively within the limitations imposed
by these rules;

�
estimates relating to our ability to make distributions to our shareholders in the future;

�
the effect of public opinion on our reputation; and

�
the occurrence of natural disasters or other events or circumstances that could impact our operations.

        Other factors that could also cause results to differ from our expectations may not be described in this Report or any other document. Each
of these factors could by itself, or together with one or more other factors, adversely affect our business, results of operations and/or financial
condition.

        Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect the impact of circumstances or events that arise after the date the forward-looking statement was made.

4
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 PART I

 Item 1.    Business

The following description of our business should be read in conjunction with the information included elsewhere in this Report for the year
ended December 31, 2010. This description contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ
significantly from the projections and results discussed in the forward-looking statements due to the factors described under the caption "Risk
Factors" and elsewhere in this Report. References in this Report to "we," "our," "us," "PMT," or the "Company" refer to PennyMac Mortgage
Investment Trust and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.

Our Company

        We are a specialty finance company that invests primarily in residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets. We were organized in
Maryland on May 18, 2009, and began operations on August 4, 2009. We are managed by PNMAC Capital Management, LLC ("PCM" or our
"Manager"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Private National Mortgage Acceptance Company, LLC ("PNMAC" or "PennyMac") and a Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC")-registered investment adviser that specializes in, and focuses on, residential mortgage assets. Most of the
loans we hold in our investment portfolio are serviced on our behalf by another wholly-owned PennyMac subsidiary, PennyMac Loan
Services, LLC ("PLS" or our "Servicer").

        We conduct substantially all of our operations, and make substantially all of our investments, through PennyMac Operating
Partnership, L.P., which we refer to as our operating partnership, and its subsidiaries. A wholly-owned subsidiary of ours is the sole general
partner, and we are the sole limited partner, of our operating partnership.

        Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns to our investors over the long-term, primarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. Our targeted investments are in the mortgage market. We are presently focused on investing in the historically large
volume of distressed mortgage loans currently outstanding and serving as a conduit for the acquisition, pooling and sale or securitization of
newly originated mortgage loans. The PennyMac organization was designed specifically to address the opportunities created in the markets for
residential mortgage assets.

        Our primary focus is on investing in distressed residential mortgage loans. We invest in distressed mortgage loans at discounts to their
unpaid principal balances. We then seek to maximize the value of the mortgage loans that we acquire based on whether the acquired loans are
performing or nonperforming. The objective for performing loans is value enhancement through effective "high touch" servicing, which is based
on significant levels of borrower outreach and contact, and the ability to implement long-term, sustainable loan modification and restructuring
programs that keep borrowers in their homes. For both performing and nonperforming loans we use loan modification programs (such as the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's Home Affordability Modification Program, or "HAMP"), special servicing and other
initiatives focused on keeping borrowers in their homes. We expect these methods to increase our portfolio of performing loans, reduce default
rates and enhance the value of loans in our portfolio. Once we have improved the credit quality of a loan, we intend to monetize the enhanced
value through various disposition strategies. We believe that by using these methods, we can provide borrowers with long-term solutions that
address their willingness and ability to pay their mortgage loans. Alternatively, for nonperforming loans and real estate assets, the ability to
effect property resolution in a timely, orderly and economically efficient manner is essential to generating attractive returns.

        Our Manager specializes in acquiring distressed residential mortgage assets that are sold by financial institutions including banks, thrifts,
and non-bank mortgage lenders. Since late 2009, our
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Manager has seen substantial volumes of nonperforming residential mortgage loans available for purchase from certain U.S. banks at significant
discounts to their unpaid principal balances. Our Manager believes that there are several reasons these banks are motivated to sell nonperforming
loans, including the following: the ability to release capital tied to nonperforming loans and generate higher returns by investing in other assets;
the ability to relieve strain on their operations required to manage nonperforming loans and real estate acquired in settlement of loans; the ability
to reduce the percentages of their assets that are nonperforming, which is a key measure monitored by the banks' regulators, investors, and other
stakeholders; and the ability for these banks to manage perceptions of the continued drag on their overall performance from legacy distressed
assets through controlled sales of nonperforming assets.

        We believe that there is a need for mortgage originators, particularly among smaller lenders, to find outlets for government and
government-sponsored entity ("GSE") eligible loans and jumbo loans, or to achieve liquidity through other means. A jumbo loan is a loan in an
amount that exceeds the maximum loan amount for eligible loans under GSE guidelines. We believe that PCM can utilize its expertise and
relationships to capitalize on these opportunities on our behalf. These opportunities include the purchase from smaller mortgage lenders of newly
originated mortgage loans that are eligible for (a) sale to participating GSEs such as the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae")
and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac"), and the (b) securitization through Government National Mortgage
Association ("Ginnie Mae") (Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae are each referred to as an "Agency" and, collectively, as the
"Agencies"). The opportunities also include the purchase and sale or securitization of jumbo conventional loans underwritten to GSE guidelines.
Our Manager, PCM, has built a conduit operation to enable us to pursue these opportunities.

        We have elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") for U.S. federal income tax purposes and we intend to maintain our
exclusion from regulation under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Company Act"). Therefore, we are required
to invest a substantial majority of our assets in loans secured by real estate and in real estate related assets. Subject to maintaining our REIT
qualification and our Investment Company Act exclusion, we do not have any limitations on the amounts we may invest in any of our targeted
asset classes.

        As our Manager, PCM conducts activities including developing our investment strategies, sourcing and acquiring mortgage loans and
mortgage-related assets for our investment portfolio, and developing the appropriate approach to be taken by PLS for each loan as it performs its
specialty servicing. As our loan servicer, PLS services the mortgage loans we acquire, performs traditional servicing and workout activities, and
executes the portfolio strategies developed by PCM. As part of its execution of PCM's portfolio strategy, PLS may modify or refinance loans in
our investment portfolio and originate loans to finance the sale of real estate we acquire in settlement of our loans.

        Our internet address is www.pennymacmortgageinvestmenttrust.com. We make available free of charge, on or through the investor
relations section of our web site, annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), as
well as proxy statements, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

Our Manager and Our Servicer

        We are externally managed and advised by PCM pursuant to a management agreement. PCM was established in March 2008 and is an
SEC-registered investment adviser that specializes in, and focuses on, residential mortgage loans. PCM also serves as the investment manager to
two private fund vehicles, which we refer to as the PennyMac funds, with investment objectives and policies relating to
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distressed mortgage loans that are substantially similar to ours. PCM managed assets totaling approximately $1.2 billion, including our assets,
which totaled $589.1 million, as of December 31, 2010.

        PCM is responsible for administering our business activities and day-to-day operations. Pursuant to the terms of the management
agreement, PCM provides us with our senior management team, including our officers, along with appropriate support personnel. PCM is
subject to the supervision and oversight of our board of trustees and has the functions and authority specified in the management agreement.

        We also have a loan servicing agreement with PLS, pursuant to which PLS provides primary servicing and special servicing for our
portfolio of residential mortgage loans. PLS's loan servicing activities include collecting principal, interest and escrow account payments, if any,
with respect to mortgage loans, as well as managing loss mitigation, which may include, among other things, collection activities, loan workouts,
modifications and refinancings, foreclosures, short sales, sales of real estate acquired in settlement of loans and financings to facilitate such
sales. Servicing fee rates are based on the risk characteristics of the mortgage loans serviced and total servicing compensation is established at
levels that management believes are competitive with those charged by other specialty servicers.

        The workout-oriented servicing platform of PLS includes significant borrower contacts, which we refer to as "high touch," and is designed
to enable us to effectively implement programs that address borrower needs and maximize the value of our portfolio. PLS was established in
February 2008 and also provides primary servicing and special servicing to the PennyMac funds and entities in which they have invested as well
as third parties. PLS acted as the servicer for loans with an aggregate unpaid principal balance of approximately $5.4 billion as of December 31,
2010.

        Our Manager's senior management team has extensive experience in the residential mortgage industry and expertise across each of the
critical capabilities that we believe is required to successfully acquire and manage both performing and nonperforming mortgage loans,
including sourcing, valuation, due diligence, portfolio strategy, servicing (including modification and refinance fulfillment of outstanding loans
and acquisition and liquidation of properties securing settled mortgage loans) and secondary marketing of restructured and re-performing loans.
Our senior management team is supported by a dedicated team of employees at PLS and PCM.

        We have no employees, and we do not pay our officers any cash compensation. Rather, under the management agreement, we pay PCM
management fees quarterly in arrears, which include a "base" component and an "incentive" component. We pay PLS fees for servicing our
loans, and we reimburse PCM and its affiliates for certain direct costs incurred on our behalf and for certain overhead expenses.

        Our management fees are calculated on a quarterly basis as follows:

�
The base management fee is calculated at the annual rate of 1.5% of shareholders' equity, which is defined as follows for
purposes of calculating the base management fee:

�
the sum of the net proceeds from any issuances of our equity securities since inception (weighted for the time
outstanding during the measurement period); plus

�
our retained earnings at the end of the quarter (without taking into account any non-cash equity compensation
expense incurred in current or prior periods); less

�
any amount we pay for repurchases of our common shares (weighted for the time held during the measurement
period); excluding

�
any unrealized gains, losses or other non-cash items that have impacted our shareholders' equity as reported in our
financial statements, regardless of whether those items are included in other comprehensive income or loss or net
income; and excluding
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�
one-time events pursuant to changes in accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. ("U.S. GAAP") and
certain other non-cash charges after discussions between PCM and our independent trustees and approval by a
majority of our independent trustees.

�
The performance incentive fee is calculated at the rate of 20% per year of the amount by which "core earnings," on a rolling
four-quarter basis and before the incentive fee, exceeds an 8% "hurdle rate."

�
"Core earnings," for purposes of determining the amount of the performance incentive fee, is defined as
U.S. GAAP net income (loss) adjusted to exclude non-cash equity compensation expense, unrealized gains and
losses or other non-cash items recognized during the period, any conditional payment amounts relating to our
initial public offering ("IPO") paid to PCM and the underwriters of our IPO, and any one-time events pursuant to
changes in U.S. GAAP and certain other non-cash charges after discussions between PCM and our independent
trustees and approval by a majority of our independent trustees.

�
The "hurdle rate" is calculated as the product of (1) the weighted average of the issue price per share of all of our
public offerings multiplied by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, restricted share units) in the four-quarter period and (2) 8%.

Investment Strategy

        Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted returns to our investors over the long-term, primarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We seek to achieve this objective primarily by investing in mortgage loans, a substantial portion of which may be
distressed and acquired at discounts to their unpaid principal balances.

        We seek to maximize the value of the mortgage loans that we acquire through proprietary loan modification programs, special servicing
and other initiatives focused on keeping borrowers in their homes. Where this is not possible, such as in the case of many nonperforming
mortgage loans, we seek to effect property resolution in a timely, orderly and economically efficient manner. We also invest in mortgage-related
securities and other mortgage-related, real estate and financial assets. It is anticipated that a substantial portion of our investments will not be
rated by any rating agency.

        The pools of loans that we acquire consist primarily of U.S. residential mortgage loans. These loans may be performing or nonperforming
and of varying credit quality, including subprime, Alt-A and prime. PCM, in its sole discretion, and in accordance with its policies and
procedures, determines the composition of our portfolio of loans, including its size, loan types and credit quality.

        We rely on PCM's expertise in identifying pools of distressed mortgage loans and other assets for acquisition. PCM's sourcing and
evaluation processes for potential acquisitions of residential mortgage loans and for mortgage-related assets are substantially similar. PCM
makes investment decisions based on various factors, including expected cash yield, relative value, risk-adjusted returns, current and projected
credit fundamentals, current and projected macroeconomic considerations, current and projected supply and demand, market risk, portfolio
diversification, liquidity and availability and terms of financing, as well as maintaining our REIT qualification and our exclusion from
registration under the Investment Company Act. The evaluation process with respect to residential mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS") and
other mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") also includes relative value analyses based on yield, credit rating, average life, effective duration,
option-adjusted spreads, prepayment assumptions and credit expectations. Investment decisions with regard to the acquisition or disposition of
any of our targeted assets are made by PCM's investment committee. Our assets are not subject to any geographic diversification or
concentration limitations except that we are concentrated in
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residential mortgage-related investments. We have established no limitations on the maturity, duration or credit rating of our assets.

        PCM and its affiliates evaluate new opportunities based on their relative expected returns compared to comparable assets held in our
portfolio. We re-evaluate our investment strategy as market conditions change with a view toward maximizing the returns from our investment
portfolio and identifying dislocations and opportunities in the mortgage market.

Targeted Asset Classes

        We invest primarily in residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets. Based on current market conditions, our primary focus
initially is on distressed mortgage loans. Our targeted asset classes and the principal investments we expect to make in each class are as follows:

Asset class Principal investments
Residential Mortgage Loans �       Newly originated mortgage loans

�       Seasoned performing and nonperforming residential mortgage loans
Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities �       Non-U.S. government Agency RMBS, including investment-grade, non-investment

grade classes and non-rated classes
�       U.S. government Agency RMBS

Other assets and other MBS �       Mortgage servicing rights
�       Mortgage-related derivatives, including, but not limited to, credit default swaps,
options, futures and derivatives on MBS
�       Hedging instruments that include U.S. Treasury securities, options and futures
�       Commercial mortgage-backed securities ("CMBS")
�       Real estate assets
�       Policies, instruments and agreements related to mortgage insurance or reinsurance risk

        Over time, our targeted asset classes may change as a result of changes in the opportunities that are available in the market, among other
factors. We may not invest in certain of the investments described above if we believe those types of investments will not provide us with
attractive opportunities or if we believe other types of our targeted assets provide us with better opportunities.

Our Portfolio

        During the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2010, we purchased $184.2 million of MBS,
$443.3 million of mortgage loans and $1.2 million of real estate acquired in settlement of loans. During the period from December 31, 2010
through the date of this Report, PCM has committed to purchases of loans on our behalf at purchase prices totaling approximately
$297.4 million. Purchases in the amount of $244.6 have been completed; two pending transactions are subject to continuing due diligence and
customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance that the committed amounts will ultimately be acquired or that the transactions will
be completed at all.
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        Following is a summary of our acquisitions of mortgage investments for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Mortgage-backed
securities $ 91,141 $ 93,049
Distressed mortgage
loans:(1)(2)(3)

Performing 33,745 26,046
Nonperforming 383,466 �

417,211 26,046

Real estate acquired in
settlement of loans 1,238 �

$ 509,590 $ 119,095

(1)
Performance status as of the date of acquisition.

(2)
$407.0 million of our distressed asset purchases during the year ended December 31, 2010 and subsequent purchases through the date
of this Report totaling $244.6 million were acquired from one large financial institution. The Company also has a pending purchase in
the amount of $34.0 million from that institution as of the date of this Report. The pending transaction is subject to continuing due
diligence and customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance that the committed amount will ultimately be acquired or
that the transaction will be completed at all.

(3)
Amount excludes $43.8 million of purchases of loans for immediate resale.

        Our portfolio of mortgage investments were as follows as of the dates presented:

December 31,

2010 2009
(in thousands)

Correspondent lending loans $ 3,966 $ �
Mortgage-backed securities 119,872 83,771
Distressed mortgage loans:

Performing 86,242 26,046
Nonperforming 278,008 �

364,250 26,046

Real estate acquired in
settlement of loans 29,685 �

$ 517,773 $ 109,817

        During the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) through December 31, 2010, PCM has encountered a relatively
higher volume of available nonperforming mortgage loan portfolios and more attractive risk-adjusted trading levels for the pools that have been
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marketed. Therefore, our acquisitions have been primarily comprised of nonperforming loans rather than distressed performing loans. PCM has
worked to expand our sources of assets to position us for when the mortgage market converges to more active origination and securitization
levels and delinquency and foreclosure levels reduce to closer to historical levels, including:

�
developing a mortgage conduit whereby we will acquire newly originated loans from small mortgage lenders, sell the loans
to an Agency or other third party or otherwise pool those loans
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into MBS, sell the resulting securities into the MBS markets and invest in the mortgage servicing rights ("MSRs") and
certain of the securities created in the sale or securitization transactions; and

�
pursuing investments in MSRs from liquidating and other entities. MSRs reflect the value of the future stream of expected
cash flows from the contractual rights to service a given pool of mortgage loans. We believe investments in MSRs would
allow us to capture attractive current returns by utilizing the capabilities and efficiencies of PLS.

        Our primary source of income during the year ended December 31, 2010 was income from our investments in mortgage loans�primarily
resulting from payoffs of loans in our portfolio and appreciation in fair value of our nonperforming loans�supplemented by interest income on our
performing loans and, to a lesser extent, interest income from our portfolio of MBS. During the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of
operations) to December 31, 2009, our primary source of income was interest on MBS, supplemented by interest on our temporary investment in
a money market mutual fund.

Our Financing and Hedging Strategy

        As we have fully invested the proceeds of our initial public and concurrent offerings, we have pursued growth of our investment portfolio
by using additional forms of financing. We have made borrowings in the form of sales of securities under agreements to repurchase, lines of
credit secured by our nonperforming assets, and a line of credit to finance loans purchased through our correspondent lending activities. We use
borrowings to finance our investments and not to speculate on changes in interest rates.

        The transactions relating to securities sold under agreements to repurchase mature before March 31, 2011 and provide for sale to major
financial institution counterparties of MBS in our investment portfolios at advance rates based on the estimated fair value of the securities sold.
The agreements provide for repurchase by us of the securities at terms of either three weeks or three months, depending on the facility under
which the securities are sold. All transactions maturing before the date of this Report have been refinanced by renewing the agreements at
maturity.

        During 2010, the Company entered into two master repurchase agreements with two money center banks totaling $225 million. These
agreements are structured to finance investments in distressed mortgage assets, including nonperforming whole loans and real estate acquired in
the settlement of loans. The Company's objective is to use these facilities to finance the aggregation of nonperforming loan investments pending
sale, securitization or other structured financing or liquidation. After amending one of these facilities on February 25, 2011, the aggregate
principal amount committed for borrowing under these two facilities is $350 million.

        During 2010, the Company also entered into a $75 million master repurchase agreement to fund newly originated prime mortgage loans
purchased from correspondent lenders through our conduit.

        Our borrowings are made under agreements that include various covenants, including the maintenance of specified levels of cash, adjusted
tangible net worth and overall leverage limits. Our ability to borrow under these facilities is limited by the amount of qualifying assets that we
hold and that are eligible to be pledged to secure such borrowings.

        We are not otherwise required to maintain any specific debt-to-equity ratio, and we believe the appropriate leverage for the particular assets
we finance depends on, among other things, the credit quality and risk of such assets. Our declaration of trust and bylaws do not limit the amount
of indebtedness we can incur, and our board of trustees has discretion to deviate from or change our financing strategy at any time.
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        Subject to maintaining our qualification as a REIT and exclusion from registration under the Investment Company Act, we may hedge the
interest rate risk associated with the financing of our portfolio and not for speculative purposes.

Investment Policies

        Our board of trustees has adopted the policies set forth below for our investments and borrowings. PCM will review our compliance with
the investment policies regularly and will report periodically to our board of trustees regarding such compliance.

�
No investment shall be made that would cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

�
No investment shall be made that would cause us to be regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company
Act; and

�
With the exception of real estate and housing, no single industry shall represent greater than 20% of the investments or
aggregate risk exposure in our portfolio.

        These investment policies may be changed by a majority of our board of trustees without the approval of, or prior notice to, our
shareholders.

Investment Allocation Policy

        Investment opportunities in pools of mortgage loans that are consistent with our investment objectives, on the one hand, and the investment
objectives of the PennyMac funds and other future entities or accounts managed by PCM, on the other hand, are allocated among us and the
PennyMac funds and the other entities or accounts generally pro rata. This is based upon relative amounts of investment capital (including
undrawn capital commitments) available for new investments by us, the PennyMac funds and any other relevant entities or accounts, or by
assigning opportunities among the relevant entities such that investments assigned among us, such funds, entities or accounts are fair and
equitable over time; provided that PCM, in its sole discretion, may allocate investment opportunities in any other manner that it deems to be fair
and equitable.

        In the case of the allocation of investment opportunities, PCM considers a number of factors. These factors include:

�
investment objectives or strategies for particular entities or accounts;

�
tax considerations of an entity or account;

�
risk or investment concentration parameters for an entity or account;

�
supply or demand for an investment at a given price level;

�
size of available investment;

�
cash availability and liquidity requirements for an entity or account;

�
minimum investment size of an entity or account;

�
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relative size or "buying power" of an entity or account;

�
regulatory considerations, including the impact on an entity's status under the Investment Company Act, and, in our case, our
REIT status; and

�
such other factors as may be relevant to a particular transaction.

        In the case of pro rata purchases of pools of loans where the pool is allocated among us and other entities or accounts, PCM, at the time of
purchase, seeks to allocate the individual mortgage loans in
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the pools among us and the other entities or accounts such that the overall allocation of acquired mortgage loans in the pools will target
reasonable symmetry with reference to, among other factors, the following:

�
unpaid principal balances;

�
delinquency status;

�
purchase price;

�
lien position;

�
expected cash flows;

�
geography; and

�
such other factors as may be relevant to a particular transaction.

        As the investment programs of the various entities and accounts managed by PCM change and develop over time, additional issues and
considerations may affect PCM's and our allocation policy and PCM's and our expectations with respect to the allocation of investment
opportunities among the various entities and accounts managed by PCM. Notwithstanding PCM's intention to effect fair and equitable
allocations of investment opportunities, we expect that our performance will differ from the performance of the PennyMac funds and any other
PennyMac-managed entity or account for many reasons, including differences in the legal or regulatory characteristics, or tax classification, of
the entities or accounts or due to differing fee structures or the idiosyncratic differences in the outcome of individual mortgage loans.

        We have not adopted any policy that would allow us to, or prohibit us from, buying or otherwise obtaining assets from the PennyMac funds
or selling or transferring any assets to the PennyMac funds.

        We have not adopted a policy that expressly prohibits our trustees, officers, shareholders or affiliates from having a direct or indirect
financial interest in any investment to be acquired or disposed of by us or in any transaction to which we are a party or have an interest. Nor do
we have a policy that expressly prohibits any such persons from engaging for their own account in business activities of the types conducted by
us. However, our code of business conduct and ethics contains a conflicts of interest policy that prohibits our trustees, officers and employees, as
well as employees of PCM who provide services to us, from engaging in any transaction that involves an actual or apparent conflict of interest
with us without the appropriate approval. We also have written policies and procedures for the review and approval of related party transactions.

Operating and Regulatory Structure

REIT Qualification

        We have elected to be treated as a REIT under Sections 856 through 859 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Internal Revenue
Code") beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2009. Our qualification as a REIT depends upon our ability to meet on a continuing
basis, through actual investment and operating results, various complex requirements under the Internal Revenue Code relating to, among other
things, the sources of our gross income, the composition and values of our assets, our distribution levels and the diversity of ownership of our
shares. We believe that we are organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Internal
Revenue Code, and that our manner of operation enables us to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT.

        As a REIT, we generally are not subject to U.S. federal income tax on our REIT taxable income we distribute currently to our shareholders.
If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and do
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not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates and may be precluded
from qualifying as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable years following the year during which we lost our REIT qualification. Accordingly,
our failure to qualify as a REIT could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and amounts available for distribution to our
shareholders.

        Even though we have elected to be taxed as a REIT, we are subject to some U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our income or property. A
portion of our business is conducted through, and a portion of our income is earned in, our taxable REIT subsidiary ("TRS") that is subject to
corporate income taxation. In general, a TRS of ours may hold assets and engage in activities that we cannot hold or engage in directly and
generally may engage in any real estate or non-real estate related business. A TRS is subject to U.S. federal, state and local corporate income
taxes. To maintain our REIT election, at the end of each quarter no more than 25% of the value of a REIT's assets may consist of stock or
securities of one or more TRSs.

        If our TRS generates net income, our TRS can declare dividends to us, which will be included in our taxable income and necessitate a
distribution to our shareholders. Conversely, if we retain earnings at the TRS level, no distribution is required and we can increase shareholders'
equity of the consolidated entity. As discussed in Section 1A of this Report entitled Risk Factors, the combination of the requirement to maintain
no more than 25% of our assets in the TRS coupled with the effect of TRS dividends on our allowable income tests creates compliance
complexities for us in the maintenance of our qualified REIT status.

        The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifying dividends to its shareholders is computed using our taxable income as opposed to
net income reported on our financial statements. Taxable income, generally, differs from net income reported on our financial statements
because the determination of taxable income is based on tax laws and regulations and not financial accounting principles.

Licensing

        We and PLS are required to be licensed to conduct business in certain jurisdictions. PLS is licensed, or is taking steps to become licensed,
in those jurisdictions, and for those activities, where it believes it is cost effective and appropriate to become licensed. Through our wholly
owned subsidiaries, we are also licensed, or are taking steps to become licensed, in those jurisdictions, and for those activities, where we believe
it is cost effective and appropriate to become licensed. In jurisdictions in which neither we nor PLS is licensed, we do not conduct activity for
which a license is required. Our failure or the failure by PLS to obtain any necessary licenses promptly, comply with applicable licensing laws or
satisfy the various requirements or to maintain them over time could materially and adversely impact our business.

Competition

        We intend to achieve our investment objective largely by investing in mortgage loans, a substantial portion of which may be distressed and
acquired at discounts to their unpaid principal balances. In acquiring mortgage assets, we compete with other mortgage REITs, specialty finance
companies, private funds, thrifts, banks, mortgage bankers, insurance companies, mutual funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms,
governmental bodies and other entities. A number of these competitors may also be focused on acquiring distressed mortgage loans, and
therefore may increase competition for the available supply of mortgage assets suitable for purchase. Many of our competitors are significantly
larger than we are and have stronger balance sheets and greater access to capital and other resources than we have and may have other
advantages over us. Such advantages include the ability to obtain lower-cost financing, such as deposits and operational efficiencies arising from
their larger size. Some
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of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments and may not be subject to the operating restraints associated
with REIT tax compliance or maintenance of an exclusion from the Investment Company Act, which could allow them to consider a wider
variety of investments and funding strategies and to establish more relationships than we can.

        Current market conditions will likely attract more competitors, which would increase the competition for assets and sources of financing.
Increased competition for assets may result in our accepting lower returns for acquisitions of residential mortgage loans and other assets or
adversely influence our ability to "win" our bids for such assets. An increase in the competition for sources of funding could adversely affect the
availability and terms of financing, and thereby adversely affect the market price of our common shares.

        In the face of this competition, we have access to PCM's professionals and their industry expertise, which may provide us with a
competitive advantage and help us assess investment risks and determine appropriate pricing for certain potential investments. We expect these
relationships to enable us to compete more effectively for attractive investment opportunities. Furthermore, we believe that our access to PLS's
special servicing expertise helps us to maximize the value of our residential mortgage loans and provides us with a competitive advantage over
other companies with a similar focus. We believe that current market conditions may have adversely affected the financial condition and
operations of certain owners of mortgage assets. Thus, not having a legacy portfolio may also enable us to compete more effectively for
attractive investment opportunities. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to achieve our business goals or expectations due to the
competitive and other risks that we face.

Staffing

        We are managed by PCM pursuant to a management agreement. PLS provides servicing and special servicing for our portfolio of
residential mortgage loans pursuant to a loan servicing agreement. All of our officers are employees of PCM or its affiliates. We have no
employees. As of December 31, 2010, PennyMac had 232 employees. See Our Manager and Our Servicer.

 Item 1A.    Risk Factors

 Risks Associated with Our Management and Relationship with Our Manager and Its Affiliates

We are dependent upon PCM, PLS and their resources and may not find suitable replacements if our management agreement with PCM is
terminated and/or our loan servicing agreement with PLS is terminated.

        In accordance with our management agreement, we are externally advised and managed by PCM. We have no employees, and all of our
officers are also employees of PCM or its affiliates. Among other matters, PCM supplies us with our senior management team, makes all or
substantially all of our investment, financing and risk management decisions, and has significant discretion as to the implementation of our
operating policies and strategies. As a result, we are completely reliant upon, and our success depends exclusively on, PCM's investment
decisions, the advice of PCM's employees, the use of PCM's vendors and other resources, and the manner and extent to which PCM selects its
vendors and allocates those resources to manage our business. No assurance can be given that PCM's strategies will be successful, that it will
conduct complete and accurate due diligence or provide sound advice, or that it will act in our best interests with respect to the allocation of its
resources to our business. Its failure to do any of the above, conduct its business in accordance with applicable laws and regulations or hold all
licenses or registrations necessary to conduct its business as currently operated would materially and adversely affect our ability to continue to
execute our business plan. In addition, the initial term of our management agreement only extends until August 4, 2012 (subject to annual
automatic renewals for one-year terms), and it may be terminated earlier under certain circumstances.
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If our management agreement is terminated and a suitable replacement is not secured in a timely manner, it would materially and adversely
affect our ability to execute our business plan.

        Under our loan servicing agreement with PLS, PLS provides primary servicing and special servicing for our portfolio of residential
mortgage loans for an initial term through August 4, 2012. We rely on PLS to provide these services for our portfolio and have no in-house
capability to handle these services independently of PLS. The costs of these services increase our operating costs and may adversely affect our
net income. The term of our loan servicing agreement is identical to the term of our management agreement, and is subject to early termination
in the event our management agreement is terminated for any reason. If our loan servicing agreement is terminated, we will have to obtain the
loan servicing from another servicer. We may not be able to replace these services in a timely manner or on favorable terms, or at all.

PennyMac, the parent company of PCM and PLS, is undergoing significant growth and its development and integration of new operations
may not be effective.

        PennyMac's significant growth since it commenced operations has caused significant demands on its operational, accounting and legal
infrastructure, and increased expenses. The ability of PCM and PLS to provide us with the services we require to be successful depends, among
other things, on the ability of PennyMac, including PCM and PLS, to maintain an operating platform and management system sufficient to
address its growth. This may require PennyMac to incur significant additional expenses and to commit additional senior management and
operational resources. There can be no assurance that PennyMac will be able to effectively integrate its expanding operations or that PennyMac
will continue to grow successfully. PennyMac's failure to do so could adversely affect the ability of PCM and PLS to manage us and service our
mortgage loan portfolio, respectively, which would materially and adversely affect us.

Our management agreement and our loan servicing agreement were not negotiated on an arm's length basis and the terms may not be as
favorable to us as they would be if those agreements were negotiated with unaffiliated third parties.

        Our management agreement and our loan servicing agreement were each negotiated between related parties, and we did not have the
benefit of arm's length negotiations of the type normally conducted with an unaffiliated third party and the terms, including the fees payable to
PCM and PLS, as the case may be, may not be as favorable to us as they would be if those agreements were negotiated with unaffiliated third
parties. We may also choose not to enforce, or to enforce less vigorously, certain of our rights under our management agreement or our loan
servicing agreement in an effort to maintain our ongoing relationship with PCM or PLS, as the case may be.

The management fee structure could cause disincentive and/or create greater investment risk.

        Pursuant to our management agreement, PCM is entitled to receive a base management fee that is based on our shareholders' equity (as
defined in our management agreement) at the end of each quarter. As a result, significant base management fees may be payable to PCM for a
given quarter despite the fact that we experience a net loss during that quarter. In fact, PCM received its base management fees for each of our
first two operating periods even though we reported a net loss for each of those periods. PCM's right to non-performance-based compensation
may not provide sufficient incentive to PCM to devote its time and effort to source and maximize risk-adjusted returns on our investment
portfolio, which could, in turn, adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our shareholders and the market price of our common shares.

        Conversely, PCM is also entitled to receive incentive compensation under our management agreement based on our performance in each
quarter. In evaluating investments and other management
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strategies, the opportunity to earn incentive compensation based on our core earnings (as defined in our management agreement) may lead PCM
to place undue emphasis on the maximization of short-term net income at the expense of other criteria, such as preservation of capital,
maintaining sufficient liquidity and/or management of market risk, in order to achieve higher incentive compensation. Investments with higher
yield potential are generally riskier and more speculative. PCM may also have a conflict of interest in deciding upon whether to sell any
investment at a gain, thereby recognizing additional incentive compensation, or to hold such investment based on its long-term value. This could
result in increased risk to the value and long-term performance of our portfolio.

The servicing fee structure could create a conflict of interest.

        For its services under our loan servicing agreement, PLS is entitled to base servicing fees that are competitive with those charged by
specialty servicers and are calculated as a percentage of the unpaid principal balance of the mortgage loans in our portfolio. Because the base
servicing fees are calculated on this basis, PLS's interests may not be aligned with ours with regard to loan modifications that would reduce the
unpaid principal balances of our mortgage loans. PLS is also entitled to certain customary market-based fees and charges, including boarding
and deboarding fees, liquidation and disposition fees, assumption, modification and origination fees and late charges, as well as interest on funds
on deposit in custodial or escrow accounts. In addition, to the extent we participate in HAMP (or other similar mortgage loan modification
programs), PLS will be entitled to retain any incentive payments made to it in connection with our participation therein. Because certain of these
fees are earned upon reaching a specific milestone, this fee structure may provide PLS with an incentive to foreclose more aggressively or
liquidate assets for less than their fair market value.

        On our behalf, PLS also refinances performing and nonperforming loans and originates new loans to facilitate the disposition of real estate
that we acquire through foreclosure. In order to provide PLS with an incentive to produce such loans, we have agreed to pay PLS customary
market-based origination fees of 1.0% of the unpaid principal balance of the loan plus $750. The amount of the origination fee is intended to
reflect market rates and will be subject to review by our board of trustees from time to time. This may provide PLS with an incentive to
refinance a greater proportion of our loans than it otherwise would and/or to refinance loans on our behalf instead of arranging the refinancings
with a third party lender.

Termination of our management agreement is difficult and costly.

        It is difficult and costly to terminate, without cause, our management agreement. Following the initial term ending August 4, 2012, our
management agreement provides that it may be terminated annually by us without cause under limited circumstances and upon 180 days' prior
written notice and the payment to PCM of a significant termination fee. The cost to us of terminating our management agreement may adversely
affect our desire or ability to terminate our management agreement with PCM without cause.

        PCM may terminate our management agreement if we become required to register as an investment company under the Investment
Company Act, or decline to renew our management agreement by providing us with 180 days' prior written notice, in which case we would not
be required to pay a termination fee to PCM. PCM may also terminate our management agreement upon at least 60 days' prior written notice if
we default in the performance of any material term of our management agreement and the default continues for a period of 30 days after written
notice to us, whereupon we would be required to pay to PCM a significant termination fee. If our management agreement is terminated, we will
have to obtain investment and other management services from another investment manager. We may not be able to replace these services in a
timely manner or on favorable terms, or at all.
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PCM and PLS both have limited liability and indemnity rights.

        Our management agreement and our loan servicing agreement provide that PCM (in the case of our management agreement) and PLS (in
the case of our loan servicing agreement) will not assume any responsibility other than to provide the services specified in such agreements. Our
management agreement further provides that PCM will not be responsible for any action of our board of trustees in following or declining to
follow its advice or recommendations. In addition, each of PCM (in the case of our management agreement) and PLS (in the case of our loan
servicing agreement) and their respective affiliates, managers, officers, trustees, directors, employees and members will be held harmless from,
and indemnified by us against, certain liabilities on customary terms.

Existing or future entities or accounts managed by PCM may compete with us for PCM's time and services, and they may compete with us
for, or may participate in, investments, any of which could result in conflicts of interest. BlackRock and Highfields Capital, PennyMac's
strategic investors, could compete with us or transact business with us.

        Pursuant to our management agreement, PCM is obligated to supply us with our senior management team, and the members of that team
are required to devote such time to us as is necessary and appropriate, commensurate with the level of our activity. The members of our senior
management team may have conflicts in allocating their time and services between us and other entities or accounts managed by PCM now or in
the future, including the PennyMac funds.

        Although we and PCM have adopted an allocation policy to specifically address some of the conflicts relating to our investment
opportunities, there is no assurance that this policy will be adequate to address all of the conflicts that may arise or will address such conflicts in
a manner that is favorable to us. We are also limited in our ability to acquire assets that are not qualifying real estate assets and/or real estate
related assets, whereas the PennyMac funds and other entities or accounts that PCM manages now or may manage in the future are not, or may
not be, as applicable, so limited. In addition, PCM and/or the PennyMac funds and the other entities or accounts managed by PCM now or in the
future may participate in some of our investments, which may not be the result of arm's length negotiations and may involve or later result in
potential conflicts between our interests in the investments and those of PCM or such other entities.

        In addition, PNMAC's strategic investors, BlackRock and Highfields Capital, each own 35% of PNMAC. Affiliates of each of BlackRock
and Highfields Capital currently manage investment vehicles and separate accounts that may compete directly or indirectly with us. BlackRock
and Highfields Capital are under no obligation to provide us with any financial or operational assistance, or to present opportunities to us for
matters in which they may become involved. We may enter into transactions with BlackRock or Highfields Capital or with market participants
with which BlackRock or Highfields Capital has business relationships, and such transactions and/or relationships could influence the decisions
made by PCM with respect to the purchase or sale of assets and the terms of such purchase or sale. Such activities could have an adverse effect
on the value of the positions held by us, or may result in BlackRock and/or Highfields Capital having interests adverse to ours.

If ownership interests held by PennyMac's strategic investors were transferred to a third party, this could result in a change in our objectives
and cause us material harm.

        If either or both of BlackRock and Highfields Capital were to sell their ownership interests in PNMAC to a third party, that party might,
subject to certain limitations, attempt to cause us to materially amend our investment policies, attempt to cause a sale or disposition of PCM
and/or PLS or a change in the composition of PCM's professionals. A change in ownership could also cause a termination of our management
agreement with PCM. If any of the foregoing were to occur, we could experience difficulty in making new investments and the value of our
existing investments, our business,
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our results of operations and our financial condition could suffer materially. Additionally, we cannot predict the effect that any transfer in the
ownership of PNMAC would have on the trading price of our common shares or our ability to raise capital or make investments in the future
because such matters would depend to a large extent on the identity of the new owner and the new owner's intentions with regard to our business
and affairs. As a result, the future of our company would be uncertain and the value of our investments, our results of operations and our
financial condition could suffer.

Negative publicity and media attention involving Countrywide Financial Corporation and certain of its former officers could have an
adverse impact on PennyMac and us.

        Certain of our and PennyMac's officers, including Stanford L. Kurland, our chairman and chief executive officer, are former employees of
Countrywide Financial Corporation ("Countrywide"), which has been the subject of various investigations and lawsuits and ongoing negative
publicity. We cannot assure you that any existing or future investigations, litigation or negative publicity involving Countrywide will not
generate negative publicity or media attention for us or adversely impact us or PCM's and PLS's ability to conduct their respective businesses.

 Risks Related to Our Business

We have a limited operating history and may not be able to successfully operate our business or generate sufficient operating cash flows to
make or sustain distributions to our shareholders. The supply of distressed residential mortgage loans will likely recede as the economy
improves.

        We were organized in May 2009, commenced operations in August 2009 and have a limited operating history. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to generate sufficient returns to pay our operating expenses and make distributions to our shareholders. The results of our
operations and our ability to make or sustain distributions to our shareholders depends on many factors, including the availability of attractive
risk-adjusted investment opportunities that satisfy our investment strategies and our success in identifying and consummating them on favorable
terms, the level and expected movement of home prices, the level and volatility of interest rates, readily accessible short-term and long-term
financing on favorable terms, and conditions in the financial markets, real estate market and the economy, as to which no assurance can be
given. We cannot assure you that we will be able to make investments with attractive risk-adjusted returns or will not seek investments with
greater risk to obtain the same level of returns or that the value of our investments in the future will not decline substantially. We also face
substantial competition in acquiring attractive investments.

        In addition, when the current conditions in the mortgage market, the financial markets and the economy stabilize and/or improve, the
availability of distressed residential mortgage loans that meet our investment objectives and strategies will likely recede, which could reduce our
ability to invest in distressed mortgage assets. In anticipation of this decline in the supply of potential investments, we are implementing conduit
activities and continue to reevaluate our investment strategies with a view of maximizing the returns from our investment portfolio and
identifying dislocations and opportunities in the mortgage market, but there can be no assurance that any of our strategies will be successful.

We depend on PCM and its senior management team, the members of which have limited experience operating a REIT and maintaining
exemption from the registration requirements under the Investment Company Act.

        Although PCM's senior management team has extensive experience in the mortgage industry and the management of residential mortgage
loans, they have limited experience operating a REIT, which must comply with the numerous technical restrictions and limitations set forth in
the Internal Revenue Code, and maintaining exemption from the registration requirements under the Investment Company Act.
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As a result of difficult conditions in the financial markets and the economy generally, the risks to our business strategies are high and there
are no assurances that we will be successful in implementing our business strategies.

        The success of our business strategies and our results of operations are materially affected by current conditions in the mortgage market, the
financial markets and the economy generally. Continuing concerns over factors including inflation, deflation, unemployment, energy costs,
geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit, the mortgage market and a declining real estate market have contributed to increased
volatility and unclear expectations for the economy and markets going forward. The residential mortgage market has been severely affected by
changes in the lending landscape and has experienced defaults, credit losses and significant liquidity concerns. There is no assurance that these
conditions have stabilized or that they will not worsen. A continuation or increase in the volatility and deterioration in the broader residential
mortgage and RMBS markets may adversely affect the performance and market value of our investments. Although we intend to purchase
distressed mortgage loans at discounts to their unpaid principal balances, further deterioration in home prices or the value of our investments
could require us to take charges that may be material.

The actions of the U.S. government, the Federal Reserve and the U.S. Treasury may adversely affect our business.

        The U.S. government, the Federal Reserve, the U.S. Treasury and other governmental and regulatory bodies have taken or are considering
taking various actions to address the recent financial crisis. There can be no assurances that such actions will have a beneficial impact on the
financial markets. In addition to the foregoing, the U.S. Congress and/or various states and local legislatures may enact additional legislation or
regulatory action designed to address the current economic climate or for other purposes that could have a material adverse effect on our ability
to execute our business strategies.

        To the extent the market does not respond favorably to these initiatives or they do not function as intended, they may not have a positive
impact on our business. We can provide no assurance that we will be eligible to use any government programs or, if eligible, that we will be able
to utilize them successfully. Further, the incentives provided by such programs may increase competition for, and the pricing of, our targeted
assets.

Mortgage loan modification and refinance programs, future legislative action, changes in the requirements necessary to qualify for
refinancing mortgage loans with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae and other actions and changes may adversely affect the value of,
and the returns on, the assets in which we intend to invest.

        The U.S. government, through the Federal Housing Administration, or FHA, the FDIC and the U.S. Treasury, has commenced or proposed
implementation of programs designed to provide homeowners with assistance in avoiding residential mortgage loan foreclosures. These loan
modification and refinance programs, future U.S. federal, state and/or local legislative or regulatory actions that result in the modification of
outstanding mortgage loans, as well as changes in the requirements necessary to qualify for refinancing mortgage loans with Fannie Mae,
Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae, may adversely affect the value of, and the returns on, residential mortgage loans, RMBS, real estate-related
securities and various other asset classes in which we invest. In addition to the foregoing, the U.S. Congress and/or various states and local
legislators may enact additional legislation or regulatory action designed to address the current economic climate or for other purposes that could
have a material adverse effect on our ability to execute our business strategies.

20

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

28



Table of Contents

The conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, along with any changes in laws and regulations affecting the roles of Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac, may adversely affect our business.

        Due to increased market concerns about Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac's ability to withstand future credit losses associated with securities
held in their investment portfolios, and on which they provide guarantees, the Federal Housing Finance Agency, or the FHFA, placed Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac into conservatorship. Although the U.S. Treasury has committed capital to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, there can be no
assurance that its actions will be adequate for their needs. If the actions are inadequate and/or pending repurchase requests by Fannie Mae and
Freddie Mac to lenders prove unsuccessful, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could continue to suffer losses and could fail to honor their guarantees
and other obligations. As a result, the future roles of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac remain uncertain. They could be significantly reduced and the
nature of the guarantees could be considerably limited relative to historical measurements. Any changes to the nature of the guarantees provided
by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefine what constitutes a U.S. government Agency RMBS and could have broad adverse market
implications. Such market implications are uncertain but could negatively affect the performance and market value of our investments.

We leverage our investments, which may adversely affect our return on our investments and may reduce cash available for distribution to
our shareholders.

        We currently leverage and, to the extent available, we intend to continue to leverage our investments through borrowings, the level of
which may vary based on the particular characteristics of our investment portfolio and on market conditions. We have leveraged certain of our
investments through repurchase agreements. When we enter into repurchase agreements, we sell securities or mortgage loans to lenders
(i.e., repurchase agreement counterparties) and receive cash from the lenders. The lenders are obligated to resell the same assets back to us at the
end of the term of the transaction. Because the cash we receive from the lender when we initially sell the assets to the lender is less than the
value of those assets (this difference is referred to as the haircut), if the lender defaults on its obligation to resell the same assets back to us we
could incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amount of the haircut (assuming there was no change in the value of the assets). In addition,
repurchase agreements generally allow the counterparties, to varying degrees, to determine a new market value of the collateral to reflect current
market conditions. If such counterparties determine that the value of the collateral has decreased, it may initiate a margin call and require us to
either post additional collateral to cover such decrease or repay a portion of the outstanding borrowing. Should this occur, in order to obtain cash
to satisfy a margin call, we may be required to liquidate assets at a disadvantageous time, which could cause us to incur further losses.

        Some of the lenders under our repurchase agreements require us and/or our subsidiaries to comply with various financial covenants,
including those relating to tangible net worth, profitability and our ratio of total liabilities to tangible net worth. Certain of our lenders also
require us to maintain minimum amounts of cash or cash equivalents sufficient to maintain a specified liquidity position. In the event that we are
unable to maintain these liquidity levels, we could be forced to sell additional investments at a loss and our financial condition could deteriorate
rapidly.

        Our repurchase agreements to finance nonperforming loans and other distressed mortgage assets are complex and difficult to manage. This
is due in part to the nature of the underlying assets securing the financing, which do not produce consistent cash flows and which require specific
activities to be performed at specific points in time in order to preserve value. Our inability to comply with the terms and conditions of these
facilities could materially and adversely impact us.

        In addition, the repurchase agreements contain events of default (subject to certain materiality thresholds and grace periods), including
payment defaults, breaches of financial and other covenants and/or certain representations and warranties, cross-defaults, servicer termination
events, guarantor
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defaults, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings and other events of default customary for these types of facilities. The remedies for such events
of default are also customary for these types of facilities and include the acceleration of the principal amount outstanding and the liquidation by
the lender of the assets then subject to the respective facilities. If we default on one of our obligations under a repurchase agreement, the lender
may be able to terminate the transaction, accelerate any amounts outstanding and cease entering into any other repurchase transactions with us.
To the extent our repurchase agreements contain cross-default provisions, a default that occurs under any one agreement could allow the lenders
under our other agreements to also declare a default. Any losses we incur on our repurchase agreements could materially and adversely affect
our earnings, financial condition and our cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

        Subject to market conditions and availability, we may in the future utilize other sources of borrowings, including bank credit facilities and
structured financing arrangements, among others. The percentage of leverage we employ varies depending on our available capital, our ability to
obtain and access financing arrangements with lenders and the lenders' and rating agencies' estimate of the stability of our investment portfolio's
cash flow. We also own real estate acquired in settlement of loans ("REO"), for which there is currently limited financing available and no
assurance of available financing in the future.

        Our governing documents contain no limitation on the amount of debt we may incur. Our return on our investments and cash available for
distribution to our shareholders may be reduced to the extent that changes in market conditions increase the cost of our financing relative to the
income that can be derived from the investments acquired. Our debt service payments will reduce cash flow available for distribution to
shareholders. We may not be able to meet our debt service obligations and, to the extent that we cannot, we risk the loss of some or all of our
assets to foreclosure or sale to satisfy the obligations.

As non-recourse long-term financing structures become available to us, such structures expose us to risks which could result in losses to us.

        We intend to use securitization and other non-recourse long-term financing for our investments to the extent available. In such structures,
our lenders typically would not have a general claim against us as an entity, as opposed to our assets themselves. Prior to any such financing, we
will seek to finance our investments with relatively short-term facilities until a sufficient portfolio is accumulated. As a result, we are subject to
the risk that we would not be able to acquire, during the period that any short-term facilities are available, sufficient eligible assets or securities
to maximize the efficiency of a securitization. We also bear the risk that we would not be able to obtain new short-term facilities or will not be
able to renew any short-term facilities after they expire should we need more time to seek and acquire sufficient eligible assets or securities for a
securitization. In addition, conditions in the capital markets may make the issuance of any such securitization less attractive to us even when we
do have sufficient eligible assets or securities. While we would intend to retain the unrated equity component of securitizations and, therefore,
still have exposure to any investments included in such securitizations, our inability to enter into such securitizations may increase our overall
exposure to risks associated with direct ownership of such investments, including the risk of default. Our inability to refinance any short-term
facilities would also increase our risk because borrowings thereunder would likely be recourse to us as an entity. If we are unable to obtain and
renew short-term facilities or to consummate securitizations to finance our investments on a long-term basis, we may be required to seek other
forms of potentially less attractive financing or to liquidate assets at an inopportune time or price.
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Future issuances of debt securities, which would rank senior to our common shares upon our liquidation, and future issuances of equity
securities, which would dilute the holdings of our existing shareholders and may be senior to our common shares for the purposes of making
distributions, including liquidating distributions, may adversely affect the market price of our common shares.

        In order to grow our business, we may rely on additional equity issuances, which may rank senior and/or be dilutive to our shareholders, or
on less efficient forms of debt financing that rank senior to our shareholders and require a larger portion of our cash flow from operations,
thereby reducing funds available for our operations, future business opportunities, cash distributions to our shareholders and other purposes.

        Upon liquidation, holders of our debt securities and other loans and preferred shares will receive a distribution of our available assets before
holders of our common shares. Subject to applicable law, our board of trustees has the authority, without further shareholder approval, to issue
additional common shares and preferred shares on the terms and for the consideration it deems appropriate. We have issued, and intend to issue
additional, common shares and securities convertible into, or exchangeable or exercisable for, common shares under our equity incentive plan.
We have also filed a shelf registration statement, from which we have issued and may in the future issue additional common shares, including,
without limitation through our establishment of an "at-the-market" equity program.

        We also may issue from time to time additional common shares in connection with property, portfolio or business acquisitions and may
grant demand or piggyback registration rights in connection with such issuances. Because our decision to issue securities in any future offering
will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict the effect, if any, of future issuances of our common
shares, preferred shares or other equity-based securities or the prospect of such issuances on the market price of our common shares. Issuances
of a substantial amount of such securities, or the perception that such issuances might occur, could depress the market price of our common
shares. Our preferred shares, if issued, would likely have a preference on distribution payments, including liquidating distributions, which could
limit our ability to make distributions, including liquidating distributions, to holders of our common shares.

        We cannot assure you that we will have access to any equity or debt capital on favorable terms at the desired times, or at all, and we cannot
predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings. Thus, holders of our common shares bear the risk that our future
issuances of debt or equity securities or other borrowings will reduce the market price of our common shares and dilute their ownership in us.

Interest rate fluctuations could significantly decrease our results of operations and cash flows and the market value of our investments.

        Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors beyond our control. Interest rate fluctuations present a variety of risks to our operations. Our
primary interest rate exposures relate to the yield on our investments, their market value and the financing cost of our debt, as well as any
interest rate swaps that we utilize for hedging purposes. Changes in interest rates affect our net interest income, which is the difference between
the interest income we earn on our interest-earning investments and the interest expense we incur in financing these investments. Interest rate
fluctuations resulting in our interest expense exceeding interest income may result in operating losses for us. Changes in the level of interest
rates also may affect our ability to make investments, the value of our investments and our ability to realize gains from the disposition of assets.
Changes in interest rates may also affect borrower default rates and may impact our ability to refinance or modify loans and/or to sell real estate
acquired in settlement of loans. In addition, in the event we acquire mortgage servicing rights, decreasing interest rates may cause a large
number of borrowers whose loans are being serviced by PLS to refinance, which may result in the loss of any such mortgage servicing business
and associated write-downs of such mortgage servicing rights. Any such scenario could materially and adversely affect us.
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Hedging against interest rate exposure may materially and adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.

        We pursue hedging strategies to reduce our exposure to adverse changes in interest rates. Our hedging activity varies in scope based on the
level of interest rates, the type of investments held, and other changing market conditions. However, while we enter into such transactions
seeking to reduce interest rate risk, unanticipated changes in interest rates may result in poorer overall investment performance than if we had
not engaged in any such hedging transactions. Interest rate hedging may fail to protect or could adversely affect us because, among other things,
it may not fully eliminate interest rate risk, it could expose us to counterparty and default risk that may result in greater losses or the loss of
unrealized profits, and it will create additional expense, while any income it generates to offset losses may be limited by federal tax provisions
applicable to REITs. Thus any hedging activity, while intended to limit losses, may materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
cash flows.

Competition may limit the availability of desirable investments and result in reduced risk-adjusted returns.

        Our profitability depends, in part, on our ability to acquire our targeted investments at favorable prices. As described in greater detail
elsewhere in this Report, we compete with other mortgage REITs, specialty finance companies, private funds, thrifts, banks, mortgage bankers,
insurance companies, mutual funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms, depository institutions, governmental bodies and other
entities, many of which focus on acquiring distressed mortgage loans. Many of our competitors also have competitive advantages over us,
including size, financial strength and risk tolerance. Competition may result in fewer investments, higher prices, acceptance of greater risk,
lower yields and a narrower spread of yields over our financing costs.

Our board of trustees has approved very broad investment policies for PCM and will not review or approve each investment decision. We
may change our investment strategies and policies without shareholder consent, which may adversely affect the market value of our common
shares and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

        PCM is authorized to follow very broad investment policies and, therefore, has great latitude in determining the types of assets that are
proper investments for us, as well as the individual investment decisions. In the future, PCM may make investments with lower rates of return
than those anticipated under current market conditions and/or may make investments with greater risks to achieve those anticipated returns. Our
board of trustees will periodically review our investment policies and our investment portfolio but will not review or approve each proposed
investment by PCM unless it falls outside our investment policies or constitutes a related party transaction. In addition, in conducting periodic
reviews, our board of trustees will rely primarily on information provided to it by PCM. Furthermore, PCM may use complex strategies, and
transactions entered into by PCM may be costly, difficult or impossible to unwind by the time they are reviewed by our board of trustees.

        In addition, we may change our investment strategies and policies and targeted asset classes at any time without the consent of our
shareholders, and this could result in our making investments that are different in type from, and possibly riskier than, the investments currently
contemplated. Changes in our investment strategies and policies and targeted asset classes may increase our exposure to interest rate risk,
counterparty risk, default risk and real estate market fluctuations, which could adversely affect the market value of our common shares and our
ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

Our implementation of a mortgage conduit operation could subject us to increased risk of loss.

        PCM has developed a mortgage conduit operation whereby we acquire newly originated loans, including jumbo loans, from small mortgage
lenders and sell or securitize those loans to or through the
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Agencies or other third party investors. We may also sell the resulting securities into the MBS markets. However, there can be no assurance that
PCM will be successful in operating this business or that we will be able to capitalize on these opportunities on favorable terms or at all. In
particular, we have committed, and expect to continue to commit, capital and other resources to this conduit operation; however, PCM may not
be able to source sufficient investment opportunities to justify the expenditure of such capital and other resources. In the event that PCM is able
to source sufficient investment opportunities for this operation, there can be no assurance that we would be able to acquire such investments on
favorable terms or at all, or that such investments, if acquired, would be profitable to us. In addition, we may be unable to finance the acquisition
of these investments and/or may be unable to sell the resulting MBS in the securitization market on favorable terms or at all. We are also subject
to the risk that the value of the acquired loans may decrease prior to their disposition. The occurrence of any one or more of these risks could
adversely impact our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately determine our financial results or prevent
fraud.

        Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. We may in the future
discover areas of our internal controls that need improvement. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires us to evaluate and report
on our internal controls over financial reporting and have our independent auditors annually attest to our evaluation, as well as issue their own
opinion on our internal control over financial reporting. While we have undertaken substantial work to comply with Section 404, we cannot be
certain that we will be successful in maintaining adequate control over our financial reporting and financial processes. Furthermore, as we grow
our business, our internal controls will become more complex, and we will require significantly more resources to ensure our internal controls
remain effective. If we or our independent auditors discover a material weakness, the disclosure of that fact, even if quickly remedied, could
reduce the market value of our common shares. Additionally, the existence of any material weakness or significant deficiency would require
management to devote significant time and incur significant expense to remediate any such material weakness or significant deficiency and
management may not be able to remediate any such material weakness or significant deficiency in a timely manner, or at all.

We and/or PLS are required to have various Agency approvals and state licenses in order to conduct our business and there is no assurance
we and/or PLS will be able to obtain or maintain those Agency approvals or state licenses.

        We and PLS are required to be licensed to conduct business in certain jurisdictions. PLS is licensed, or is taking steps to become licensed,
in those jurisdictions, and for those activities, where it believes it is cost effective and appropriate to become licensed. Through our wholly
owned subsidiaries, we are licensed or are taking steps to become licensed, in those jurisdictions, and for those activities, where we believe it is
cost effective and appropriate to become licensed. Our failure or the failure by PLS to obtain any necessary licenses promptly, comply with
applicable licensing laws or satisfy the various requirements or maintain them over time could restrict our direct business activities, result in
civil and other monetary penalties, or cause us to default under certain of our lending arrangements, any of which could materially and adversely
impact our business.

        We and PLS are also required to hold Agency approvals in order to sell mortgage loans to the Agencies and service such mortgage loans on
their behalf. Our failure, or the failure of PLS, to satisfy the various requirements necessary to maintain such Agency approvals over time would
also restrict our direct business activities and could adversely impact our business.
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We may be subject to liability for potential violations of various lending laws, which could adversely impact our results of operations,
financial condition and business.

        Residential mortgage loan originators and servicers are required to comply with various federal, state and local laws and regulations,
including anti-predatory lending laws and laws and regulations imposing certain restrictions and requirements on "high cost" loans. To the extent
these originators or servicers fail to comply with applicable law and any of their residential mortgage loans become part of our assets, it could
subject us, as an assignee or purchaser of the related residential mortgage loans, to monetary penalties or other losses and could result in the
borrowers rescinding the affected residential mortgage loans. Further, if any of our loans are found to have been originated, serviced or owned
by us or a third party in violation of applicable law, we could be fined or incur losses, which could adversely impact our business, financial
condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure will result in increased compliance costs and pose
challenges for our management team.

        Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street
Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
and SEC regulations, have created uncertainty for public companies and significantly increased the compliance requirements, costs and risks
associated with accessing the U.S. public markets. Our management team will need to devote significant time and financial resources to comply
with both existing and evolving standards for public companies, which will lead to increased general and administrative expenses and a
diversion of management time and attention from revenue generating activities to compliance activities.

        Many aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act are subject to rulemaking and will take effect over several years, making it difficult to anticipate the
overall financial impact on us and, more generally, the financial services and mortgage industries. Additionally, we cannot predict whether there
will be additional proposed laws or reforms that would affect us, whether or when such changes may be adopted, how such changes may be
interpreted and enforced or how such changes may affect us. However, the costs of complying with any additional laws or regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We are highly dependent on information systems and systems failures could significantly disrupt our business, which could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows.

        Our business is highly dependent on the communications and information systems of PCM and PLS. Any failure or interruption of these
systems could cause delays or other problems in our trading, investment and financing activities, which could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations and cash flows and negatively affect the market price of our common shares and ability to make distributions to our
shareholders.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the real estate industry generally and our business, financial condition,
liquidity and results of operations.

        The terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001 disrupted the U.S. financial markets, including the real estate capital markets, and negatively
impacted the U.S. economy in general. Any future terrorist attacks, the anticipation of any such attacks, the consequences of any military or
other response by the U.S. and its allies, and other armed conflicts could cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in
increased volatility in the U.S. and worldwide financial markets and economy. The economic impact of these events and/or the deployment of
our mortgage loan borrowers could also adversely affect the collectability of some of our loans and the credit quality of our loans and
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investments and the properties underlying our interests. We may suffer losses as a result of the adverse impact of any future attacks and these
losses may adversely impact our performance and may cause the market value of our common shares to decline or be more volatile. We cannot
predict the severity of the effect that potential future armed conflicts and terrorist attacks would have on us. Losses resulting from these types of
events may not be fully insurable.

 Risks Related to Our Investments

The mortgage loans in which we invest and the mortgage loans underlying the MBS in which we invest subject us to delinquency,
foreclosure and loss, as well as the risks associated with residential real estate and residential real estate-related investments, any of which
could result in losses to us.

        We invest in performing and nonperforming residential mortgage loans, and newly originated prime credit quality residential mortgage
loans through our conduit lending business. Residential mortgage loans are typically secured by single-family residential property and are
subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure and risks of loss. These risks are greater for nonperforming loans. In addition, we invest in
RMBS that are not guaranteed by federally chartered entities such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac or, in the case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S.
government. The ability of borrowers to repay residential mortgage loans that we own, or underlying RMBS that we own, is dependent upon the
income or assets of these borrowers.

        We are authorized to invest in CMBS and may also invest in commercial mortgage loans. Commercial mortgage loans are secured by
multifamily or commercial property and are subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure, and risks of loss that are greater than similar risks
associated with loans made on the security of single-family residential property. The ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by an
income-producing property typically is dependent primarily upon the successful operation of such property rather than upon the existence of
independent income or assets of the borrower. Net operating income of an income producing property can be affected by a variety of factors, and
if the net operating income of the property is reduced, the borrower's ability to repay the loan may be impaired.

        In the event of any default under a mortgage loan held directly by us, we will bear a risk of loss of principal to the extent of any deficiency
between the value of the collateral and the price we paid for the loan and any accrued interest of the mortgage loan, which could have a material
adverse effect on our cash flow from operations. In the event of the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower
will be deemed to be secured only to the extent of the value of the underlying collateral at the time of bankruptcy (as determined by the
bankruptcy court), and the lien securing the mortgage loan will be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankruptcy trustee or
debtor-in-possession to the extent the lien is unenforceable under state law.

        Our investment in mortgage loans and MBS also subjects us to the risks of residential real estate and residential real estate-related
investments, including, among others: (i) continued declines in the value of residential real estate; (ii) risks related to general and local economic
conditions; (iii) possible lack of availability of mortgage funds for borrowers to refinance or sell their homes; (iv) overbuilding; (v) the general
deterioration of the borrower's ability to keep a rehabilitated nonperforming mortgage loan current; (vi) increases in property taxes and operating
expenses; (vii) changes in zoning laws; (viii) costs resulting from the clean-up of, and liability to third parties for damages resulting from,
environmental problems, such as indoor mold; (ix) casualty or condemnation losses; (x) uninsured damages from floods, earthquakes or other
natural disasters; (xi) limitations on and variations in rents; (xii) fluctuations in interest rates; (xiii) fraud by borrowers, originators and/or sellers
of mortgage loans; (xiv) undetected deficiencies and/or inaccuracies in underlying mortgage loan documentation and calculations; and
(xv) failure of the borrower to adequately maintain the property, particularly during times of financial difficulty. To the extent that assets
underlying our investments are concentrated
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geographically, by property type or in certain other respects, we may be subject to certain of the foregoing risks to a greater extent. Additionally,
we may be required to foreclose on a mortgage loan and such actions would subject us to greater concentration of the risks of the residential real
estate markets and risks related to the ownership and management of real property.

A significant portion of the residential mortgage loans that we acquire are or may become nonperforming loans, which increases our risk of
loss of our investment.

        We acquire distressed residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets where the borrower has failed to make timely payments of
principal and/or interest. We also acquire performing loans that subsequently become nonperforming. Under current market conditions, it is
likely that many of these loans will have current loan-to-value ratios in excess of 100%, meaning the amount owed on the loan exceeds the value
of the underlying real estate. Further, the borrowers on such loans may be in economic distress and/or may have become unemployed, bankrupt
or otherwise unable or unwilling to make payments when due. If PLS as our primary and special servicer is not able to address the issues
concerning these loans, we may incur significant losses. There are no limits on the percentage of nonperforming assets we may hold. Any loss
we incur may be significant and may reduce distributions to our shareholders and adversely affect the market value of our common shares.

We invest in subprime residential mortgage loans or RMBS collateralized by subprime mortgage loans, which are subject to increased risks.

        We invest in subprime residential mortgage loans or RMBS backed by collateral pools of subprime residential mortgage loans, which are
mortgage loans originated using underwriting standards that are less restrictive than the underwriting standards for other first and junior lien
mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the programs of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Because of the higher delinquency rates and losses
associated with subprime mortgage loans, the performance of subprime mortgage loans or RMBS backed by subprime mortgage loans in which
we invest could be correspondingly adversely affected, which could adversely impact our business, financial condition, liquidity, and results of
operations.

We anticipate that a significant portion of our investments will be in the form of whole loan mortgages, which are subject to increased risks.

        A significant portion of our investments is and will continue to be in the form of whole loan mortgages, which are directly exposed to
losses resulting from default and foreclosure. In the event of a foreclosure, we may assume direct ownership of the underlying real estate. The
liquidation proceeds upon sale of such real estate may not be sufficient to recover our investment in the loan, resulting in a loss to us. In
addition, the foreclosure process may be lengthy and expensive, and any delays or costs involved in the effectuation of a foreclosure of the loan
or a liquidation of the underlying property may further reduce the proceeds and thus increase the loss.

We invest in RMBS and CMBS, each of which is subject to significant risks.

        RMBS evidence interests in or are secured by pools of residential mortgage loans and CMBS evidence interests in or are secured by a
single commercial mortgage loan or a pool of commercial mortgage loans. Accordingly, the RMBS and CMBS in which we invest are subject to
all of the risks of the respective underlying mortgage loans. In addition, the market value of mortgage securities will generally vary inversely
with changes in market interest rates, declining when interest rates rise and rising when interest rates decline. However, mortgage securities,
while having comparable risk of decline during periods of rising rates, usually have less potential for capital appreciation than other investments
of comparable maturities due to the likelihood of increased prepayments of mortgages as interest rates decline.
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Investments in subordinated loans and subordinated MBS could subject us to increased risk of losses.

        We may invest in subordinated loans and subordinated MBS. In the event a borrower defaults on a subordinated loan and lacks sufficient
assets to satisfy such loan, we may lose all or a significant part of our investment. In the event a borrower becomes subject to bankruptcy
proceedings, we will not have any recourse to the assets, if any, of the borrower that are not pledged to secure our loan, and the unpledged assets
of the borrower may not be sufficient to satisfy our loan. If a borrower defaults on our subordinated loan or on its senior debt (i.e., a first-lien
loan, in the case of a residential mortgage loan, or a contractually or structurally senior loan, in the case of a commercial mortgage loan), or in
the event of a borrower bankruptcy, our subordinated loan will be satisfied only after all senior debt is paid in full. As a result, we may not
recover all or even a significant part of our investment, which could result in losses. In addition, in the case of commercial mortgage loans where
senior debt exists, the presence of intercreditor arrangements may limit our ability to amend our loan documents, assign our loan, accept
prepayments, exercise our remedies and control decisions made in bankruptcy proceedings relating to borrowers.

        In general, losses on an asset securing a mortgage loan included in a securitization will be borne first by the equity holder of the property,
then by a cash reserve fund or letter of credit provided by the borrower, if any, and then by the "first loss" subordinated security holder and then
by the "second loss" subordinated security holder. In the event of default and the exhaustion of any equity support, reserve fund, letter of credit
and any classes of securities junior to those in which we invest, we may not recover all or even a significant part of our investment, which could
result in losses. In addition, if the underlying mortgage portfolio has been overvalued by the originator, or if the values subsequently decline and,
as a result, less collateral is available to satisfy interest and principal payments due on the related MBS, the securities in which we invest may
suffer significant losses.

        The prices of these types of lower credit quality investments are generally more sensitive to adverse actual or perceived economic
downturns or individual issuer developments than more highly rated investments. An economic downturn or a projection of an economic
downturn, for example, could cause a decline in the price of lower credit quality investments because the ability of obligors to make principal
and interest payments or to refinance may be impaired.

Our investments in loans to and debt securities of real estate companies will be subject to the specific risks relating to the particular borrower
or issuer of the securities and to the general risks of investing in real estate-related loans and securities, which may result in significant
losses.

        We may invest in loans to and debt securities of real estate companies, including REITs. These investments involve special risks relating to
the particular borrower or issuer of the securities, including the financial condition, liquidity, results of operations, business and prospects of the
borrower or issuer. Investments in REIT debt securities may also be subject to risks relating to transfer restrictions, substantial market price
volatility resulting from changes to prevailing interest rates, and, in the case of subordinated investments, the seniority of claims of banks and
other senior lenders to the issuer. In addition, real estate companies often invest, and REITs generally are required to invest substantially, in real
estate or real estate-related assets and are subject to some or all of the risks inherent with real estate and real estate-related investments referred
to in this Report. These risks may adversely affect the value of our debt securities of real estate companies and the ability of the issuers thereof
to make principal and interest payments in a timely manner, or at all, and could result in significant losses.

Our acquisition of distressed condominium development loans will be subject to the general risks applicable to development projects, which
may subject us to losses.

        We may seek opportunities to acquire mortgage assets that result from distressed condominium development projects, which may include
real estate development loans, existing residential loans
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originated by the developer, and residential loans originated by PLS on our behalf. In addition to the risks inherent to the investment in mortgage
loans, including distressed mortgage loans, as described throughout this Item 1A, our investment in mortgage assets that result from
condominium development projects also subjects us to the general risks applicable to a development project. These risks include that the
construction and leasing or sale of a property may not be completed on schedule or may cost more than anticipated due to, among other factors,
events beyond the control of the developer (such as weather conditions, labor or material shortages or labor actions such as strikes).
Development activities are also subject to risks relating to the inability to obtain, or delays in obtaining, all necessary zoning, land use, building,
occupancy and other required government permits and authorizations. It is also possible that construction or permanent financing may not be
available on favorable terms or at all. Any of these risks could result in substantial unanticipated delays or additional expenses and, under certain
circumstances, could prevent completion of development activities once commenced. Properties under development or properties acquired for
development may receive little or no cash flow from the date of acquisition through the date of completion of development or redevelopment
and may experience operating deficits after the date of completion. In addition, market conditions may change during the course of development
that make such development less attractive than at the time it was commenced. Any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on the
value of our development loans.

The failure of PLS or any other servicer to effectively service our portfolio of mortgage loans would materially and adversely affect us.

        Pursuant to our loan servicing agreement, PLS provides us with primary and special servicing. PLS's responsibilities include providing
delinquency notices when necessary, loan workouts and modifications, foreclosure proceedings, short sales, liquidations of REOs acquired as a
result of foreclosures of mortgage loans, and reporting on the performance of the loans. The ability of PLS or any other servicer or subservicer to
effectively service our portfolio of mortgage loans is critical to our success, particularly given our strategy of maximizing the value of the
mortgage loans that we acquire through proprietary loan modification programs, special servicing and other initiatives focused on keeping
borrowers in their homes; or in the case of nonperforming loans, effecting property resolutions in a timely, orderly and economically efficient
manner. The failure of PLS or any other servicer or subservicer to effectively service our portfolio of mortgage loans would adversely impact
our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

The increasing number of proposed U.S. federal, state and local laws may affect certain mortgage-related assets in which we intend to invest
and could increase our cost of doing business.

        Legislation has been proposed which, among other provisions, could hinder the ability of a servicer to foreclose promptly on defaulted
mortgage loans or would permit limited assignee liability for certain violations in the mortgage loan origination process, which could result in us
being held responsible for such violations. We cannot predict whether or in what form the U.S. Congress or the various state and local
legislatures may enact legislation affecting our business. We will evaluate the potential impact of any initiatives which, if enacted, could affect
our practices and results of operations. We are unable to predict whether U.S. federal, state or local authorities will enact laws, rules or
regulations that will require changes in our practices in the future, and any such changes could adversely affect our cost of doing business and
profitability.
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Our inability to promptly foreclose upon defaulted mortgage loans could increase our cost of doing business and/or diminish our expected
return on investments.

        Our ability to promptly foreclose upon defaulted mortgage loans and liquidate the underlying real property plays a critical role in our
valuation of the assets in which we invest and our expected return on those investments. There are a variety of factors that may inhibit our
ability, through PLS, to foreclose upon a mortgage loan and liquidate the real property within the time frames we model as part of our valuation
process. These factors include, without limitation: federal, state or local legislative action or initiatives designed to provide homeowners with
assistance in avoiding residential mortgage loan foreclosures and that serve to delay the foreclosure process; HAMP and similar programs that
require specific procedures to be followed to explore the refinancing of a mortgage loan prior to the commencement of a foreclosure proceeding;
and continued declines in real estate values and sustained high levels of unemployment that increase the number of foreclosures and place
additional pressure on the already overburdened judicial and administrative systems.

        In addition, certain issues, including "robo-signing," have been identified recently throughout the mortgage industry that relate to affidavits
used in connection with the mortgage loan foreclosure process. A substantial portion of our investments are nonperforming mortgage loans,
many of which are already subject to foreclosure proceedings at the time of purchase. While we have obtained assurances from PLS about its
own practices relative to foreclosure proceedings and its proper use of affidavits, there can be no assurance that similar practices have been
followed in connection with mortgage loans that are already subject to foreclosure proceedings at the time of purchase. To the extent we
determine that any of these loans are impacted by these issues, we may be required to re-commence the foreclosure proceedings relating to such
loans, thereby resulting in additional delay that could have the effect of increasing our cost of doing business and/or diminishing our expected
return on our investments. The uncertainty surrounding these issues could also result in legal, regulatory or industry changes to the foreclosure
process as a whole, any or all of which could lengthen the foreclosure process and negatively impact our business.

Challenges to the MERS ® System could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

        MERSCORP, Inc. is a privately held company that maintains an electronic registry, referred to as the MERS System, that tracks servicing
rights and ownership of loans in the United States. Mortgage Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
MERSCORP, Inc., can serve as a nominee for the owner of a mortgage loan and in that role initiate foreclosures and/or become the mortgagee
of record for the loan in local land records. We, or PLS on our behalf, may choose to use MERS as a nominee. The MERS System is widely
used by participants in the mortgage finance industry.

        Several legal challenges have been made disputing MERS's legal standing to initiate foreclosures and/or act as nominee in local land
records. These challenges have focused public attention on MERS and on how loans are recorded in local land records. As a result, these
challenges could negatively affect MERS's ability to serve as the mortgagee of record in some jurisdictions. In addition, where MERS is the
mortgagee of record, it must execute assignments of mortgages, affidavits and other legal documents in connection with foreclosure
proceedings. As a result, investigations by governmental authorities and others into the servicer foreclosure process deficiencies referenced
above may impact MERS. Failures by MERS to apply prudent and effective process controls and to comply with legal and other requirements in
the foreclosure process could pose operational, reputational and legal risks that may adversely affect us.
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A decline in the value of the real estate underlying our mortgage loans may result in reduced risk-adjusted returns.

        The value of the real estate which underlies mortgage loans is subject to market conditions. Changes in the real estate market may adversely
affect the value of the collateral and thereby lower the value to be derived from its liquidation. In addition, adverse changes in the real estate
market increase the probability of default, as the incentive of the borrower to retain and protect equity in the property declines. Distressed loans
may require a substantial amount of workout negotiations and/or restructuring, which may entail, among other things, a substantial reduction in
the interest rate, capitalization of interest payments, and a substantial write-down of the principal of the loan. However, even if such
restructuring were successfully accomplished, a risk exists that the borrower will not be able or willing to maintain the restructured payments or
refinance the restructured mortgage upon maturity.

Changes in prepayment rates could negatively affect the value of our investment portfolio, which could result in losses or reduced earnings
and negatively affect the cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

        The value of our investment portfolio may be affected by prepayment rates on mortgage loans. Prepayment rates on loans are influenced by
changes in market interest rates and a variety of economic, geographic and other factors beyond our control. Consequently, we cannot predict
with certainty such prepayment rates, and no strategy can completely insulate us from prepayment or other such risks. Changes in prepayment
rates may affect our ability to maintain targeted amounts of leverage on our portfolio and may result in losses or reduced earnings for us and
negatively affect the cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

Many of our investments may be illiquid and we may not be able to vary our portfolio in response to changes in economic and other
conditions.

        Our investments in mortgage loans are, and our investments in securities may be, illiquid. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible to
obtain or validate third party pricing on the investments we purchase. Illiquid investments typically experience greater price volatility, as a ready
market does not exist, and can be more difficult to value. The illiquidity of our investments may make it difficult for us to sell such investments
if the need or desire arises. In addition, if we are required to liquidate all or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize significantly less
than the recorded value.

Many of our investments will be unrated or, where any credit ratings are assigned to our investments, they will be subject to ongoing
evaluations and revisions and we cannot assure you that those ratings will not be downgraded.

        It is anticipated that many of our investments will not be rated by any rating agency. Therefore, PCM's assessment of the value and pricing
of our investments may be difficult and the accuracy of such assessment will be inherently uncertain. However, certain of our investments may
be rated. If rating agencies assign a lower-than-expected rating or reduce or withdraw, or indicate that they may reduce or withdraw, their ratings
of our investments in the future, the value of these investments could significantly decline, which would adversely affect the value of our
investment portfolio and could result in losses upon disposition or the failure of borrowers to satisfy their debt service obligations to us.

We may not realize gains or income from our investments.

        While we seek to generate both current income and capital appreciation from our investments, our investments may not appreciate and, in
fact, may decline in value. In addition, the obligors on our investments may default on, or be delayed in making, interest and/or principal
payments, especially given that our current investment strategies focus, in part, on distressed opportunities and that we acquire nonperforming
residential mortgage loans. Accordingly, we are subject to an increased risk of loss and may not be able to realize gains or income from our
investments. Any gains that we do realize may not be sufficient to offset our losses and expenses.
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We may utilize derivative instruments, which could subject us to risk of loss.

        We intend to utilize derivative instruments for hedging purposes, including swaps, options and futures. However, the prices of derivative
instruments, including futures and options, are highly volatile, as are payments made pursuant to swap agreements. As a result, the cost of
utilizing derivatives may reduce our income that would otherwise be available for distribution to shareholders or for other purposes, and the
derivative instruments that we utilize may fail to effectively hedge our positions. We are also subject to credit risk with regard to the
counterparties involved in the derivative transactions.

Insurance on real estate securing mortgage loans and real estate securities collateral may not cover all losses.

        There are certain types of losses, generally of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, terrorism or acts of war, that
may be uninsurable or not economically insurable. Inflation, changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other
factors, including terrorism or acts of war, also might make the insurance proceeds insufficient to repair or replace a property if it is damaged or
destroyed. Under these circumstances, the insurance proceeds received might not be adequate to restore our economic position with respect to
the affected real property. Any uninsured loss could result in the loss of cash flow from, and the asset value of, the affected property.

We may be adversely affected by risks affecting borrowers or the asset or property types in which our investments may be concentrated at any
given time, as well as from unfavorable changes in the related geographic regions.

        Our assets are not subject to any geographic, diversification or concentration limitations except that we will be concentrated in residential
mortgage-related investments. Accordingly, our investment portfolio may be concentrated by geography, asset, property type and/or borrower,
increasing the risk of loss to us if the particular concentration in our portfolio is subject to greater risks or undergoing adverse developments. In
addition, adverse conditions in the areas where the properties securing or otherwise underlying our investments are located (including business
layoffs or downsizing, industry slowdowns, changing demographics and other factors) and local real estate conditions (such as oversupply or
reduced demand) may have an adverse effect on the value of our investments. A material decline in the demand for real estate in these areas may
materially and adversely affect us. Lack of diversification can increase the correlation of non-performance and foreclosure risks among our
investments.

A prolonged economic slowdown, recession or declining real estate values could materially and adversely affect us.

        We believe the risks associated with our investments will be more acute during periods of economic slowdown or recession, especially if
these periods are accompanied by high unemployment and declining real estate values. A weakening economy, high unemployment and
declining real estate values significantly increase the likelihood that borrowers will default on their debt service obligations to us and that we
will incur losses on our investments with them in the event of a default on a particular investment because the value of any collateral we
foreclose upon may be insufficient to cover the full amount of such investment or may require a significant amount of time to realize. They may
also increase the likelihood of re-default rates even after we have completed loan modifications. Any period of increased payment delinquencies,
foreclosures or losses could adversely affect the net interest income generated from our portfolio and our ability to make and finance future
investments, which would materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to
make distributions to our shareholders.
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Fair values of our investments are imprecise and may adversely affect periodic reported results and credit availability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

        We expect that the values of some of our investments may not be readily determinable. We measure the fair value of these investments
monthly, but the fair value at which our assets may be recorded may not be an indication of their realizable value. Ultimate realization of the
value of an asset depends to a great extent on economic and other conditions that are beyond the control of PCM, our company or our board of
trustees. Further, fair value is only an estimate based on good faith judgment of the price at which an investment can be sold since market prices
of investments can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller. In certain cases, PCM's estimation of the fair value of
our investments will include inputs provided by third-party dealers and pricing services, and valuations of certain securities or other assets in
which we invest are often difficult to obtain and are subject to judgments that may vary among market participants. Changes in the estimated fair
values of those assets will be directly charged or credited to earnings for the period. If we were to liquidate a particular asset, the realized value
may be more than or less than the amount at which such asset was recorded. Accordingly, in either event, the value of our common shares could
be adversely affected by our determinations regarding the fair value of our investments, and such valuations may fluctuate over short periods of
time.

PCM will utilize analytical models and data in connection with the valuation of our investments, and any incorrect, misleading or incomplete
information used in connection therewith would subject us to potential risks.

        Given the complexity of our investments and strategies, PCM must rely heavily on analytical models (both proprietary models developed
by PCM and those supplied by third parties) and information and data supplied by third parties, or models and data. Models and data will be
used to value investments or potential investments and also in connection with hedging our investments. In the event models and data prove to
be incorrect, misleading or incomplete, any decisions made in reliance thereon expose us to potential risks. For example, by relying on incorrect
models and data, especially valuation models, PCM may be induced to buy certain investments at prices that are too high, to sell certain other
investments at prices that are too low or to miss favorable opportunities altogether. Similarly, any hedging based on faulty models and data may
prove to be unsuccessful.

Liability relating to environmental matters may impact the value of properties that we may acquire or the properties underlying our
investments.

        Under various U.S. federal, state and local laws, an owner or operator of real property may become liable for the costs of removal of certain
hazardous substances released on its property. These laws often impose liability without regard to whether the owner or operator was responsible
for, or aware of, the release of such hazardous substances. The presence of hazardous substances may also adversely affect an owner's ability to
sell real estate, borrow using real estate as collateral or make debt payments to us. In addition, if we take title to a property, the presence of
hazardous substances may adversely affect our ability to sell the property, and we may become liable to a governmental entity or to third parties
for various fines, damages or remediation costs. Any of these liabilities or events may adversely affect the value of the relevant asset and/or our
business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

We are subject to counterparty risk and may be unable to seek indemnity or require our counterparties to repurchase mortgage loans if they
breach representations and warranties, which could cause us to suffer losses.

        When we purchase loans, our counterparty typically makes customary representations and warranties about such loans to us. Our residential
mortgage loan purchase agreements may entitle us to
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seek indemnity or demand repurchase or substitution of the loans in the event our counterparty breaches a representation or warranty given to us.
However, there can be no assurance that our mortgage loan purchase agreements will contain appropriate representations and warranties, that we
will be able to enforce our contractual right to repurchase or substitution, or that our counterparty will remain solvent or otherwise be able to
honor its obligations under our mortgage loan purchase agreements. Further, the majority of our assets owned as of December 31, 2010 were
purchased from one large financial institution counterparty, which is also one of our sources of financing. Our inability to obtain indemnity or
require repurchase of a significant number of loans could harm our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to
make distributions to our shareholders.

We may be required to repurchase mortgage loans or indemnify investors if we breach representations and warranties, which could harm
our earnings.

        When we sell loans, we are required to make customary representations and warranties about such loans to the loan purchaser. Our
residential mortgage loan sale agreements may require us to repurchase or substitute loans in the event we breach a representation or warranty
given to the loan purchaser. In addition, we may be required to repurchase loans as a result of borrower fraud or in the event of early payment
default on a mortgage loan. Likewise, we may be required to repurchase or substitute loans if we breach a representation or warranty in
connection with our securitizations. The remedies available to a purchaser of mortgage loans are generally broader than those available to us
against the originating broker or correspondent. Further, if a purchaser enforces its remedies against us, we may not be able to enforce the
remedies we have against the sellers. The repurchased loans typically can only be financed at a steep discount to their repurchase price, if at all.
They are also typically sold at a significant discount to the unpaid principal balance. Significant repurchase activity could harm our business,
financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders.

 Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Certain provisions of Maryland law, our staggered board of trustees and certain provisions in our declaration of trust could each inhibit a
change in our control.

        Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law, or the MGCL, applicable to a Maryland real estate investment trust may have
the effect of inhibiting a third party from making a proposal to acquire us or of impeding a change in our control under circumstances that
otherwise could provide the holders of our common shares with the opportunity to realize a premium over the then prevailing market price of
such shares.

        In addition, our board of trustees is divided into three classes of trustees. Trustees of each class will be elected for three-year terms upon the
expiration of their current terms, and each year one class of trustees will be elected by our shareholders. The staggered terms of our trustees may
reduce the possibility of a tender offer or an attempt at a change in control, even though a tender offer or change in control might be in the best
interests of our shareholders.

        Further, our declaration of trust authorizes us to issue additional authorized but unissued common shares and preferred shares. Our board of
trustees may, without shareholder approval, increase the aggregate number of our authorized shares or the number of shares of any class or series
that we have authority to issue and classify or reclassify any unissued common shares or preferred shares and may set the preferences, rights and
other terms of the classified or reclassified shares. As a result, our board may establish a class or series of common shares or preferred shares or
take other actions that could delay or prevent a transaction or a change in our control that might involve a premium price for our common shares
or otherwise be in the best interests of our shareholders.

35

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

43



Table of Contents

Compliance with our Investment Company Act exclusion imposes limits on our operations.

        We intend to conduct our operations so that we are not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act.
However, our qualification for exclusion from registration under the Investment Company Act will limit our ability to make certain investments,
as discussed below.

Failure to maintain our exclusion from registration under the Investment Company Act could negatively affect the value of our common
shares, the sustainability of our business model and our ability to make distributions to shareholders.

        Because we are organized as a holding company that conducts its businesses primarily through our operating partnership and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, our status under the Investment Company Act is dependent upon the status of our operating partnership which, as a
holding company, in turn, will have its status determined by the status of its subsidiaries. The securities issued to our operating partnership by
subsidiaries excepted from the definition of "investment company" under Section 3(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the Investment Company Act,
together with any other investment securities owned by our operating partnership, may not have a value in excess of 40% of the value of our
operating partnership's total assets on an unconsolidated basis. While we will monitor our holdings to ensure continuing and ongoing compliance
with this asset test, if the value of such securities exceeds such 40% threshold, or if one or more of such subsidiaries fail to maintain their
exceptions or exclusions from the Investment Company Act and we do not have available to us another basis on which we may avoid
registration, we may have to register under the Investment Company Act. This could subject us to substantial regulation with respect to our
capital structure (including our ability to use leverage), management, operations, transactions with affiliated persons (as defined in the
Investment Company Act), portfolio composition, including restrictions with respect to diversification and industry concentration, and other
matters. It could also cause the breach of covenants we have made under certain of our financing arrangements, which could result in an event of
default, acceleration of debt and/or termination.

        To ensure qualification for the foregoing exclusion in the future, we could also be required to restructure our activities in a manner that, or
at a time when, we would not otherwise choose to do so, which could negatively affect the value of our common shares, the sustainability of our
business model, and our ability to make distributions. For example, our subsidiaries may have to sell securities to qualify for exclusion under the
Investment Company Act. The sale could occur during adverse market conditions, and our subsidiaries could be forced to accept a price below
that which they believe is acceptable. In addition, there can be no assurance that the laws, regulations and guidance governing our exclusion
from registration under the Investment Company Act will not change in a manner that adversely affects our operations.

        Further, a loss of our Investment Company Act exclusion would allow PCM to terminate our management agreement with us, and our loan
servicing agreement with PLS is subject to early termination in the event our management agreement is terminated for any reason. If any of
these agreements are terminated, we will have to obtain the services on our own, and we may not be able to replace these services in a timely
manner or on favorable terms, or at all. This would have a material adverse effect on our ability to continue to execute our business strategy.

Rapid changes in the values of our investments may make it more difficult for us to maintain our REIT qualification or exclusion from the
Investment Company Act.

        If the market value or income potential of our residential mortgage loans and other real estate-related assets declines as a result of increased
interest rates, prepayment rates or other factors, we may need to increase certain real estate investments and income and/or liquidate our
non-qualifying assets
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in order to maintain our REIT qualification or exclusion from the Investment Company Act. If the decline in real estate asset values and/or
income occurs quickly, this may be especially difficult to accomplish, particularly given the illiquid nature of our investments. We may have to
make investment decisions that we otherwise would not make absent our REIT and Investment Company Act considerations.

Our rights and the rights of our shareholders to take action against our trustees and officers are limited, which could limit your recourse in
the event of actions not in your best interest.

        Our declaration of trust limits the liability of our present and former trustees and officers to us and our shareholders for money damages to
the maximum extent permitted under Maryland law. Under current Maryland law, our present and former trustees and officers will not have any
liability to us or our shareholders for money damages other than liability resulting from either (a) actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit
in money, property or services or (b) active and deliberate dishonesty by the trustee or officer that was established by a final judgment and is
material to the cause of action.

        Our declaration of trust authorizes us to indemnify our present and former trustees and officers for actions taken by them in those capacities
to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws require us to indemnify each present and former trustee or officer, to the
maximum extent permitted by Maryland law, in the defense of any proceeding to which he or she is made, or threatened to be made, a party by
reason of his or her service to us. In addition, we may be obligated to pay or reimburse the expenses incurred by our present and former trustees
and officers without requiring a preliminary determination of their ultimate entitlement to indemnification. As a result, we and our shareholders
may have more limited rights against our present and former trustees and officers than might otherwise exist absent the current provisions in our
declaration of trust and bylaws or that might exist with other companies, which could limit your recourse in the event of actions not in your best
interest.

Our declaration of trust contains provisions that make removal of our trustees difficult, which could make it difficult for our shareholders to
effect changes to our management.

        Our declaration of trust provides that, subject to the rights of holders of any series of preferred shares, a trustee may be removed only for
"cause" (as defined in our declaration of trust), and then only by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast
generally in the election of trustees. Vacancies generally may be filled only by a majority of the remaining trustees in office, even if less than a
quorum, for the full term of the class of trustees in which the vacancy occurred. These requirements make it more difficult to change our
management by removing and replacing trustees and may prevent a change in our control that is in the best interests of our shareholders.

 Risks Related to Taxation

Our failure to qualify as a REIT would result in higher taxes and reduced cash available for distribution to our shareholders.

        We are organized and operate in a manner so as to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Our continued qualification as a
REIT will depend on our satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizational, distribution, shareholder ownership and other requirements on a
continuing basis. If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we would be subject to U.S. federal income tax, including any
applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corporate rates, and distributions to our shareholders would not be
deductible by us in computing our taxable income. Any such corporate tax liability could be substantial and would reduce the amount of cash
available for distribution to our shareholders, which in turn would have an adverse impact on the
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value of our common shares. Unless we were entitled to relief under certain Internal Revenue Code provisions, we also would be disqualified
from taxation as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we ceased to qualify as a REIT.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we will face tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow, and a significant portion of our income may be earned
through TRSs that are subject to U.S. federal income taxation.

        Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our income and assets,
including taxes on any undistributed income, tax on income from some activities conducted as a result of a foreclosure, and state or local
income, property and transfer taxes, such as mortgage recording taxes. Any of these taxes would decrease cash available for distribution to our
shareholders.

        In addition, in order to meet the REIT qualification requirements, or to avert the imposition of a 100% tax that applies to certain gains
derived by a REIT from dealer property or inventory, we will hold a significant portion of our assets through, and derive a significant portion of
our taxable income and gains in, TRSs, subject to the limitation that securities in TRSs may not represent more than 25% of our assets in order
for us to remain qualified as a REIT. All taxable income and gains derived from the assets held from time to time in our TRSs are subject to
regular corporate income taxation.

The percentage of our assets represented by TRSs and the amount of our income that we can receive in the form of TRS dividends are
subject to statutory limitations that could jeopardize our REIT status.

        No more than 25% of the value of a REIT's assets may consist of stock or securities of one or more TRSs (at the end of each quarter).
While we intend to manage our affairs so as to satisfy this requirement, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so in all market
circumstances. Although a TRS is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax on its taxable income, we may from time to time need to
make distributions of such after-tax income in order to keep the value of our TRSs below 25% of our total assets. However, for purposes of one
of the tests we must satisfy to qualify as a REIT, at least 75% of our gross income must in each taxable year generally be from real estate assets.
While we will be monitoring our compliance with both this income test and the limitation on the percentage of our assets represented by TRS
securities, the two may at times be in conflict with one another. That is, it is possible that we may wish to distribute a dividend from a TRS in
order to reduce the value of our TRSs below 25% of our assets, but be unable to do so without violating the requirement that 75% of our gross
income in the taxable year be derived from real estate assets. There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with both of these tests in
all market conditions.

Dividends payable by REITs do not generally qualify for the reduced tax rates applicable to certain corporate dividends.

        Recently enacted legislation has extended, through taxable years beginning on or before December 31, 2012, the 15% maximum tax rate for
dividends paid by certain corporations, as well as the 15% capital gains rate, applicable to eligible domestic shareholders that are individuals,
trusts and estates. Dividends paid by REITs, however, are generally not eligible for the reduced rates. The more favorable rates applicable to
regular corporate dividends could cause investors who are individuals, trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less
attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends, which could adversely affect the value of the stock of
REITs, including our common shares.
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We have not established a minimum distribution payment level and no assurance can be given that we will be able to make distributions to
our shareholders in the future at current levels or at all.

        We are generally required to distribute to our shareholders at least 90% of our taxable income each year for us to qualify as a REIT under
the Internal Revenue Code, which requirement we currently intend to satisfy. To the extent we satisfy the 90% distribution requirement but
distribute less than 100% of our taxable income, we will be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax on our undistributed taxable income.
We have not established a minimum distribution payment level, and our ability to make distributions to our shareholders may be adversely
affected by the risk factors discussed in this Report and any subsequent Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. Although we have made, and
anticipate continuing to make, quarterly distributions to our shareholders, our board of trustees has the sole discretion to determine the timing,
form and amount of any future distributions to our shareholders, and such determination will depend upon, among other factors, our historical
and projected results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and liquidity, maintenance of our REIT qualification and other tax
considerations, capital expenditure and other expense obligations, debt covenants, contractual prohibitions or other limitations and applicable
law and such other matters as our board of trustees may deem relevant from time to time. Among the factors that could impair our ability to
continue to make distributions to our shareholders are:

�
our inability to invest the net proceeds from our equity offerings;

�
our inability to make attractive risk-adjusted returns on our current and future investments;

�
non-cash earnings or unanticipated expenses that reduce our cash flow;

�
defaults in our investment portfolio or decreases in its value; and

�
the fact that anticipated operating expense levels may not prove accurate, as actual results may vary from estimates.

As a result, no assurance can be given that we will be able to continue to make distributions to our shareholders in the future or that the level of
any future distributions will achieve a market yield or increase or even be maintained over time, any of which could materially and adversely
affect the market price of our common shares.

The REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business strategies.

        We intend to make distributions to our shareholders to comply with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and to avoid paying
corporate tax on undistributed income. However, differences in timing between the recognition of taxable income and the actual receipt of cash
could require us to sell assets, borrow funds on a short-term or long-term basis, or issue equity to meet the distribution requirements of the
Internal Revenue Code.

        We may find it difficult or impossible to meet distribution requirements in certain circumstances. Due to the nature of the assets in which
we invest and may invest, we may be required to recognize taxable income from those assets in advance of our receipt of cash flow on or
proceeds from disposition of such assets. As a result, to the extent such income is not realized within a TRS, the requirement to distribute a
substantial portion of our net taxable income could cause us to: (i) sell assets in adverse market conditions, (ii) borrow on unfavorable terms,
(iii) distribute amounts that would otherwise be invested in future acquisitions, capital expenditures or repayment of debt or (iv) make a taxable
distribution of our shares as part of a distribution in which shareholders may elect to receive shares or (subject to a limit measured as a
percentage of the total distribution) cash, in order to comply with REIT requirements.
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We may be required to report taxable income early in our holding period for certain investments in excess of the economic income we
ultimately realize from them.

        We expect to acquire in the secondary market debt instruments for less than their face amount, MBS issued with original issue discount, or
debt instruments or MBS that are delinquent as to mandatory principal and interest payments. In each case, we may be required to report income
regardless of whether corresponding cash payments are received or are ultimately collectible. If we eventually collect less than we had
previously reported as income, there may be a bad debt deduction available to us at that time, but our ability to benefit from that bad debt
deduction would depend on our having taxable income in that later taxable year. This possible "income early, losses later" phenomenon could
adversely affect us and our shareholders if it were persistent and in significant amounts.

The share ownership limits applicable to us that are imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for REITs and our declaration of trust may
restrict our business combination opportunities.

        Ownership limitations are common in the organizational documents of REITs and are intended, among other purposes, to provide added
assurance of compliance with the tax law requirements and to minimize administrative burdens. However, our share ownership limits might also
delay or prevent a transaction or a change in our control that might involve a premium price for our common shares or otherwise be in the best
interests of our shareholders.

Complying with the REIT requirements can be difficult and may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities or liquidate otherwise
attractive investments.

        To qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other things, the sources of
our income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our shareholders and the ownership of our shares. We may
be required to make distributions to our shareholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution.
Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make certain attractive investments or require us to liquidate from our
portfolio otherwise attractive investments. If we are compelled to liquidate our investments, we may be unable to comply with these
requirements, ultimately jeopardizing our qualification as a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax on any resultant gain if we sell assets that
are treated as dealer property or inventory. These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution to
our shareholders.

Complying with the REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively.

        The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code may limit our ability to hedge our assets and operations. Under current law, any income
that we generate from transactions intended to hedge our interest rate, inflation and/or currency risks will be excluded from gross income for
purposes of the REIT gross income tests in certain instances. As a result of these rules, we may have to limit our use of hedging techniques that
might otherwise be advantageous, which could result in greater risks associated with interest rate or other changes than we would otherwise be
subject to.

If our operating partnership failed to qualify as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we could fail to qualify as a REIT and
suffer other adverse consequences.

        We believe that our operating partnership is organized and will be operated in a manner so as to be treated as a partnership, and not an
association or publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation, for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a partnership, it will not be subject
to U.S. federal income tax on its income. Instead, each of its partners, including us, will be allocated its share
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of our operating partnership's income. No assurance can be provided, however, that the IRS will not challenge its status as a partnership for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, or that a court would not sustain such a challenge. If the IRS were successful in treating our operating partnership
as an association or publicly traded partnership taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we could fail to meet the gross
income tests and certain of the asset tests applicable to REITs and, accordingly, could cease to qualify as a REIT. Also, the failure of our
operating partnership to qualify as a partnership would cause it to become subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax, which would reduce
significantly the amount of its cash available for debt service and for distribution to its partners, including us.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit our ability to engage in transactions, including certain methods of securitizing mortgage loans,
that would be treated as sales for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

        A REIT's net income from prohibited transactions is subject to a 100% tax. In general, prohibited transactions are sales or other dispositions
of property, other than foreclosure property, but including mortgage loans, held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of
business. We might be subject to this tax if we were to dispose of or securitize loans in a manner that was treated as a sale of the loans for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Therefore, in order to avoid the prohibited transactions tax, we may choose to engage in certain sales of loans
through a TRS and not at the REIT level, and may limit the structures we utilize for our securitization transactions, even though the sales or
structures might otherwise be beneficial to us. We may hold a substantial amount of assets in one or more TRSs that are subject to corporate
income tax on its earnings, which may reduce the cash flow generated by us and our subsidiaries in the aggregate, and our ability to make
distributions to our shareholders.

The taxable mortgage pool, or TMP, rules may increase the taxes that we or our shareholders may incur, and may limit the manner in which
we effect future securitizations.

        Certain of our securitizations in the future, if any, will likely be considered to result in the creation of TMPs for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. A TMP is always classified as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. However, as long as a REIT owns 100% of a TMP,
such classification generally does not result in the imposition of corporate income tax, because the TMP is a "qualified REIT subsidiary." The
requirement that a TMP be wholly owned by a REIT to be a qualified REIT subsidiary means that we would be precluded from holding equity
interests in such a TMP through our operating partnership if the TMP were a U.S. entity that would be subject to taxation as a domestic
corporation, unless our operating partnership itself formed another subsidiary REIT to own the TMP.

        In the case of such wholly REIT owned TMPs, certain categories of our shareholders, such as foreign shareholders otherwise eligible for
treaty benefits, shareholders with net operating losses, and tax exempt shareholders that are subject to unrelated business income tax, could be
subject to increased taxes on a portion of their dividend income received from us that is attributable to the TMP or "excess inclusion income." In
addition, to the extent that our shares are owned in record name by tax exempt "disqualified organizations," such as certain government-related
entities that are not subject to tax on unrelated business income, we may incur a corporate level tax on our allocable portion of excess inclusion
income from such a wholly REIT owned TMP. In that case and to the extent feasible, we may reduce the amount of our distributions to any
disqualified organization whose share ownership gave rise to the tax, or we may bear such tax as a general corporate expense. To the extent that
our shares owned by disqualified organizations are held in record name by a broker/dealer or other nominee, the broker/dealer or other nominee
would be liable for the corporate level tax on the portion of our excess inclusion income allocable to the shares held by the broker/dealer or other
nominee on behalf of disqualified organizations. While we intend to attempt to minimize the portion of our distributions that

41

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

49



Table of Contents

is subject to these rules, the law is unclear concerning computation of excess inclusion income, and its amount could be significant.

        In the case of any TMP that would be taxable as a domestic corporation if it were not wholly REIT owned, we would be precluded from
selling equity interests in these securitizations to outside investors, or selling any debt securities issued in connection with these securitizations
that might be considered to be equity interests for tax purposes. This marketing limitation may prevent us from selling more junior or non
investment grade debt securities in such securitizations and maximizing our proceeds realized in those offerings.

New legislation or administrative or judicial action, in each instance potentially with retroactive effect, could make it more difficult or
impossible for us to qualify as a REIT.

        The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified, possibly with retroactive effect, by legislative, judicial or
administrative action at any time, which could affect the U.S. federal income tax treatment of an investment in our common shares. The U.S.
federal tax rules that affect REITs constantly are under review by persons involved in the legislative process, the IRS and the U.S. Treasury,
which results in statutory changes as well as frequent revisions to Treasury Regulations and interpretations. Revisions in U.S. federal tax laws
and interpretations thereof could cause us to change our investments and commitments, which could also affect the tax considerations of an
investment in our common shares.

A recent IRS administrative pronouncement with respect to investments by REITs in distressed debt secured by both real and personal
property, if interpreted adversely to us, could cause us to pay penalty taxes or potentially to lose our REIT status.

        Most of the mortgage loans that we acquire are acquired by us at a discount from their outstanding principal amount, because our pricing is
based on the value of the underlying real estate that secures those mortgage loans.

        Treasury Regulation Section 1.856-5(c) (the "interest apportionment regulation") provides rules for determining what portion of the interest
income from mortgage loans that are secured by both real and personal property is treated as "interest on obligations secured by mortgages on
real property or on interests in real property." Under the interest apportionment regulation, if a mortgage covers both real property and other
property, a REIT is required to apportion its annual interest income to the real property security based on a fraction, the numerator of which is
the value of the real property securing the loan, determined when the REIT commits to acquire the loan, and the denominator of which is the
highest "principal amount" of the loan during the year. The Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, has recently issued a revenue procedure,
Revenue Procedure 2011-16, that contains an example regarding the application of the interest apportionment regulation. The example interprets
the "principal amount" of the loan to be the face amount of the loan, despite the Internal Revenue Code requiring taxpayers to treat any market
discount, that is the difference between the purchase price of the loan and its face amount, for all purposes (other than certain withholding and
information reporting purposes) as interest rather than principal.

        The interest apportionment regulation applies only if the debt in question is secured both by real property and personal property. We believe
that all of the mortgage loans that we acquire are secured only by real property and no other property value is taken into account in our
underwriting and pricing. Accordingly, we believe that the interest apportionment regulation does not apply to our portfolio.

        Nevertheless, if the IRS were to assert successfully that our mortgage loans were secured by property other than real estate, that the interest
apportionment regulation applied for purposes of our REIT testing, and that the position taken in Revenue Procedure 2011-16 should be applied
to our
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portfolio, then depending upon the value of the real property securing our loans and their face amount, and the sources of our gross income
generally, we might not be able to meet the 75% REIT gross income test applicable to REITs. If we did not meet this test, we could potentially
either lose our REIT status or be required to pay a tax penalty to the IRS.

 Item 1B.    Unresolved Staff Comments

        None

 Item 2.    Properties

        We do not own or lease any property. Our operations are carried out on our behalf in the offices of PCM, at 27001 Agoura Road, Suite 350,
Calabasas, California, 91301.

 Item 3.    Legal Proceedings

        From time to time, we may be involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. As of December 31,
2010, we were not involved in any material legal proceedings.

 Item 4.    Reserved
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 PART II

 Item 5.    Market for the Company's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities

        Our common shares began trading publicly on July 30, 2009, and are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Symbol: PMT). As of
March 3, 2011, we had 27,762,843 common shares outstanding, which were held by approximately 5,800 beneficial holders. The following table
sets forth the high and low sales prices (as reported by the New York Stock Exchange) for our common shares and the amount of cash
distributions declared during the last two periods:

 For the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2009

Stock price Cash
distributions

declaredPeriod Ended High Low
September 30, 2009 (since July 30, 2009) $ 20.00 $ 18.70 $ �
December 31, 2009 $ 19.90 $ 16.70 $ �

 For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Stock price Cash
distributions

declaredPeriod Ended High Low
March 31, 2010 $ 17.34 $ 15.94 $ �
June 30, 2010 $ 17.90 $ 15.82 $ �
September 30, 2010 $ 18.02 $ 15.68 $ 0.35
December 31, 2010 $ 18.25 $ 17.12 $ 0.84
        We intend to pay quarterly dividends and to distribute to our shareholders at least 90% of our taxable income in each year (subject to
certain adjustments). This will enable us to qualify for the tax benefits accorded to a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. We have not
established a minimum dividend payment level and our ability to pay dividends may be adversely affected for the reasons described in Item 1A
of this Report in the section entitled Risk Factors. All distributions will be made at the discretion of our board of trustees and will depend on our
earnings, our financial condition, maintenance of our REIT status and such other factors as our board of trustees may deem relevant from time to
time.

 Equity Compensation Plan Information

        We have adopted an equity incentive plan which provides for the issuance of equity based awards, including share options, restricted
shares, restricted share units, unrestricted common share awards, LTIP units (a special class of partnership interests in our operating partnership)
and other awards based on our shares that may be made by us directly to our officers and trustees, and the members, officers, trustees, directors
and employees of PCM, PLS, or their affiliates and to PCM, PLS and other entities that provide services to us and the employees of such other
entities. The equity incentive plan is administered by our compensation committee, pursuant to authority delegated by our board of trustees,
which has the authority to make awards to the eligible participants referenced above, and to determine what form the awards will take, and the
terms and conditions of the awards. Our equity incentive plan allows for grants of equity-based awards up to an aggregate of 8% of our issued
and outstanding shares on a diluted basis at the time of the award. However, the total number of options available for issuance under the plan
cannot exceed 40 million.
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        The following table provides information as of December 31, 2010 concerning our common shares authorized for issuance under our equity
incentive plan:

Plan category

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,

warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

plans (excluding
securities reflected

in column (a))
Equity
compensation
plans approved by
security
holders(1) 272,984 $ � 1,095,442
Equity
compensation
plans not
approved by
security
holders(2) � � �

Total 272,984 $ � 1,095,442

(1)
Represents our 2009 equity incentive plan.

(2)
We do not have any equity plans that have not been approved by our shareholders.
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 Item 6.    Selected Financial Data

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Condensed Statements of Operations:
Net Investment Income:

Gains on investments $ 27,448 $ 152
Interest income 14,574 2,149
Other income 2,032 �

44,054 2,301

Expenses:
Management fees 4,878 1,981
Loan servicing fees 2,987 �
Compensation 2,627 1,303
Other 6,536 900

17,028 4,184

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes 27,026 (1,883)
Provision for income taxes 2,543 �

Net income (loss) $ 24,483 $ (1,883)

Condensed Balance Sheets:
Investments:

Short-term investment at fair value $ � $ 213,628
Mortgage-backed securities at fair value 119,872 83,771
Mortgage loans at fair value 368,216 26,046
Real estate acquired in settlement of loans 29,685 �

517,773 323,445
Other assets 71,322 1,001

Total assets $ 589,095 $ 324,446

Loans sold under agreements to repurchase $ 147,422 $ �
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at
fair value 101,202 �
Other liabilities 20,558 10,648

Total liabilities 269,182 10,648

Shareholders' equity 319,913 313,798

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 589,095 $ 324,446

Per Share Data:
Earnings (loss):

Basic $ 1.46 $ (0.11)
Diluted $ 1.44 $ (0.11)

Cash distributions:
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Declared $ 1.19 $ �
Paid $ 0.77 $ �

Share price at end of period $ 18.15 $ 17.18
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 Item 7.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

        This discussion includes forward-looking statements concerning future events and performance of the Company, which are subject to
certain risks and uncertainties as discussed above in the section entitled Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and in Item 1A of
this Report, entitled Risk Factors.

Overview

        We are a specialty finance company that invests primarily in residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets. Our objective is to
provide attractive risk-adjusted returns to our investors over the long-term, primarily through dividends and secondarily through capital
appreciation. We intend to achieve this objective primarily by investing in mortgage loans, a substantial portion of which may be distressed and
acquired at discounts to their unpaid principal balances. We seek to acquire these loans through direct acquisitions of mortgage loan portfolios
from institutions such as depository institutions, mortgage companies and insurance companies and direct acquisitions or participations in
structured transactions. A significant portion of the loans purchased in 2010 are nonperforming and were acquired from one major financial
institution.

        We seek to maximize the value of the mortgage loans that we acquire using means that are appropriate for the particular loan, including
loan modification programs such as HAMP, special servicing and other initiatives focused on avoiding foreclosure, when possible. When we are
unable to effect a cure for a mortgage delinquency, our objective is to effect timely acquisition and/or liquidation of the property securing the
loan. We supplement these activities through participation in other mortgage-related activities, which are in various states of analysis, planning
or implementation including:

�
acquisition and sale or securitization of mortgage loans, including jumbo loans, in a conduit capacity between originators of
mortgage loans and the Agency and securitization markets. Changes in the mortgage market have significantly reduced the
outlets for sales of mortgage loans by smaller mortgage originators who have traditionally sold their loans to larger mortgage
companies and banks who, in turn, sold those loans to Agencies or into securitizations. We believe these changes provide us
with the opportunity to act as a conduit between these loan originators and the Agency and securitization markets. During
the year ended December 31, 2010, we purchased loans with fair values totaling $30.1 million in furtherance of our conduit
strategy. To the extent that we transfer conduit loans into securitizations in the future, we intend to retain a portion of the
securities created in the securitization transaction.

�
acquisition of MSRs. We believe that opportunities exist to acquire MSRs from liquidating and other institutions. We also
believe that MSR investments would allow PMT to capture attractive current returns and to leverage the capabilities and
efficiencies of our Servicer to improve the asset's value. We intend to retain the MSRs that we receive as a portion of the
proceeds from our sale or securitization of mortgage loans through our correspondent lending operation.

�
acquisition of REIT-eligible MBS. We believe that the recent dislocations of the residential mortgage markets have
disproportionately affected the pricing of certain classes of MBS, thereby providing attractive investment opportunities in
certain residential and commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Such securities include securities backed
by Alt-A and subprime mortgage loans. Our portfolio of MBS amounted to $119.9 million and $83.8 million at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

�
providing inventory financing of mortgage loans for smaller mortgage originators. We believe this activity will supplement
and make our conduit capacity more attractive to lenders from which we acquire newly originated loans.
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�
underwriting and funding of mortgage loans sourced by financial intermediaries.

�
acquisition of distressed commercial loans or residential real estate.

        We are externally managed by PCM, an investment adviser that specializes in, and focuses on, residential mortgage loans.

        We conduct substantially all of our operations, and make substantially all of our investments, through our operating partnership and its
subsidiaries. Our wholly-owned subsidiary is the sole general partner, and we are the sole limited partner of our operating partnership.

        We believe that we qualify to be taxed as a REIT. We believe that we will not be subject to federal income tax on that portion of our
income that is distributed to shareholders as long as we meet certain asset, income and share ownership tests. If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and
do not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, our profits will be subject to income taxes and we may be precluded from qualifying as a
REIT for the four tax years following the year we lose our REIT qualification. A portion of the Company's activities are conducted in a TRS
subsidiary, which is subject to corporate federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, the Company has made a provision for income taxes with
respect to the operations of its TRS. We expect that the effective rate for the provisions for income taxes will be volatile in future periods. Our
goal is to manage the business to take full advantage of the tax benefits afforded to the Company as a REIT.

Observations on Current Market Opportunities

        The U.S. economy continues its pattern of modest growth, with economic data providing mixed reports on the economic recovery. During
2010, the U.S. gross domestic product expanded at a 2.8% annual rate compared to a 2.6% contraction during 2009. While the economy has
turned to growth from contraction, its growth has not been strong enough to improve the employment market. The December 2010
unemployment rate of 9.4% marked the twentieth consecutive month of unemployment rates at or above 9%, a rate that is high by recent
historical standards. High unemployment levels are reflected in increasing personal and business bankruptcy filings as well as high delinquency
and foreclosure rates on residential mortgage loans.

        These conditions have contributed to continuing distress in the banking industry. During 2010, 157 depository institutions were seized,
compared to 140 in 2009. As of December 31, 2010, the number of problem banks as identified by the FDIC increased to 884 from 702 at
December 31, 2009.

        Thirty-year mortgage interest rates ranged from 4.17% to 5.21% during 2010. Interest rates generally rose during the last two months of
2010 from their year-low of 4.17% to 4.86% for the week ended December 31, 2010 (Source: Freddie Mac's Weekly Primary Mortgage Market
Survey).

        Our Manager continues to see substantial volumes of nonperforming residential mortgage loan sales by a limited number of sellers, but
very few sales of troubled but performing loans. During the year ended December 31, 2010 we made acquisitions of mortgage loans totaling
$417.2 million. After December 31, 2010, PCM committed to acquire on our behalf, mortgage loans with an estimated fair value of
$297.4 million, of which $52.8 million is pending acquisition as of the date of this Report. The pending transactions are subject to changes in the
loans allocated to us by PCM, continuing due diligence and customary closing conditions. There can be no assurance that the committed
amounts will ultimately be acquired or that the transactions will be completed at all. These acquisitions and commitments are primarily from one
seller. We expect that our mortgage loan portfolio may continue to grow at an uneven pace, as opportunities to acquire distressed mortgage loans
may be irregularly timed and may involve large portfolios of mortgage loans, and the timing and extent of our success in acquiring such
mortgage loans, along with availability of capital to complete such transactions cannot be predicted. During the year ended December 31, 2010,
we also made acquisitions of MBS totaling
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$91.1 million to supplement our investments in distressed mortgage loans and to ensure compliance with the REIT tax regulations relating to our
asset composition.

        We believe that changes in the mortgage markets have significantly reduced the outlets for sale of mortgage loans by smaller mortgage
originators who have traditionally sold their loans to larger mortgage companies and banks who, in turn, transferred these loans into
securitizations. We believe these changes provide us with the opportunity to act as a conduit between these loan originators and the
securitization markets. Under current market conditions, these opportunities include the purchase from smaller mortgage lenders of newly
originated jumbo mortgage loans that are eligible for sale to a GSE, and the purchase of newly originated mortgage loans that can be resold in
the non-Agency whole loan market or, to the extent the market continues to improve, securitized in the private label market. We believe that this
strategy would also benefit us by supplementing PCM's continuing efforts to increase the number of relationships with depository and other
financial institutions that may hold distressed residential mortgage loans. During the year ended December 31, 2010, our Manager made
acquisitions on our behalf of $30.1 million in fair value of newly originated mortgage loans.

        We benefit from PCM's analytical and portfolio management expertise and technology in evaluating these investment opportunities.
Furthermore, we seek to maximize the value of the mortgage loans we acquire using PCM's proprietary portfolio strategy techniques to identify
the appropriate approach for each loan and, through the workout oriented servicing platform of PLS, offer borrowers alternatives, including,
where appropriate, the modification of the terms and conditions of loans in a manner that reflects the borrowers' financial condition and
residential property values. Mortgage loans may become re-performing through effective modification, restructuring and other techniques, and
the mortgage loans subsequently may be monetized through a variety of disposition strategies. When we are unable to effect a cure for a
mortgage delinquency, as is the case with a significant percentage of nonperforming loans, our objective is to effect timely acquisition and/or
liquidation of the property securing the loan.

        PCM is presently targeting the following sources of investment opportunities for us:

�
direct acquisitions of mortgage loan portfolios from institutions such as banks, mortgage companies and insurance
companies;

�
acquisitions of REIT-eligible MBS;

�
our mortgage conduit whereby we will acquire newly originated loans from small mortgage lenders, pool those loans into
MBS, sell the resulting securities into the MBS markets and invest in the MSRs and certain securities created in the
securitization transactions; and

�
pursuing investments in MSRs from liquidating and other entities. MSRs reflect the value of the future stream of expected
cash flows from the contractual rights to service a given pool of mortgage loans. We believe investments in MSRs would
allow us to capture attractive current returns by utilizing the capabilities and efficiencies of PLS.

        Direct Acquisitions.    We believe that many holders of residential mortgage loans, such as banks, mortgage companies and insurance
companies, are motivated to reduce certain of their holdings, creating opportunities to acquire loan portfolios at significant discounts. We believe
that we are well positioned to leverage the relationships of PennyMac and its strategic investors to capitalize on these potential investment
opportunities through direct dialogue with the financial institution holders, as well as with a diverse group of financial intermediaries, ranging
from primary broker-dealers, major investment banks and brokerage firms to leading mortgage originators, specialty investment dealers and
financial sponsors.

        Acquisition of REIT-Eligible Mortgage-Backed Securities.    We believe that the recent dislocations of the residential mortgage markets has
disproportionately affected the pricing of certain classes of MBS,
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thereby providing attractive investment opportunities in certain residential and commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Such
securities include securities backed by Alt-A and subprime mortgage loans.

        Acquisition and Sale or Securitization of Loans in a Conduit Capacity.    Current market conditions have significantly reduced the outlets
for sales of mortgage loans by smaller mortgage originators who have traditionally sold their loans to larger mortgage companies and banks
who, in turn, sold those loans to Agencies or into securitizations. We believe these conditions provide us with the opportunity to act as a conduit
between these loan originators and the Agency and securitization markets.

        We have introduced our conduit operations by initially limiting our purchases of mortgage loans to government loans and
Agency-conforming and jumbo conventional loans underwritten to Agency standards. We presently limit our activity to a small number of
customers with whom management has long-standing experience. We also engage third-party vendors to perform compliance, underwriting and
appraisal reviews. We believe this approach allows us to profitably enter the conduit marketplace and build our capacity to provide service to
conduit customers while limiting both our counterparty risk and our liquidity risk with respect to the loan products we acquire and resell into the
capital markets.

        Acquisitions of MSRs.    We believe that opportunities exist to acquire MSRs from liquidating and other institutions. MSR investments
would allow PMT to capture attractive current returns and to leverage the capabilities and efficiencies of our Servicer to improve the asset's
value.

Reporting Metrics and Prospective Trends

        We expect our results of operations to be affected by various factors, many of which are beyond our control. Generally, we expect that our
mortgage loan portfolio may grow at an uneven pace, as opportunities to acquire distressed mortgage loans may be irregularly timed and may
involve large portfolios of loans, and the timing and extent of our success in acquiring such loans cannot be predicted.

        Following the acquisition of a mortgage loan portfolio, our income may be negatively affected by our loan modifications to the extent that
the loan modifications reduce the principal amount or stated interest rates on loans and thereby reduce interest income; by our foreclosures on
loans where PennyMac is unable to modify the loans on acceptable terms; and by other losses on defaulted loans. We expect that these activities
will primarily commence in the first periods after we acquire a portfolio.

        Our primary sources of income are from realized gain or loss on the sale of mortgage loans, real estate or securities, unrealized appreciation
or depreciation on loans and MBS, and net interest income.

        Realized Gain or Loss.    When we sell our mortgage loans, real estate or securities, we record a gain or loss which is determined by the
nature and terms of the disposition transaction. When a mortgage loan is satisfied through a full or partial payoff, the amount of gain or loss
recorded represents the difference between the amount received and the fair value of the loan at the beginning of the month in which the payoff
is received. Gain or loss on the sale of real estate acquired in settlement of loans is determined by the difference between the net proceeds and
the carrying value of the property at the date the property is sold.
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        We are generally not in a position to dispose of our mortgage loans following modification until adequate time has passed to establish a
satisfactory payment history. As a result, our ability to realize gain on our modified loans is correspondingly deferred and our initial periods of
operations have not included material levels of disposition transactions with regard to modified loans. In addition, as a result of our fair value
accounting, in the event of a loan modification, we record a realized gain (or loss) to the extent that the fair value of the modified loan exceeded
(or was less than) the fair value of the loan before modification.

        The gain or loss we realize on the sale or securitization of loans acquired through our conduit activities is determined by the price paid for
the loans, the effectiveness of any hedging and other risk management activities we undertake, the sales price of the loan, changes in interest
rates and the value of any MSRs received in the transaction. Certain of these factors are beyond our control.

        Unrealized Gain or Loss.    Many of our assets, including our mortgage loans and securities, are carried at fair value. Accordingly, changes
in the fair value affect the results of our operations for the period in which such change in value occurs, and these changes may be material. The
expectation of changes in home prices is a major determinant of the value of residential mortgage loans. This factor is beyond our control.

        Net Interest Income.    Interest income represents interest earned on our residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related assets. We
anticipate that the primary contributing elements of our interest income (some of which are beyond our control) will be the size of our mortgage
loan and securities portfolio, the timing of purchases and prices paid for such assets, the level and changes of interest rates, prepayment speeds
and the payment performance of borrowers.

        We expect that interest expense will be driven by the size of our mortgage loan and securities portfolio, the leverage employed and
borrowing rates. Borrowing rates in turn will be dependent on market conditions, which are beyond our control, as well as the specific debt
vehicle employed and the terms we are able to negotiate.

        Expenses.    We incur management and incentive fees payable to PCM that are determined based upon our equity and profitability, among
other factors. We also incur loan servicing, origination and other fees payable to PLS that are determined by the size of our mortgage loan
portfolio, the characteristics of our loans and the volumes of property resolution events, loan modifications and refinancing and conduit
acquisitions, among other factors. We also incur ongoing operating and administrative expenses necessary to conduct our business. In
connection with investigating portfolios for acquisition, we are obligated to reimburse PCM's upfront expenses related to due diligence, credit
and collateral evaluation and the costs to board the loans onto PCM's and PLS's systems. In some cases, these costs may not be recoverable from
the selling party if PCM's bidding efforts are not successful.

Other Factors Influencing Our Results

        Prepayment Speeds.    Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the constant prepayment rate, vary according to interest rates, the type of
investment, conditions in the financial markets, competition and other factors, none of which can be predicted with any certainty. In general,
when interest rates rise, it is relatively less attractive for borrowers to refinance their mortgage loans and, as a result, prepayment speeds tend to
decrease. This can extend the period over which we earn interest income. When interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend to increase, thereby
decreasing the period over which we earn interest income.

        Rising Interest Rate Environment.    Rising interest rates increase our financing costs which may result in a net negative impact on our net
interest income. With respect to our future floating rate investments, such interest rate increases should result in increases in our net interest
income because
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our floating rate assets will likely be greater in amount than the related floating rate liabilities. Similarly, such an increase in interest rates should
generally result in an increase in our net interest income on future fixed-rate investments made by us because our fixed-rate assets would be
greater in amount than our fixed-rate liabilities. We expect, however, that our fixed-rate assets would decline in value in a rising interest rate
environment and that our net interest spreads on fixed rate assets could decline in a rising interest rate environment to the extent such assets are
financed with floating rate debt.

        Changing Home Prices.    The state of the real estate market/ home prices will determine proceeds from sale of real estate acquired in
settlement of loans. While we make extensive efforts at anticipating real estate price trends and estimate those trends' effects on the valuations of
our portfolios of mortgage loans and real estate acquired in settlement of loans, future real estate values are subject to influences beyond our
control. Generally rising home prices are expected to positively affect our results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans. Conversely,
declining real estate prices are expected to negatively affect our results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans. Likewise, expectations of
rising home prices generally positively influence our estimates of the fair value of our nonperforming mortgage loans and declining home prices
generally negatively influence our estimates of the fair value of our nonperforming mortgage loans. We cannot predict future home prices with
any certainty.

        Risk Management Effectiveness�Credit Risk.    We are subject to the risk of potential credit losses on all of the residential mortgage loans we
hold in our portfolio, particularly those that are nonperforming. Additionally, we may purchase all classes of certain RMBS securities for the
purpose of maintaining our exclusion from the Investment Company Act, and thereby will have the credit exposure on all of the loans
underlying these RMBS. Before the purchase of these securities, we intend to conduct due diligence that allows us to identify loans that do not
meet our credit standards based on loan-to-value ratios, borrowers' credit scores, income and asset documentation and other criteria that we
believe to be important indications of credit risk. In the event that we identify such loans, we intend to either price the securities to our
expectation of value or decline to purchase the RMBS.

        Risk Management Effectiveness�Interest Rate Risk.    Since changes in interest rates may significantly affect our activities, our operating
results will depend, in large part, upon our ability to effectively manage interest rate risks and prepayment risks while maintaining our status as a
REIT and our exclusion from the Investment Company Act.

        Size of Investment Portfolio.    The size of our investment portfolio, as measured by the aggregate unpaid principal balance of our mortgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mortgage-related securities and the other assets we own will also be a key revenue driver.
Generally, as the size of our investment portfolio grows, the amount of interest income we receive will increase. The larger investment portfolio,
however, will drive increased expenses, including servicing and related fees payable to PLS. We may also incur additional interest expense to
finance the purchase of our assets.

Critical Accounting Policies

        We have identified what we believe are our most critical accounting policies to be the following:

Valuation of Financial Instruments

        We have elected to record our financial assets at fair value and group them in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets are
traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:

�
Level 1�Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
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�
Level 2�Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs that other market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the Company. These may include quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others

�
Level 3�Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices or observable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little or no market activity for an investment at the end of the period), unobservable
inputs may be used. Unobservable inputs reflect our own assumptions about the factors that market participants use in
pricing an asset or liability, and are based on the best information available in the circumstances. Most of our assets are
valued using Level 3 inputs.

Mortgage Loans

        Fair value of mortgage loans is estimated based on whether the mortgage loans are saleable into active markets with established
counterparties and transparent pricing. Loans that are not saleable into active markets are categorized as "Level 3" fair value financial statement
items, and their fair values are estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model. Inputs to the model include current interest rates, loan
amount, payment status and property type, and forecasts of future interest rates, home prices, prepayment speeds, defaults and loss severities.
Mortgage loans that are saleable into active markets are categorized as "Level 2" fair value financial statement items and their fair values are
estimated using their quoted market price or market price equivalent.

        Management incorporates lack of liquidity into its fair value estimates based on the type of asset or liability measured and the valuation
method used. For example, for mortgage loans where the significant inputs have become unobservable due to illiquidity in the markets for
distressed mortgage loans or non-Agency, non-conforming mortgage loans, we use a discounted cash flow technique to estimate fair value. This
technique incorporates forecasting of expected cash flows discounted at an appropriate market discount rate that is intended to reflect the lack of
liquidity in the market.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

        Non-Agency MBS are categorized as "Level 3" fair value financial statement items. Fair value of non-Agency MBS is estimated using
broker indications of value. For indications of value received as of December 31, 2010, PCM's Capital Markets staff reviewed, and its senior
management Valuation Committee reviewed and approved, the securities' values. PCM's review is for the purpose of evaluating the
reasonableness of the broker's indication of value and may result in the broker modifying its indications of value. PCM does not intend to adjust
its fair value estimates to amounts different from the broker's indications of value.

Loans and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

        The accounting for loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase is based on management's designation of the individual
transactions for accounting under the fair value option. The valuation of loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase is based on the
accrued cost of the agreements, under both the amortized cost and fair value options which approximates fair value, due to the agreements' short
maturities. When the fair value option is selected for a repurchase facility, direct costs of obtaining the facility are expensed as incurred. When
the amortized cost option is selected, direct costs of obtaining the facility are deferred and amortized to interest expense over the commitment
period of the respective facility.
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Real Estate Acquired in Settlement of Loans

        Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is measured based on its fair value on a nonrecurring basis and is categorized as a "Level 3" fair
value financial statement item. Fair value of real estate acquired in settlement of loans is determined by management using a current estimate of
value that is based on a broker's price opinion or a full appraisal. Changes in fair value and gains and losses on sale of real estate acquired in
settlement of loans is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations under the caption Results of real estate acquired in settlement of
loans.

Investment Consolidation

        We evaluate every investment with reference to the underlying entity that issued the loans or securities we acquire to determine whether to
include the investment in our consolidated reporting group. We perform a similar analysis for each entity with which we make an agreement for
management, servicing or similar services. Where voting rights do not effectively identify the investor with a controlling financial interest, the
entity is classified as a variable interest entity ("VIE"). With certain exceptions, VIEs are subject to consolidation if the investors do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support, or are unable to direct the entity's
activities or are not exposed to the entity's losses or entitled to its residual returns. VIEs are consolidated by the entity that is deemed the primary
beneficiary of the VIE as indicated by the entity that has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impacts its
economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the entity. We
did not have variable interests in our affiliated service providers as of December 31, 2010.

Interest Income Recognition

Mortgage Loans

        Interest income on loans is recognized using their contractual interest rates. Accrual of interest earned but not yet collected is suspended
and all previously accrued interest is reversed for loans when they become 90 days delinquent, or when, in management's opinion, a full
recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful. Accrual of interest is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current. All changes in
fair value due to application of the fair value option, including changes arising from the passage of time, are recognized as a component of Gains
on Investments�Mortgage Loans.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

        Interest income on MBS is recognized over the life of the security using the interest method. Changes in fair value arising from
amortization of purchase premiums and accrual of unearned discounts are recognized as a component of interest income. We estimate, at the
time of purchase, the future expected cash flows and determine the effective interest rate based on these estimated cash flows and our purchase
price. We update our estimates of future cash flows monthly. In estimating these cash flows, there are a number of assumptions that are subject
to uncertainties. These include the rate and timing of principal payments (including prepayments, repurchases, defaults and liquidations), the
pass-through or coupon rate, interest rate fluctuations, interest payment shortfalls due to delinquencies on the underlying mortgage loans, the
likelihood of modification and the timing of the magnitude of credit losses on the mortgage loans underlying the securities. These estimates are
difficult to predict and are subject to future events that may affect the realization of our estimates and interest income.
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Income Taxes

        We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and management believes the Company complies with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
applicable to REITs. Accordingly, management believes the Company will not be subject to federal income tax on that portion of its REIT
taxable income that is distributed to shareholders as long as certain asset, income and share ownership tests are met. If PMT fails to qualify as a
REIT, and does not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, it will be subject to income taxes and may be precluded from qualifying as a
REIT for the four tax years following the year of loss of the Company's REIT qualification.

        Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to federal and state income taxes. Income taxes are provided for using the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which management expects those temporary differences to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which the change occurs. Subject to
management's judgment, a valuation allowance is established if realization of deferred tax assets is not more likely than not. Management
recognizes tax benefits relating to tax positions it takes only if it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination by
the appropriate taxing authority. A tax position that meets this standard is recognized as the largest amount that exceeds 50 percent likelihood of
being realized upon settlement. We will classify any penalties and interest as a component of income tax expense.

Results of Operations Comparison�Year Ended December 31, 2010 ("2010") and the Period from August 4, 2009 (Commencement of
Operations) to December 31, 2009 ("2009")

        The following is a summary of our key performance measures for the periods presented:

2010 2009
(in thousands, except

per share data)
Net investment income $ 44,054 $ 2,301
Net income (loss) $ 24,483 $ (1,883)
Earnings (loss) per
share:

Basic $ 1.46 $ (0.11)
Diluted $ 1.44 $ (0.11)

Distributions per share:
Declared $ 1.19 $ �
Paid $ 0.77 $ �

Total assets at period
end $ 589,095 $ 324,446
        During 2010, we recorded net income of $24.5 million, or $1.44 per diluted share. Our net income reflects net gains on our investments
totaling $27.4 million, including $10.8 million of valuation gains, supplemented by $14.6 million of interest income, and gains on real estate
operations of $2.0 million. Our net income for 2010 does not include provision for approximately $500,000 of common overhead costs relating
to the quarter ended March 31, 2010 that were otherwise due to PCM because PCM waived recovery of such costs through the first quarter of
2010 as discussed below.

        During 2009, our operations were limited to investment of proceeds of our IPO into our short-term investment and purchase of certain
short-lived MBS pending reinvestment of the proceeds into our targeted asset classes. The net loss of $1.9 million, or eleven cents per diluted
share reflects the low yield on the temporary investments held pending investments in our targeted asset classes that did not offset the
management fees and other expenses incurred during the period. The net loss does
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not include provision for reimbursement by PCM of $771,000 of common overhead costs allowable under our management agreement with
PCM.

        PCM management waived recovery of common overhead during our startup period through March 31, 2010. From March 31, 2010, PCM
has not waived, and we believe that PCM does not intend to waive in the future, recovery of common overhead costs. Our results for the year
ended December 31, 2010 include provision for reimbursement of $1.4 million of common overhead expenses.

Asset Acquisitions

        Following is a summary of our acquisitions of mortgage investments for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from August 4, 2009
(commencement of operations)

to December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Mortgage-backed
securities $ 91,141 $ 93,049
Distressed mortgage
loans(1)(2)(3)

Performing 33,745 26,046
Nonperforming 383,466 �

417,211 26,046

Real estate acquired in
settlement of loans 1,238 �

$ 509,590 $ 119,095

(1)
Performance status as of the date of acquisition.

(2)
$407.0 million of our distressed asset purchases during the year ended December 31, 2010 and subsequent purchases through the date
of this Report totaling $244.6 million were acquired from one large financial institution. The Company also has a pending purchase in
the amount of $34.0 million from that institution as of the date of this Report. The pending transaction is subject to continuing due
diligence and customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance that the committed amount will ultimately be acquired or
that the transaction will be completed at all.

(3)
Amount excludes $43.8 million of loans purchased for immediate resale.

        During 2010, we made acquisitions of MBS, mortgage loans and real estate acquired in settlement of loans with fair values of
$91.1 million, $417.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively. As a result, we fully invested the proceeds of our IPO and have since raised
additional equity and used borrowings in the form of secured credit lines and sales of loans and securities under agreements to repurchase to
extend our investment capacity.

        The mortgage loans acquired in 2010 had unpaid principal balances on the purchase dates totaling $799.0 million and purchase discounts
totaling $381.8 million. Approximately 92% of the loans (as a percentage of the loans' fair values) were nonperforming with approximately 58%
of the loans having FICO scores at origination below 700. Approximately 32% of the mortgage loans acquired in 2010 are secured by California
real estate.
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        The MBS acquired in 2010 were backed by subprime loans, were generally rated below investment grade and are currently cashflowing
securities with a remaining expected life of 0.76 years with an expected yield at period-end of 3.83%.

        During 2009, we purchased $93.0 million of MBS and $26.0 million of mortgage loans.
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Net Investment Income

        During 2010, we recorded net investment income totaling $44.1 million, comprised primarily of realized and unrealized gains (losses) on
investments of $27.4 million, supplemented by $14.6 million of interest income, as well as gains on real estate operations of $2.0 million.

        Net investment income on financial instruments during 2010 is shown below:

2010

Interest income Realized
and

unrealized
gains

(losses)Coupon

Accrual
of

unearned
discount Total

Total
revenue

Average
balance

Annualized
interest

%(1)
(dollars in thousands)

Short-term investment $ 86 $ � $ 86 $ � $ 86 $ 66,442 0.13%
Mortgage-backed securities:

Non-Agency Alt-A 1,136 643 1,779 254 2,033 21,383 8.21%
Non-Agency subprime 320 2,606 2,926 (271) 2,655 61,390 4.70%
Non-Agency prime jumbo 443 38 481 250 731 14,242 3.33%

Total mortgage-backed
securities 1,899 3,287 5,186 233 5,419 97,015 5.27%

Mortgage loans 9,302 � 9,302 27,213 36,515 177,097 5.18%

$ 11,287 $ 3,287 $ 14,574 $ 27,446 $ 42,020 $ 340,554 4.22%

(1)
Annualized interest % excludes realized and unrealized gains (losses).

        Net investment income on financial instruments during 2009 is shown below:

2009

Interest Income Realized
and

unrealized
gains

(losses)Coupon

Accrual
of

unearned
discount Total

Total
revenue

Average
balance

Annualized
interest%(1)

(dollars in thousands)
Short-term investment $ 202 $ � $ 202 $ � $ 202 $ 252,387 0.19%
Mortgage-backed securities

Non-Agency Alt-A 540 300 840 226 1,066 23,450 8.59%
Non-Agency subprime 43 784 827 87 914 24,276 8.17%
Non-Agency prime jumbo 212 56 268 (161) 107 15,566 4.13%

Total mortgage-backed
securities 795 1,140 1,935 152 2,087 63,292 7.33%

Mortgage loans 12 � 12 � 12 174 16.45%

$ 1,009 $ 1,140 $ 2,149 $ 152 $ 2,301 $ 315,853 1.63%
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        The effects of changes in the composition of our investments on our interest income during the 2010 versus 2009 are summarized below:

2010 vs. 2009
Increase (decrease)
due to changes in

Length of
period Rate Volume

Total
change

(in thousands)
Short-term investment $ 289 $ (118) $ (287) $ (116)
Mortgage-backed securities

Non-Agency Alt-A 1,203 (66) (198) 939
Non-Agency subprime 1,186 (1,086) 1,999 2,099
Non-Agency prime jumbo 383 (113) (57) 213

Total mortgage-backed securities 2,772 (1,265) 1,744 3,251

Mortgage loans(1) � � 9,290 9,290

$ 3,061 $ (1,383) $ 10,747 $ 12,425

(1)
Since we made our initial investment in mortgage loans on December 31, 2009, we recognized only $12,000 of interest income
relating to mortgage loans in 2009. Therefore, for purposes of this analysis, all of the change in interest income during 2010 is
attributed to increase in volume.

        In 2010, we reinvested our short-term investment into our targeted asset classes, resulting in a substantial decrease in interest income from
this investment. During 2009, most of our investments were held in this investment, a money market fund, which is managed by a strategic
investor in the parent company of PCM. This investment was made pending identification and acquisition of higher yielding investments in our
targeted asset classes.

        In 2010 we earned interest income of $5.2 million and recognized net fair value gains totaling $233,000 on our portfolio of MBS. During
2010, we purchased $91.1 million of MBS, increasing our average investment in MBS by $33.7 million. This increase contributed a $1.7 million
increase to interest income. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in yields of these securities from 7.33% to 5.27%. Both the decrease
in yield on MBS and appreciation in the securities' fair values were primarily due to increased demand for non-Agency MBS in the marketplace
that is not presently being matched by increased securitization volumes. Gains on MBS were the result of valuation changes as we did not sell
any MBS during 2009 or 2010.

        At December 31, 2010, our portfolio of MBS was comprised of currently cash flowing securities with an average yield at period-end of
5.00% and an estimated remaining life of approximately 0.93 years. We acquired our current portfolio of MBS initially as a short-term
investment to enhance the yield we earn on our investments pending reinvestment of the proceeds of our initial equity offerings into our targeted
asset classes. We have continued to invest in MBS as a complement to our investments in mortgage loans and as a means of ensuring our
compliance with REIT tax regulations governing our asset composition.

        In 2010 we recognized annualized interest of 5.18% on our portfolio of mortgage loans as measured by the portfolio's average fair value. At
December 31, 2010, approximately 76% of our portfolio of mortgages was nonperforming. We do not accrue interest on nonperforming loans
and generally do not recognize revenues during the period we hold real estate acquired in settlement of loans.
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        The revenue benefits of nonperforming loans and real estate acquired in settlement of loans generally take longer to realize than those of
performing loans due to the time required to work with borrowers to resolve payment issues through our modification programs or to acquire
and liquidate the property securing the mortgage loans. The value and returns we realize from these assets are determined by our ability to cure
the borrowers' defaults, or when curing of borrower defaults is not a viable solution, by our ability to effectively manage the liquidation process.
As a participant in HAMP, we are required to comply with the process specified by the HAMP program before liquidating a loan, which may
extend the liquidation process. At December 31, 2010, we held $278.0 million in fair value of nonperforming loans and $29.7 million in carrying
value of real estate acquired in settlement of loans.

        Gains on mortgage loans are summarized below for the periods presented:

2010 2009
(in thousands)

Payoffs $ 12,036 $ �
Valuation changes 10,770 �
Sales 4,407 �

$ 27,213 $ �

        The purchase price of loans that were resolved during 2010 (either through payoff, sale or liquidation of the collateral) was $63.5 million.
The proceeds for the period from acquisition through the resolution event of such loans was $78.5 million. Proceeds include all principal,
interest or sales-related amounts received from the loan or real estate acquired in settlement of the loan after its acquisition regardless of the
period in which proceeds were received. This measure excludes other loan revenues, as well as expenses associated with the settled loans, and
allocations of indirect costs or servicing costs related to management or resolution of the assets.

        Due to factors including the relative newness of these investments to us and the volatility of the market, we can provide no assurance that
the cash received on settled loans is indicative of future cash receipts on our existing mortgage investments or on future investments in
mortgage-related assets.

        In 2010 we recorded a loss of $2,000 on the sale of $25.2 million in unpaid principal balance of mortgage loans relating to our conduit
activities. We also recorded net gains of $2.0 million in results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans.

Expenses

        Our expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 and for the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to
December 31, 2009 are summarized below:

2010 2009
(in thousands)

Management fees $ 4,878 $ 1,981
Loan servicing fees 2,987 �
Compensation 2,627 1,303
Professional services 2,581 471
Interest 826 �
Insurance 776 328
Other 2,353 101

Total expenses $ 17,028 $ 4,184

59

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

70



Table of Contents

        Growth in expenses for 2010 reflect the full-year effect of 2010 versus the partial-year initial period of expenses in 2009, and growth in the
Company. Professional services expense increased disproportionately with the increase in the 2010 period due to our heightened efforts to
identify mortgage investments and related efforts to identify and put in place financing for such investments during the year. The introduction of
servicing fees expense during 2010 reflects the Company's lack of a portfolio of mortgage loans during 2009. $1.4 million of reimbursement of
common overhead expenses are also included in the total for 2010. PCM has not waived, and we believe that PCM does not intend to waive in
the future, its claims to reimbursement of common overhead expenses incurred after March 31, 2010.

Investment Portfolio Composition

        Our portfolio of MBS is backed by non-Agency subprime, Alt-A and prime jumbo loans and consists of currently cash flowing senior
priority securities with an average remaining life of approximately 0.93 years. We acquired these securities to supplement our investments in
mortgage loans and to ensure compliance with the REIT tax regulations relating to our asset composition.

        The following is a summary of our portfolio of MBS as of the dates presented:

December 31, 2010

Average

Fair value Principal
Life

(in years) Coupon Yield
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Security collateral type:
Non-Agency subprime $ 93,783 $ 96,653 0.82 0.51% 4.46%
Non-Agency Alt-A 15,824 16,282 1.48 5.35% 9.19%
Non-Agency prime jumbo 10,265 10,240 1.12 2.90% 3.51%

$ 119,872 $ 123,175 0.93 1.35% 5.00%

December 31, 2009

Average
Fair
value Principal

Life
(in years) Coupon Yield

(dollar amounts in thousands)
Security collateral type:

Non-Agency subprime $ 39,522 $ 41,944 0.82 0.37% 9.08%
Non-Agency Alt-A 27,060 28,416 1.57 5.13% 9.08%
Non-Agency prime jumbo 17,189 17,452 1.42 3.43% 4.34%

$ 83,771 $ 87,812 1.18 2.52% 8.11%

        At December 31, 2009, our mortgage loan portfolio had no nonperforming loans. Primarily because of our acquisitions in 2010, 76% of our
non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio is
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now comprised of nonperforming loans. Following is a summary of the distribution of our non-correspondent lending mortgage loans at fair
value at December 31, 2010:

Performing loans Nonperforming loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Loan type Fair value % total

Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Fixed $ 49,444 14% 6.86% $ 105,669 29% 7.17%
ARM/Hybrid 31,916 9% 4.68% 171,591 47% 6.13%
Interest rate step-up 4,813 1% 2.43% 247 0% 6.73%
Balloon 69 0% 9.94% 501 0% 7.70%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Lien position Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

1st lien $ 86,238 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%
2nd lien � 0% � 0%
Unsecured 4 0% 0.00% � 0%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Occupancy Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Owner occupied $ 75,049 21% 5.72% $ 213,959 59% 6.53%
Investment property 11,032 3% 5.85% 63,305 17% 6.56%
Other 161 0% 5.39% 744 0% 6.45%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Loan age Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Less than 12 months $ 4 0% 0.00% $ � 0% 0.00%
12 - 35 months 2,210 1% 5.77% 16,596 5% 6.27%
36 - 59 months 46,617 13% 6.21% 154,628 42% 6.80%
60 months or more 37,411 10% 5.06% 106,784 29% 6.10%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Origination FICO score Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Less than 600 $ 20,404 6% 5.66% $ 44,930 12% 6.62%
600 - 649 19,235 5% 5.92% 49,096 13% 6.45%
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650 - 699 20,521 6% 5.77% 78,528 22% 6.18%
700 - 749 20,748 6% 5.55% 70,493 19% 6.30%
750 or greater 5,334 1% 6.38% 34,961 10% 5.94%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%
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Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Current loan-to-value(1) Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Less than 80% $ 21,867 6% 5.94% $ 36,667 10% 6.52%
80% - 99.99% 15,296 4% 6.53% 46,002 13% 6.42%
100% - 119.99% 19,585 6% 5.58% 62,228 17% 6.49%
120% or greater 29,494 8% 5.43% 133,111 36% 6.58%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

(1)
Current loan-to-value is calculated based on the unpaid principal balance of the mortgage loan and our estimate of the value of the
mortgaged property.

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Geographic distribution Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

California $ 20,372 6% 4.75% $ 75,533 21% 5.86%
Florida 5,832 2% 5.31% 35,231 10% 6.59%
New York 5,502 1% 5.32% 20,767 6% 6.89%
Illinois 4,987 1% 5.86% 13,746 4% 6.55%
Other 49,549 14% 5.57% 132,731 35% 6.89%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

Performing loans Nonperforming loans

Payment status Fair value % total
Average
note rate Fair value % total

Average
note rate

Current $ 56,504 16% 5.60% $ � 0%
30 days delinquent 16,274 4% 5.83% � 0%
60 days delinquent 13,464 4% 6.11% � 0%
90 days or more delinquent � 0% 115,586 32% 6.44%
In foreclosure � 0% 162,422 44% 6.60%

$ 86,242 24% 5.73% $ 278,008 76% 6.54%

        Following is a summary of the distribution of our mortgage loan holdings at December 31, 2009, all of which were considered performing
loans:

Loan type Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Fixed $ 24,533 94% 8.15%
ARM/Hybrid 1,454 6% 7.89%
Balloon 59 0% 9.94%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

Lien position Fair value % total
Average
note rate
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1st lien $ 26,046 100% 8.14%
2nd lien � 0%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%
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Occupancy Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Owner occupied $ 21,890 84% 8.10%
Investment property 4,156 16% 8.32%
Second property � 0%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

Loan age Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Less than 12 months $ 121 0% 5.54%
12 - 36 months 25,466 98% 8.15%
36 - 60 months 459 2% 8.13%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

Origination FICO score Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Less than 600 $ 8,174 31% 8.58%
600 - 649 8,702 33% 8.23%
650 - 699 6,111 24% 7.88%
700 - 749 2,260 9% 7.12%
750 or greater 799 3% 6.77%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

Current loan-to-value(1) Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Less than 80% $ 3,587 14% 7.96%
80% - 99.99% 5,401 21% 8.37%
100% - 119.99% 6,669 25% 8.19%
120% or greater 10,389 40% 8.07%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

(1)
Current loan-to-value is calculated based on the unpaid principal balance of the mortgage loan and our estimate of the value of the
mortgaged property.

Geographic distribution Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Illinois $ 2,346 9% 8.11%
California 2,155 8% 6.57%
Arizona 1,922 7% 7.47%
Texas 1,866 7% 7.98%
Maryland 1,582 6% 8.02%
Florida 1,495 6% 7.69%
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Other 14,680 57% 8.55%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

63

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

77



 Table of Contents

Payment status Fair value % total
Average
note rate

Current $ 24,057 92% 8.13%
30 days delinquent 1,360 5% 8.26%
60 days delinquent 629 3% 8.23%
90 days or more delinquent � 0%
In foreclosure � 0%

$ 26,046 100% 8.14%

        Following is a summary of the geographic concentrations by state of our portfolio of real estate acquired in settlement of loans as of the
dates presented:

December 31, 2009

December 31, 2010

Fair valueFair value % total % total
California $ 11,078 37% $ � 0%
Florida 2,291 8% � 0%
Arizona 1,659 6% � 0%
Michigan 1,263 4% � 0%
Maryland 1,220 4% � 0%
Other 12,174 41% � 0%

$ 29,685 100% $ � 0%

Cash Flows

        Our cash flows resulted in a net increase in cash of $45.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2010. The positive cash flows arose
primarily due to cash provided by financing activities exceeding cash used by investing and operating activities. Cash used by operating
activities totaled $22.8 million during 2010. This use of cash was primarily due to the cash requirements related to the growth in our balance
sheet accounts relating to our operations.

        Net cash used by investing activities was $167.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. This use of cash reflects the conversion of
our short-term investment to mortgage loans and MBS, with additional purchases financed by loans and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase. We also placed $5.0 million into a pledged cash account to comply with the conditions for approval of our TRS as an approved
seller-servicer for FannieMae and $4.8 million in margin deposits relating to securities sold under agreements to repurchase. The Company
purchased MBS, mortgage loans and real estate acquired in settlement of loans with fair values of $91.1 million, $417.2 million and
$1.2 million, respectively, during 2010. Approximately 60% of the Company's investments (comprised of non-correspondent lending mortgage
loans, MBS and real estate acquired in settlement of loans) were nonperforming assets as of December 31, 2010. Nonperforming assets include
mortgage loans delinquent 90 or more days and real estate acquired in settlement of loans. Accordingly, we expect that these assets will require a
longer period to begin producing cash flow and the timing and amount of cash flows from these assets is less certain than for performing assets.
During the period, we transferred $46.0 million of mortgage loans to real estate acquired in settlement of loans and realized cash proceeds from
the sale of real estate acquired in settlement of loans totaling $19.4 million.

        Net cash provided by financing activities was $235.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. These funds were procured to finance
the acquisition of additional loans and MBS. As discussed below in Liquidity and Capital Resources, our Manager continues to evaluate and
pursue additional sources of financing to provide us with future investing capacity.
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        Cash used by operating activities totaled $1.3 million for 2009. This use of cash was primarily due to the $1.9 million net loss incurred
which included non-cash accrual of unearned discounts on MBS of $1.1 million, partially offset by non-cash compensation expense of $963,000
and an increase in amounts due to affiliates of $1.3 million.

        Net cash used by investing activities was $322.2 million for the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to
December 31, 2009, and was attributable primarily to investment of the cash received from our common share offerings into interest earning
money market assets and to a lesser extent, mortgage loans and short-lived MBS.

        Net cash provided by financing activities for 2009 totaled $323.5 million, due to the initial offerings of shares. Included in the offerings was
an aggregate of $8.8 million in underwriting costs that were either paid on our behalf by PCM or deferred by the underwriters of our IPO
pending realization if, during any full four calendar quarter period during the 24 full calendar quarters after the date of the completion of our
IPO, August 4, 2009, the Company's "core earnings" for such four-quarter period and before the incentive portion of PCM's management fee
equals or exceeds an 8% incentive fee "hurdle rate" (both defined in Note 4�Transactions with Related Parties to the accompanying financial
statements). If this requirement is not satisfied by the end of such 24 calendar quarter period, the Company's obligation to reimburse PCM and to
make the conditional payments of the underwriting discount will terminate. Management has concluded that this contingency is probable of
being met during the 24-quarter period and has recognized a liability for reimbursement to PCM and payment of the contingent underwriting
discount as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

        Our liquidity reflects our ability to meet our current obligations (including our operating expenses and, when applicable, repayments of
maturities of our debt), make investments as our Manager identifies them and make distributions to our shareholders. Our primary source of
liquidity initially was the proceeds from the IPO and concurrent offerings we completed on August 4, 2009.

        Our Manager completed investment of the proceeds from our IPO during the year ended December 31, 2010. We have subsequently
procured short-term borrowing facilities with commitment amounts totaling $425.0 million on mortgage loan repurchase agreements. We also
have securities repurchase agreements that do not have any borrowing limits. Outstanding borrowings against these facilities totaled
$248.6 million at December 31, 2010.

        On February 16, 2011, we issued and sold 9,500,000 common shares in an underwritten public offering and received $163.8 million of
proceeds, after the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses and the reimbursement of certain expenses. On March 3, 2011, we
issued and sold an additional 1,425,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of an over-allotment option by the public offering's underwriters
and received $24.6 million of proceeds after the underwriting discount. We have used and plan to use proceeds from the issuance of these shares
to fund a portion of the purchase price of portfolios of residential mortgage whole loans.

        As we deploy our liquid funds, we expect our primary sources of liquidity to become proceeds from earnings on our investments, proceeds
from sales and repayments on our investments, and proceeds from borrowings and/or additional equity offerings. We believe our current
liquidity is sufficient to meet our short-term liquidity needs.

        We generally need to distribute at least 90% of our taxable income each year (subject to certain adjustments) to our shareholders to qualify
as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. These distribution requirements limit our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase
capital to support our activities.
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        From August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) and continuing through the date of this Report we have invested all of the equity we
raised in our August 4, 2009 initial offerings and made additional investments using proceeds from our subsequent issuances and sales of
common shares on February 16 and March 3, 2011 and our borrowing facilities as summarized below:

(in thousands)
Acquisitions through December 31, 2009 $ 119,095
Purchases during the year ended December 31, 2010:

Mortgage loans, net of subsequent sales(1) 417,211
Mortgage-backed securities 91,141
Real estate acquired in settlement of loans 1,238

Total acquisitions through December 31, 2010 628,685
Acquisitions completed after December 31, 2010 244,585
Commitments pending as of the date of this Report(2) 52,800

Total investments committed through the date of this Report $ 926,070

(1)
Amount excludes $43.8 million of mortgage loans purchased for immediate resale.

(2)
Based on preliminary allocations. The pending transaction is subject to changes in the loans allocated to us by PCM, continuing due
diligence, customary closing conditions and our securing debt financing adequate to fund the acquisition, and there can be no
assurance that the committed amount will ultimately be acquired or that the transaction will be completed at all.

        Our Manager is exploring a variety of additional means of financing our continued growth, including debt financing through bank
warehouse lines of credit, additional repurchase agreements, term financing, securitization transactions and additional equity offerings.
However, there can be no assurance as to how much additional financing capacity such efforts will produce, what form the financing will take or
that such efforts will be successful.

        On November 2, 2010 and December 9, 2010, we entered into two master repurchase agreements, pursuant to which two of our
wholly-owned subsidiaries may sell, and later repurchase, certain distressed assets in an aggregate principal amount of up to $100 million and
$125 million, respectively. The latter of these two agreements was amended on February 25, 2011, pursuant to which the aggregate principal
amount committed for borrowing thereunder was increased from $125 million to $250 million.

        On November 2, 2010, we entered into a master repurchase agreement, pursuant to which our taxable REIT subsidiary may sell, and later
repurchase, newly originated mortgage loans in an aggregate principal amount of up to $75 million.

        As of December 31, 2010, our debt financing consists of short-term borrowings in the form of the sale of securities and mortgage loans
under agreements to repurchase and secured financings relating to real estate acquired in settlement of loans.

�
The transactions relating to securities under agreements to repurchase mature before March 31, 2011 and provide for sale to
major financial institution counterparties of MBS in our investment portfolios at advance rates based on the estimated fair
value of the securities sold. The agreements provide for repurchase by us of the securities at terms of either three weeks or
three months, depending on the facility under which the securities are sold. All transactions maturing before the date of this
Report have been refinanced by renewing the agreements at maturity.
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�
The transactions relating to mortgage loans under agreements to repurchase mature between November 1, 2011 and
December 8, 2011 and provide for sale to major financial institution counterparties based on the estimated fair value of the
mortgage loans sold. The agreements provide for repurchase by us of the mortgage loans at terms of approximately one year.

�
The transaction relating to real estate acquired in settlement of loans is a secured financing that matures in December of
2011 and provides for sale to a major financial institution counterparty at advance rates based on the estimated fair value of
the real estate acquired in settlement of loans.

�
Our debt financing agreements include financial covenants that require us to maintain specified levels of tangible net worth,
limit our ratio of indebtedness to net worth, maintain periodic profitability and specified levels of unrestricted cash, and they
limit our ability to make shareholder distributions in the event of default. The agreements also place similar requirements on
our Servicer as well as requiring that PLS maintain its servicing portfolio at or above a specified level. We believe that we
and the Servicer were in compliance with these covenants as of December 31, 2010.

        At December 31, 2010, we financed all of our MBS of $119.9 million and $329.6 million of mortgage loans, or approximately 87% of our
investments in mortgage loans, MBS and real estate acquired in settlement of loans. Accordingly, repurchase agreements represent a significant
source of funding for our investment portfolio. The amount we are able to borrow under our repurchase agreements is tied to the fair value of the
MBS and mortgage loans securing those agreements. We are subject to margin calls during the period the agreements are outstanding and
therefore may be required to repay a portion of the borrowings before the respective agreements mature if the value of the MBS or mortgage
loans securing those agreements decreases.

        During the year ended December 31, 2010, the average balance outstanding under agreements to repurchase MBS and mortgage loans were
$44.6 million and $6.2 million, respectively, and the maximum daily amount outstanding under the agreements to repurchase MBS and
mortgage loans were $121.0 million and $147.4 million, respectively. The difference between the maximum daily amount outstanding and the
average was due to the repurchase facilities that were utilized only in the month of December in contrast to our continuing financing of
investments during the entire year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Guarantees

        As of the date of this Report, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or guarantees.

Contractual Obligations

        As of the date of this Report, our on-balance sheet contractual obligations are limited to $248.6 million of agreements to repurchase loans
and securities sold with maturities between January 5, 2011 and December 8, 2011. All agreements to repurchase that matured between
December 31, 2010 and the date of this Report have been renewed and are described in Note 11�Loans Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
and Note 12�Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase in the accompanying financial statements.

        As of the date of this Report, we have outstanding commitments to purchase mortgage loans with estimated fair values totaling
$52.8 million. The pending transactions are subject to changes in the loans allocated to us by PCM, continuing due diligence, customary closing
conditions and there can be no assurance that the committed amounts will ultimately be acquired or that the transactions will be completed at all.
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        Management Agreement.    Pursuant to the management agreement between PCM and us, we pay PCM a base management fee and a
performance incentive fee, both payable quarterly and in arrears. The base management fee is calculated at the annual rate of 1.5% of
shareholders' equity. "Shareholders' equity" is defined as the sum of the net proceeds from any issuances of our equity securities since inception
(weighted for the time outstanding during the measurement period); plus our retained earnings at the end of the quarter (without taking into
account any non-cash equity compensation expense incurred in current or prior periods); less any amount we pay for repurchases of our common
shares (weighted for the time held during the measurement period); excluding any unrealized gains, losses or other non-cash items that have
impacted our shareholders' equity as reported in our financial statements, regardless of whether those items are included in other comprehensive
income or loss or net income; and excluding one-time events pursuant to changes in U.S. GAAP and certain other non-cash charges after
discussions between PCM and our independent trustees and approval by a majority of our independent trustees.

        The performance incentive fee is calculated at 20% per year of the amount by which "core earnings," on a rolling four-quarter basis and
before the incentive fee, exceeds an 8% "hurdle rate." "Core earnings," for purposes of determining the amount of the performance incentive fee,
is defined as U.S. GAAP net income (loss) adjusted to exclude non-cash equity compensation expense, unrealized gains and losses or other
non-cash items recognized during the period, any conditional payment amounts relating to our IPO paid to PCM and the underwriters of our
IPO, and certain other non-cash charges after discussions between PCM and our independent trustees and approval by a majority of our
independent trustees. The "hurdle rate" is calculated as the product of (1) the weighted average of the issue price per share of all of our public
offerings multiplied by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (including, for the avoidance of doubt, restricted share units) in the
four-quarter period and (2) 8%. During our first four quarters, core earnings were calculated based on the annualized results of each of the
preceding quarters. For purposes of calculating the incentive fee, to the extent we have a net loss in core earnings from a period prior to the
rolling four-quarter period that has not been offset by core earnings in a subsequent period, such loss will continue to be included in the rolling
four-quarter calculation until it has been fully offset. This term is not applicable for purposes of determining whether the conditional payment of
the underwriting discount is payable.

        Under the management agreement, PCM is entitled to reimbursement of organizational and operating expenses, including third party
expenses, incurred on our behalf. Our reimbursement obligation is not subject to any dollar limitation. Expenses are reimbursed in cash on a
quarterly basis.

        Under the management agreement, PCM may be entitled to a termination fee under certain circumstances. Specifically, the termination fee
is payable for (1) our termination of the management agreement without cause or (2) PCM's termination of the management agreement upon a
default in the performance of any material term of the management agreement. The termination fee is equal to three times (a) the average annual
base management fee and (b) the average annual (or, if the period is less than 24 months, annualized) incentive fee earned by PCM during the
prior 24-month period before termination. Under circumstances where the termination fee is payable, we will agree to pay to PCM its portion of
the conditional payment of the underwriting discount described below.

        Loan Servicing Agreement.    For its services under our loan servicing agreement, PLS is entitled to base servicing fees that are competitive
with those charged by specialty servicers. Base servicing fees are calculated as a percentage of the unpaid principal balance of the mortgage
loans, with the actual percentage being based on the risk characteristics of the loans in a particular pool. Such risk characteristics include market
value of the underlying properties, creditworthiness of the borrowers, seasoning of the loans, degree of current and expected loan defaults,
current loan-to-value ratios, borrowers' payment history and debt-to-income levels. The base servicing fees will range from 30 to 100 basis
points per year of the unpaid principal balance of such loans. PLS will also be entitled to certain customary market-based fees and charges,
including boarding and deboarding fees, liquidation and
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disposition fees, assumption, modification and origination fees and late charges, as well as interest on funds on deposit in custodial or escrow
accounts. In the event PLS effects a refinancing of a loan on our behalf and not through a third party lender and the resulting loan is readily
saleable, PLS will be entitled to receive from us an origination fee of 1.0% of the unpaid principal balance of the loan plus $750. Similarly,
when PLS originates a loan to facilitate the disposition of real estate that we acquire in settlement of a loan, PLS will be entitled to a fee in the
same amount. In addition, to the extent we participate in HAMP (or other similar mortgage loan modification programs), PLS will be entitled to
retain any incentive payments made to it and to which it is entitled under HAMP; provided, however, that with respect to any such incentive
payments paid to PLS in connection with a mortgage loan modification for which the Company previously paid PLS a modification fee, PLS
shall reimburse the Company an amount equal to the lesser of such modification fee or such incentive payments.

        Under the loan servicing agreement, PLS is also entitled to reimbursement for all customary, reasonable and necessary out of pocket
expenses incurred by PLS in connection with the performance of its servicing obligations.

        In connection with the Company's correspondent lending business, PLS also provides certain mortgage banking services, including
fulfillment and disposition-related services, to the Company for a fulfillment fee based on a percentage of the unpaid principal balance of the
mortgage loans. The fulfillment fee for such services is currently 50 basis points. Commencing November 1, 2010, the Company has begun
collecting interest income and a sourcing fee of three basis points for each mortgage loan it purchases from a correspondent and sells to PLS for
ultimate disposition to a third party only where the Company is not approved or licensed to sell to such third party. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded fulfillment fees totaling $103,000.

        The Company paid servicing fees to PLS as described above and as provided in its loan servicing agreement, and recorded other expenses,
including common overhead expenses incurred on its behalf by PCM and its affiliates in accordance with the terms of its management
agreement.

        Conditional Payment of Underwriting Discount.    Certain of the underwriting costs incurred in our IPO were paid on our behalf by PCM
and a portion of the underwriting discount was deferred by agreement with the underwriters of the offering. Reimbursement to PCM and
payment to the underwriters of the deferred underwriting discount are both contingent on our performance as follows: we will reimburse PCM
approximately $2.9 million of underwriting costs paid by PCM on the offering date and pay the underwriters approximately $5.9 million in
deferred underwriting discount if, during any full four calendar quarter period during the 24 full calendar quarters after the date of the
completion of our IPO, August 4, 2009, our "core earnings" for such four-quarter period and before the incentive portion of PCM's management
fee equals or exceeds an 8% incentive fee "hurdle rate" (both defined above). If this requirement is not satisfied by the end of such 24 calendar
quarter period, our obligation to reimburse PCM and make the conditional payment of the underwriting discount will terminate. Management
has concluded that this contingency is probable of being met during the 24-quarter period and has recognized a liability for reimbursement to
PCM and payment of the contingent underwriting discount as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

        Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity
prices, real estate values and other market based risks. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are real estate risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, prepayment risk, inflation risk and market value risk. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we invested a substantial portion of
our investable funds into nonperforming loans. At December 31, 2010, we held nonperforming loans with an estimated fair value of
$278.0 million, or 76% of the estimated fair value of our non-correspondent lending loans. These investments significantly changed the risk
profile of our invested assets.
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Real Estate Risk

        Residential property values are subject to volatility and may be affected adversely by a number of factors, including, but not limited to,
national, regional and local economic conditions (which may be adversely affected by industry slowdowns and other factors); local real estate
conditions (such as an oversupply of housing); construction quality, age and design; demographic factors; and retroactive changes to building or
similar codes. Decreases in property values reduce the value of the collateral and the potential proceeds available to a borrower to repay our
loans, which could cause us to suffer losses.

Credit Risk

        We are subject to credit risk in connection with our investments. A significant portion of our assets is comprised of nonperforming
residential mortgage loans. The credit risk related to these investments pertains to the ability and willingness of the borrowers to pay, which is
assessed before credit is granted. We believe that residual loan credit quality is primarily determined by the borrowers' credit profiles and loan
characteristics.

Interest Rate Risk

        Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies, domestic and international
economic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control. Changes in interest rates affect both the fair value of and interest
income we earn from our mortgage-related investments. This effect is most pronounced with fixed-rate investments. In general, rising interest
rates negatively affect the fair value of our investments in MBS and mortgage loans.

        Our operating results will depend, in part, on differences between the income from our investments and our financing costs. Presently our
debt financing is based on a floating rate of interest calculated on a fixed spread over the relevant index, as determined by the particular
financing arrangement.

        In the event of a significant rising interest rate environment and/or economic downturn, defaults could increase and result in credit losses to
us, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and prospects. Furthermore,
such defaults could have an adverse effect on the spread between our interest earning assets and interest bearing liabilities.

Prepayment Risk

        To the extent that the actual prepayment rate on our mortgage loans differs from what we projected when we purchased the loans and when
we measured fair value as of the end of each reporting period, our unrealized gain or loss will be affected. As we receive prepayments of
principal on our MBS investments, any premiums paid for such investments will be amortized against interest income using the interest method
through the expected maturity dates of the investments. In general, an increase in prepayment rates will accelerate the amortization of purchase
premiums, thereby reducing the interest income earned on the MBS investments. Conversely, as we receive prepayments of principal on our
investments, any discounts realized on the purchase of such investments will be accrued into interest income using the interest method through
the expected maturity dates of the investments. In general, an increase in prepayment rates will accelerate the accrual of purchase discounts,
thereby increasing the interest income earned on the MBS investments.

Inflation

        Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and other factors will influence our
performance more so than inflation. Changes in interest rates
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do not necessarily correlate with inflation rates or changes in inflation rates. Furthermore, our financial statements are prepared in accordance
with U.S. GAAP and any distributions we may make to our shareholders will be determined by our board of trustees based primarily on our
taxable income and, in each case, our activities and balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost and/or fair value without
considering inflation.

Market Value Risk

        Our mortgage loans and MBS are reported at their estimated fair values. The fair value of these assets fluctuates primarily due to changes in
real estate values and other factors such as interest rates and credit performance relating to the loans underlying our investments. Generally, in a
rising interest rate environment, the estimated fair value of these assets would be expected to decrease; conversely, in a decreasing interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these assets would be expected to increase.

        Due to the change in the risk profile of our mortgage loan portfolio, we shifted the way we measure sensitivity from an approach that
emphasizes interest rate sensitivity to an approach that emphasizes fair value sensitivity to changes in real estate values. At December 31, 2009,
100% of our mortgage loan portfolio was comprised of performing mortgage loans. Such loans' values are generally most sensitive to
movements in interest rates. During the year ended December 31, 2010, 92% of our mortgage loan acquisitions (as measured by the loans' fair
values on the acquisition date) were nonperforming loans (i.e., mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more). As a result, at December 31, 2010,
approximately 76% of our mortgage loan portfolio was comprised of nonperforming loans. Accordingly, we have determined that, at
December 31, 2010, our mortgage loan portfolio was more sensitive to changes in the values of the real estate underlying the mortgage loans as
opposed to being more sensitive to changes in interest rates as was the case at December 31, 2009. Generally, in a real estate market where
values are rising or are expected to rise, the fair value of our mortgage loans would be expected to appreciate, whereas in a real estate market
where values are generally dropping or are expected to drop, mortgage loan values would be expected to decrease.

        The following table summarizes the estimated change in fair value of our portfolio of mortgage loans as of December 31, 2010, given
several hypothetical (instantaneous) changes in home values from those used in the determination of fair value:

Property value
shift -15% -10% -5% +5% +10% +15%

(dollar amounts in thousands)
Fair value $ 320,237 $ 335,196 $ 349,879 $ 378,269 $ 391,824 $ 404,838
Change in fair
value:

$ $ (44,013) $ (29,054) $ (14,371) $ 14,019 $ 27,575 $ 40,588
% -12.08% -7.98% -3.95% 3.85% 7.57% 11.14%

        We believe that our current investments in MBS remain generally sensitive to changes in interest rates due to our present portfolio of
investments in MBS being comprised of presently cash flowing bonds with short expected lives. Generally, in a rising interest rate environment,
the estimated fair value of these assets would be expected to decrease; conversely, in a decreasing interest rate environment, the estimated fair
value of these assets would be expected to increase. However, since June 30, 2010, we have been evaluating the effect of interest rate shifts on
bond valuations using a "constant yield" assumption rather than a "constant spread" assumption. These approaches differ in that, with a "constant
spread" assumption, the spread to the discount curve in the base case is kept constant across interest rate scenarios, affecting both the projected
cash flows and the implied return requirement of investors; with a "constant yield" assumption, the total yield of the bond is kept constant in the
valuations across interest rate scenarios while projected cash flows change.
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        Although the "constant spread" assumption is typically used for scenario valuation of mortgage and other interest-rate-sensitive assets in
non-distressed environments, a "constant yield" assumption is more appropriate for distressed assets given the nature of the return requirements
of investors in those assets, and the recent observed sensitivities of non-Agency mortgage bonds to shifts in "risk-free" interest rates. This
approach is also consistent with the approach used by our Manager to evaluate valuation sensitivity for similar instruments in other investment
vehicles that it manages.

        The following table summarizes the estimated change in fair value of our portfolio of MBS as of December 31, 2010, given several
hypothetical (instantaneous) shifts in interest rates and parallel shifts in the yield curve:

Interest rate shift in
basis points -200 -100 -50 +50 +100 +200

(dollar amounts in thousands)
Fair value $ 119,573 $ 119,569 $ 119,626 $ 120,197 $ 120,551 $ 121,347
Change in fair value:

$ $ (298) $ (303) $ (246) $ 326 $ 679 $ 1,475
% -0.25% -0.25% -0.20% 0.27% 0.57% 1.23%

        The following table summarizes the estimated change in fair value of our mortgage loans and MBS as of December 31, 2009, given
selected hypothetical (instantaneous) parallel shifts in interest rates and parallel shifts in the yield curve:

Interest rate shift in basis points -200 -100 -50 +50 +100 +200
(in thousands)

Change in fair value:
Mortgage-backed securities(1) $ (117) $ (209) $ (150) $ 169 $ 355 $ 732
Mortgage loans $ (18) $ 22 $ 14 $ (17) $ (21) $ 8

(1)
Restated to reflect the "constant yield" approach to evaluating interest rate sensitivity.

        These sensitivity analyses are limited in that they were performed at a particular point in time; only contemplate certain movements in real
estate values as they relate to mortgage loans and interest rates as they relate to MBS; do not incorporate changes in interest rate volatility or
changes in the relationship of one interest rate index to another; are subject to the accuracy of various models and assumptions used, including
prepayment forecasts and discount rates; and do not incorporate other factors that would affect the Company's overall financial performance in
such scenarios, including operational adjustments made by management to account for changing circumstances. For these reasons, the preceding
estimates should not be viewed as an earnings forecast.

Accounting Developments

        In January 2010, the FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"), ASU 2010-06 to ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosure. The update requires additional disclosures about the transfers of classifications among the fair value classification levels and the
reasons for those changes and separate presentation of purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the presentation of the roll forward of
Level 3 assets and liabilities. The ASU also clarifies disclosure requirements relating to the level of disaggregation of disclosures relating to
classes of assets and liabilities and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value for both recurring and
nonrecurring fair value estimates for Level 2 or Level 3 assets and liabilities. The requirements of the ASU are effective for interim and annual
disclosures for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances
and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value estimates. Those disclosures are effective for interim and
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annual reporting periods for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on the
Company's financial statements.

        In January 2010, the FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"), ASU 2010-06 to the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosure topic of the Accounting Standards Codification. The ASU requires additional disclosures about the transfers of classifications among
the fair value classification levels and the reasons for those changes and separate presentation of purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in
the presentation of the roll forward of Level 3 assets and liabilities. The ASU also clarifies disclosure requirements relating to the level of
disaggregation of disclosures relating to classes of assets and liabilities and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure
fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value estimates for Level 2 or Level 3 assets and liabilities.

 Item 7A.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

        In response to this Item 7A, the information set forth on pages 69 to 72 is incorporated herein by reference.

 Item 8.    Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

        The information called for by this Item 8 is hereby incorporated by reference from our Financial Statements and Auditors' Report beginning
at page F-1 of this Report.

Item 9.    Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

        None

Item 9A.    Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that
such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. However, no matter how well a control system is designed and operated, it
can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that it will detect or uncover failures within the Company to disclose material information
otherwise required to be set forth in our periodic reports.

        Our management has conducted an evaluation, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Report as required by paragraph (b) of
Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act. Based on our evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective, as of the end of the period covered by this Report, to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

        Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 13a-15(f). Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Management assessed the effectiveness of its
internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control�Integrated Framework. Based on those criteria, management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

        The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust:

        We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust and subsidiaries ("the Company") as
of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

        A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

        In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

        We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010 of the Company and our
report dated March 7, 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 7, 2011
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Changes to Internal Control over Financial Reporting

        There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the three-month period ended December 31, 2010 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

 Item 9B.    Other Information

        None
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 PART III

 Item 10.    Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

        The information required by this Item 10 is hereby incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement, or will be contained in an
amendment to this Report, in either case to be filed by April 30, 2011, which is within 120 days after the end of fiscal year 2010.

 Item 11.    Executive Compensation

        The information required by this Item 11 is hereby incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement, or will be contained in an
amendment to this Report, in either case to be filed by April 30, 2011, which is within 120 days after the end of fiscal year 2010.

 Item 12.    Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

        The information required by this Item 12 is hereby incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement, or will be contained in an
amendment to this Report, in either case to be filed by April 30, 2011, which is within 120 days after the end of fiscal year 2010.

 Item 13.    Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

        The information required by this Item 13 is hereby incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement, or will be contained in an
amendment to this Report, in either case to be filed by April 30, 2011, which is within 120 days after the end of fiscal year 2010.

 Item 14.    Principal Accountant Fees and Services

        The information required by this Item 14 is hereby incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement, or will be contained in an
amendment to this Report, in either case to be filed by April 30, 2011, which is within 120 days after the end of fiscal year 2010.

77

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

91



Table of Contents

 PART IV

 Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Declaration of Trust of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

3.2 Bylaws of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

4.1 Specimen Common Share Certificate of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, Stanford L. Kurland, David A. Spector, BlackRock
Holdco II, Inc., Highfields Capital Investments LLC and Private National Mortgage Acceptance Company, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.2 Underwriting Fee Reimbursement Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P.
and PNMAC Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.3 Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.4 Management Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PNMAC
Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2009).

10.5 Amendment No. 1 to Management Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating
Partnership, L.P. and PNMAC Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010).

10.6 Loan (Flow) Servicing Agreement between PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PennyMac Loan Services, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.7 Amendment No. 1 to Loan (Flow) Servicing Agreement between PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PennyMac Loan
Services, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2010).

10.8 PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

10.9 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-11, filed with
the SEC on July 24, 2009).

10.10 Master Repurchase Agreement among PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust Holdings I, LLC, and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010).

10.11 Guaranty Agreement by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).

10.12 Master Repurchase Agreement among Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital, LLC, PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage
Investment Trust and PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).

10.13 Guaranty by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust and PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston
Mortgage Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010).

10.14 Master Repurchase Agreement among PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust Holdings I, LLC, and PennyMac
Loan Services, LLC, and Citibank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 15, 2010).

10.15 Guaranty Agreement by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust in favor of Citibank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2010).

21.1 Subsidiaries of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust.

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification of Stanford L. Kurland pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

31.2 Certification of Anne D. McCallion pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1 Certification of Stanford L. Kurland pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Anne D. McCallion pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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 REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust:

        We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and for the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2009. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of PennyMac Mortgage
Investment Trust and subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the year
ended December 31, 2010 and for the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2009, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

        We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 7, 2011 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 7, 2011
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PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS

Cash $ 45,447 $ 54
Short-term investment � 213,628
Mortgage-backed securities at fair value 119,872 83,771
Mortgage loans at fair value 368,216 26,046
Real estate acquired in settlement of loans 29,685 �
Principal and interest collections receivable 8,249 �
Interest receivable 978 492
Due from affiliates 2,115 �
Other assets 14,533 455

Total assets $ 589,095 $ 324,446

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,080 $ 527
Loans sold under agreements to repurchase 147,422 �
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at
fair value 101,202 �
Contingent underwriting fees payable 5,883 5,883
Payable to affiliates 5,595 4,238

Total liabilities 269,182 10,648

Commitments and contingencies
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common shares of beneficial interest�authorized,
500,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value; issued and
outstanding, 16,832,343 and 16,735,317 shares,
respectively 168 167
Additional paid-in capital 317,175 315,514
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 2,570 (1,883)

Total shareholders' equity 319,913 313,798

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 589,095 $ 324,446

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands except per share data)

Year ended
December 31,

2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to
December 31,

2009
Investment Income

Gains on investments:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 233 $ 152
Mortgage loans 27,215 �

27,448 152

Interest income:
Short-term investment 86 202
Mortgage-backed securities 5,186 1,935
Mortgage loans 9,302 12

14,574 2,149

Loss on sale of correspondent lending
mortgage loans (2) �
Results of real estate acquired in
settlement of loans 2,002 �
Other income 32 �

Net investment income 44,054 2,301

Expenses
Management fees 4,878 1,981
Loan servicing fees 2,987 �
Compensation 2,627 1,303
Professional services 2,581 471
Interest 826 �
Insurance 776 328
Other 2,353 101

Total expenses 17,028 4,184

Income (loss) before provision for
income taxes 27,026 (1,883)
Provision for income taxes 2,543 �

Net income (loss) $ 24,483 $ (1,883)

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic $ 1.46 $ (0.11)
Diluted $ 1.44 $ (0.11)

Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic 16,775,191 16,735,317
Diluted 17,048,175 16,735,317
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PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)

Number of
shares

Par
value

Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained
earnings

(accumulated
deficit) Total

Balance at August 4, 2009
(commencement of operations) � $ � $ 1 $ � $ 1

Proceeds from share offerings 16,735,317 167 334,540 � 334,707
Underwriting and offering costs � � (19,990) � (19,990)
Net loss � � � (1,883) (1,883)
Share-based compensation � � 963 � 963

Balance at December 31, 2009 16,735,317 $ 167 $ 315,514 $ (1,883) $ 313,798
Underwriting and offering costs � � (150) � (150)
Net income � � � 24,483 24,483
Share-based compensation 97,026 1 1,811 � 1,812
Cash distributions declared, $1.19 per
share � � � (20,030) (20,030)

Balance at December 31, 2010 16,832,343 $ 168 $ 317,175 $ 2,570 $ 319,913

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ 24,483 $ (1,883)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used by
operating activities:

Gains on mortgage-backed securities (233) (152)
Gains on mortgage loans (27,215) �
Accrual of unearned discounts on mortgage-backed securities (3,287) (1,140)
Loss on sale of correspondent lending mortgage loans acquired 2 �
Results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans (2,002) �
Share-based compensation expense 1,812 963

Purchases of mortgage loans acquired for sale (43,841) �
Sales of mortgage loans acquired for sale 39,853 �
Increase in principal and interest collections receivable (8,145) �
Increase in interest receivable (641) (492)
Increase in due from affiliates (2,095) �
Increase in other assets (4,320) (455)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,483 527
Increase in payable to affiliates 1,357 1,298

Net cash used by operating activities (22,789) (1,334)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease (increase) in short-term investment 213,628 (213,628)
Purchases of mortgage-backed securities at fair value (91,141) (93,049)
Repayments of mortgage-backed securities at fair value 58,560 10,569
Purchases of mortgage loans at fair value (417,211) (26,046)
Repayments of mortgage loans at fair value 55,198 �
Sales of mortgage loans at fair value 5,228 �
Purchases of real estate acquired in settlement of loans (1,238) �
Sales of real estate acquired in settlement of loans 19,402 �
Increase in margin deposits and restricted cash (9,758) �

Net cash used by investing activities (167,332) (322,154)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Sales of securities under agreements to repurchase 660,563 �
Repurchases of securities sold under agreements to repurchase (411,939) �
Proceeds from issuance of common shares � 334,707
Payment of share issuance costs (150) (11,166)
Payment of distributions to shareholders (12,960) �

Net cash provided by financing activities 235,514 323,541

Net increase in cash 45,393 53
Cash at beginning of period 54 1
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Cash at end of period $ 45,447 $ 54

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1�Organization and Basis of Presentation

        PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust ("PMT" or the "Company") was organized in Maryland on May 18, 2009, and began operations on
August 4, 2009, when it completed its initial offerings of common shares of beneficial interest ("shares"). The Company is a specialty finance
company, which, through its subsidiaries (all of which are wholly-owned), invests primarily in residential mortgage loans and mortgage-related
assets.

        The Company's primary investment objective is to maximize the value of the mortgage loans that it acquires, a substantial portion of which
may be distressed and acquired at discounts to their unpaid principal balances, either through loan modification programs, special servicing and
other initiatives focused on keeping borrowers in their homes, or, when necessary, through timely acquisition and liquidation of the property
securing the loan. Accordingly, management has concluded that the Company operates as a single segment.

        The Company believes that it qualifies, and has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"), beginning with its taxable period ended on December 31, 2009. To maintain its tax
status as a REIT, the Company plans to distribute at least 90% of its taxable income in the form of qualifying distributions to shareholders.

        The Company is externally managed by an affiliate, PNMAC Capital Management, LLC ("PCM" or the "Manager"), an investment adviser
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") that specializes in and focuses on residential mortgage loans. Under the
terms of a management agreement, PCM is paid a management fee with a base component and a performance incentive component.
Determination of the amount of management fees is discussed in Note 4�Transactions with Related Parties.

        The Company conducts substantially all of its operations, and makes substantially all of its investments, through PennyMac Operating
Partnership, L.P. ("Operating Partnership") and its subsidiaries. A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company is the sole general partner, and the
Company is the sole limited partner, of the Operating Partnership.

        The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the U.S. ("U.S. GAAP") as codified in the Financial Accounting Standards Board's ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification (the
"Codification"). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Preparation of financial statements in compliance
with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results will likely differ from those estimates.

Note 2�Concentration of Risks

        As discussed in Note 1�Organization and Basis of Presentation above, PMT's operations and investing activities are centered in real
estate-related assets, a substantial portion of which are distressed at acquisition. Because of the Company's investment strategy, many of the
mortgage loans in its targeted asset class are purchased at discounts reflecting their distressed state or perceived higher risk of default, as well as
a greater likelihood of collateral documentation deficiencies. PCM validates key information provided by the sellers that is necessary to
determine the value of the acquired asset.
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Most of the nonperforming loans purchased by the Company have been acquired from one major financial institution.

        Through its management agreement with PCM and, where applicable, the loan servicing agreement between its Operating Partnership and
an affiliated company, PennyMac Loan Services, LLC ("PLS"), PMT will work with borrowers to perform loss mitigation activities. Such
activities include the use of loan modification programs (such as the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's Home Affordable
Modification Program, or HAMP) and workout options that PCM believes have the highest probability of successful resolution for both
borrowers and PMT. Loan modification or resolution may include PMT accepting a writedown of the principal balances of certain mortgage
loans in its investment portfolio. When loan modifications and other efforts are unable to cure distressed loans, the Company's objective is to
effect timely acquisition and liquidation of the property securing the mortgage loan.

        Because of the Company's investment focus, PMT is exposed, to a greater extent than traditional mortgage investors, to the risks that
borrowers may be in economic distress and/or may have become unemployed, bankrupt or otherwise unable or unwilling to make payments
when due, and to the effects of fluctuations in the residential real estate market on the performance of its investments. Factors influencing these
risks include, but are not limited to:

�
changes in the overall economy, unemployment and residential real estate values in the markets where the Company's
mortgage loans are secured;

�
PCM's ability to identify and PLS's ability to execute optimal resolutions of problem mortgage loans;

�
the accuracy of borrower representations and PLS's ability to validate borrower capacity to meet the terms of workout
agreements;

�
PCM's ability to effectively model, and develop, appropriate model assumptions that properly anticipate future outcomes;

�
the level of government support for problem loan resolution and the effect of current and future proposed and enacted
legislative and regulatory changes on the Company's ability to effect cures to distressed loans; and

�
regulatory and legislative support of the foreclosure process, and the resulting impact on the Company's ability to acquire
and liquidate the real estate securing its portfolio of distressed mortgage loans in a timely manner or at all.

        Due to these uncertainties, there can be no assurance that risk management activities identified and executed on PMT's behalf will prevent
significant losses arising from the Company's investments in real estate-related assets.

        During 2010, the Company purchased $417.2 million at fair value of mortgage loans for its investment portfolio. Of that total,
$407.0 million at fair value of mortgage loans was purchased from a subsidiary of a money-center bank.

        As discussed in Note 4�Transactions with Related Parties, the Company's short-term investment is made in an uninsured institutional money
market fund that is managed by a strategic investor in the parent company of PCM and PLS. The fund invests exclusively in first-tier securities
as rated by a
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nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The fund's investments are comprised primarily of domestic commercial paper, securities
issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or its agencies, obligations of foreign banks with operations in the United States, fully
collateralized repurchase agreements and variable and floating rate demand notes.

Note 3�Significant Accounting Policies

        PMT's significant accounting policies are summarized below:

Valuation of Financial Instruments

        PMT groups its assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the
reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:

�
Level 1�Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

�
Level 2�Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. Observable inputs are inputs that other market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the Company. These may include quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others.

�
Level 3�Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. In situations where quoted prices or observable inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little or no market activity for an investment at the end of the period), unobservable
inputs may be used. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company's own assumptions about the factors that market participants
use in pricing an asset or liability, and are based on the best information available in the circumstances. The valuation
method used to estimate fair value may produce a fair value measurement that may not be indicative of ultimate realizable
value. Furthermore, while management believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with those used by
other market participants, the use of different methods or assumptions to estimate the fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. Those estimated values may differ
significantly from the values that would have been used had a readily available market for such loans or investments existed,
or had such loans or investments been liquidated, and those differences could be material to the financial statements.

        Management incorporates lack of liquidity into its fair value estimates based on the type of asset or liability measured and the valuation
method used. For example, for mortgage loans where the significant inputs have become unobservable due to illiquidity in the markets for
distressed loans or non-Agency, non-conforming mortgage loans, PMT uses a discounted cash flow technique to estimate fair value. This
technique incorporates forecasting of expected cash flows discounted at an appropriate market discount rate that is intended to reflect the lack of
liquidity in the market.

Short-Term Investment

        Short-term investment, which represents an investment in an institutional liquidity (or money market) fund, is valued at the number of
shares held by the Company multiplied by the value per share published by the manager of the money market fund on the valuation date. The
Company's short-term investment is classified as a "Level 1" fair value financial statement item.
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Mortgage-Backed Securities

        PMT records mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") on the trade-date basis of accounting. PMT's investments in MBS are carried at their
estimated fair values. Non-Agency MBS are categorized as "Level 3" fair value financial statement items. Fair value of non-Agency MBS is
estimated using broker indications of value. Agency MBS refers to securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie
Mac") and the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae") (Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae are each referred to as an "Agency" and,
collectively, as the "Agencies"). For indications of value received as of December 31, 2010, PCM's Capital Markets staff reviewed, and its
senior management Valuation Committee reviewed and approved, the securities' values. PCM's review is for the purpose of evaluating the
reasonableness of the broker's indication of value and may result in the broker modifying its indications of value. PCM does not intend to adjust
its fair value estimates to amounts different from the broker's indications of value.

        Changes in the estimated fair value of MBS are recognized in current period earnings. Changes in fair value arising from amortization of
purchase premiums and accrual of unearned discounts are recognized as a component of interest income.

Interest Income Recognition

        Interest income on MBS is recognized over the life of the security using the interest method. Management estimates, at the time of
purchase, the future expected cash flows and determines the effective interest rate based on the estimated cash flows and the Company's
purchase price. Management updates its cash flow estimates monthly. Estimating these cash flows is subject to a number of assumptions that are
subject to uncertainties, including the rate and timing of principal payments (including prepayments, repurchases, defaults and liquidations), the
pass-through or coupon rate, interest rate fluctuations, interest payment shortfalls due to delinquencies on the underlying mortgage loans, the
likelihood of modification and the timing of the magnitude of credit losses on the mortgage loans underlying the securities. Management applies
its judgment in developing its estimates. However, these uncertainties are difficult to predict and are subject to future events whose outcomes
will affect the Company's estimates and interest income.

Mortgage Loans

        Mortgage loans are carried at their estimated fair values. Fair value of mortgage loans is estimated based on whether the mortgage loans are
saleable into active markets with established counterparties and transparent pricing. Mortgage loans that are saleable into active markets are
categorized as "Level 2" fair value financial statement items and their fair values are estimated using their quoted market price or market price
equivalent. Loans that are not saleable into active markets are categorized as "Level 3" fair value financial statement items, and their fair values
are estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model. Inputs to the model include current interest rates, loan amount, payment status and
property type, and forecasts of future interest rates, home prices, prepayment speeds, defaults and loss severities. The estimates of value are
evaluated by PCM's Capital Markets staff and are reviewed and approved by its senior management Valuation Committee.

        Changes in the estimated fair value of mortgage loans are recognized in current period earnings. All changes in fair value, including
changes arising from the passage of time, are recognized as a component of change in fair value of investments.

F-8

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

108



Table of Contents

PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 3�Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interest Income Recognition

        Interest income on loans is recognized over the life of the loan using its contractual interest rate. Income recognition is suspended for loans
when they become 90 days delinquent, or when, in management's opinion, a full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful. Income
recognition is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to be resumed.

Real Estate Acquired in Settlement of Loans

        Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is measured at the lower of the acquisition cost of the property (as measured by the fair value of
the loan before the property is acquired in settlement of the loan or by its purchase price) or its fair value reduced by estimated costs to sell. Real
estate acquired in settlement of loans is categorized as a "Level 3" fair value financial statement item. Fair value of real estate acquired in
settlement of loans is determined by management based on a current estimate of value that is based on a broker's price opinion or a full
appraisal. Changes in fair value and gains or losses on sale of real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recognized in the consolidated
statement of operations under the caption Results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans.

Loans and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

        Loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are measured based on whether management has designated the agreements to be
accounted for under the fair value option or at historical cost. Under both options, the carrying value of loans and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase is based on the accrued cost of the agreements, which approximates fair value, due to the agreements' short maturities.

        When loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are carried at their estimated fair values, the costs of creating the facilities
underlying the agreements are expensed as incurred. When loans and securities sold under agreements to repurchase are carried at historical cost,
the costs of creating the facilities underlying the agreements are recognized as deferred charges in other assets and amortized to interest expense
over the term of the borrowing facility.

Investment Consolidation

        The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PMT and all wholly-owned subsidiaries. PMT has whole ownership of all of
its subsidiaries, and therefore has no significant equity method or cost-basis investments. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

        The Company evaluates every investment with reference to the underlying entity that issued the loans or securities it acquires to determine
whether to include the investment in its consolidated reporting group. A similar analysis is performed for each entity with which the Company
makes an agreement for management, servicing or similar services. Where voting rights do not effectively identify the investor with a
controlling financial interest, the entity is classified as a variable interest entity ("VIE"). With certain exceptions, VIEs are subject to
consolidation if the investors either do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support, are unable to direct the entity's activities or are not exposed to the entity's losses or entitled to its residual returns. VIEs are
consolidated by the entity that absorbs a majority of the entity's expected
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losses, its expected returns, or both. The Company did not have variable interests in its affiliated service providers as of December 31, 2010 and
2009.

Underwriting Commissions and Offering Costs

        Underwriting commissions and offering costs incurred in connection with the Company's share offerings are reflected as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital. Contingent offering costs that are deemed by management as probable of being paid are recorded as a reduction of
additional paid-in capital.

Share-Based Compensation

        The Company amortizes the fair value of previously granted share-based awards to compensation expense over the vesting period using the
graded vesting method.

        The Company determines the fair value of its share-based compensation awards depending on whether the awards are made to its trustees
and officers or to non-employees such as officers and employees of affiliated entities:

�
Compensation cost is generally fixed at the estimated fair value of the award date for awards to officers and trustees of the
Company

�
Compensation cost for share-based compensation awarded to non officers or trustees of the Company is adjusted to reflect
changes in the estimated fair value of awards in each subsequent reporting period until the award has vested, the service
being provided is subsequently completed, or, under certain circumstances, is likely to be completed, whichever occurs first.

        Compensation cost for share awards that do not participate in Company distributions during the vesting period is estimated by reducing the
fair value of the Company's shares on the date of issuance by management's estimates of distributions to be made during the vesting period
discounted at an appropriate risk-free rate of return. Management's estimates of compensation costs reflect the expected portion of share-based
compensation awards that management expects to vest.

Income Taxes

        The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT and management believes the Company complies with the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code applicable to REITs. Accordingly, management believes the Company will not be subject to federal income tax on that portion of
its REIT taxable income that is distributed to shareholders as long as certain asset, income and share ownership tests are met. If PMT fails to
qualify as a REIT, and does not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, it will be subject to income taxes and may be precluded from
qualifying as a REIT for the four tax years following the year of loss of the Company's REIT qualification.

        The Company's taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to federal and state income taxes. Income taxes are provided for using the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which management expects those temporary differences to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
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taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which the change occurs. Subject to management's judgment, a valuation
allowance is established if realization of deferred tax assets is not more likely than not. Management recognizes tax benefits relating to tax
positions it takes only if it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. A tax
position that meets this standard is recognized as the largest amount that exceeds 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement. The
Company will classify any penalties and interest as a component of income tax expense.

        As of December 31, 2010, the Company was not subject to examination by any federal or state taxing authority.

Note 4�Transactions with Related Parties

        The Company is managed externally by PCM under the terms of a management agreement that expires on August 4, 2012 and will be
automatically renewed for a one-year term each anniversary date thereafter unless previously terminated. The management agreement provides
for an annual review of PCM's performance under the management agreement by the Company's independent trustees. PMT's board of trustees
reviews the Company's financial results, policy compliance and strategic direction.

        PMT pays PCM a base management fee and may pay a performance incentive fee, both payable quarterly and in arrears. The base
management fee is calculated at the annual rate of 1.5% of shareholders' equity (as defined in the management agreement). The performance
incentive fee is calculated at 20% per year of the amount by which "core earnings," on a rolling four-quarter basis and before the incentive fee,
exceeds an 8% "hurdle rate."

�
"Core earnings," for purposes of determining the amount of the performance incentive fee, is defined as U.S. GAAP net
income (loss) adjusted to exclude non-cash equity compensation expense, unrealized gains and losses or other non-cash
items recognized during the period, any conditional payment amounts relating to PMT's initial public offering ("IPO") paid
to PCM and the underwriters of PMT's share offering, and any "one-time events" pursuant to changes in U.S. GAAP and
certain other non-cash charges after discussions as agreed between PCM and our independent trustees and approval by a
majority of PMT's independent trustees.

�
The "hurdle rate" is calculated as the product of (1) the weighted average of the issue price per share of all of the Company's
public offerings multiplied by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (including, for the avoidance of doubt,
restricted share units) in the four-quarter period and (2) 8%. During PMT's first four quarters, core earnings will be
calculated based on the annualized results of each of the preceding quarters.

�
For purposes of calculating the incentive fee, to the extent PMT has a net loss in core earnings from a period prior to the
rolling four-quarter period that has not been offset by core earnings in a subsequent period, such loss will continue to be
included in the rolling four-quarter calculation until it has been fully offset. This term is not applicable for purposes of
determining whether the conditional payment of the underwriting discount is payable.
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        Following is a summary of management fee expense and its related liability recorded by the Company for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Base management fee $ 4,878 $ 1,981
Performance incentive fee � �

Total management fee incurred during the period $ 4,878 $ 1,981
Fee paid during the period (4,819) (812)
Fee outstanding at beginning of period 1,169 �

Fee outstanding at period end $ 1,228 $ 1,169

        If the Company terminates the management agreement without cause, or PCM terminates the management agreement upon a default in the
Company's performance of any material term in the management agreement, PMT will pay a termination fee to PCM. The termination fee will
be equal to three times (a) the average annual base management fee and (b) the average annual (or, if the period is less than 24 months,
annualized) incentive fee earned by PCM during the prior 24-month period before termination. Under circumstances where the termination fee is
payable, PMT will pay to PCM its portion of the conditional payment of the underwriting discount discussed in Note 14�Shareholders' Equity.

        The Company, through its Operating Partnership, also has a loan servicing agreement with PLS. Servicing fee rates are based on the risk
characteristics of the mortgage loans serviced and total servicing compensation is established at levels that management believes are competitive
with those charged by other specialty servicers. Servicing fee rates are expected to range between 30 and 100 basis points per year on the unpaid
principal balance of the mortgage loans serviced on the Company's behalf.

        Under the loan servicing agreement, PLS is also entitled to certain customary market-based fees and charges, including boarding and
de-boarding fees, liquidation and disposition fees, assumption, modification and origination fees and late charges, as well as interest on funds on
deposit in custodial or escrow accounts. In the event PLS either effects a refinancing of a loan on the Company's behalf and not through a third
party lender and the resulting loan is readily saleable, or originates a loan to facilitate the disposition of real estate that the Company has
acquired in settlement of a loan, PLS is entitled to receive from the Company an origination fee of 1.0% of the unpaid principal balance of the
loan plus $750. Similarly, when PLS originates a loan to facilitate the disposition of real estate that we acquire in settlement of a loan, PLS will
be entitled to a fee in the same amount.

        The Company currently participates in HAMP (and other similar mortgage loan modification programs), which establishes standard loan
modification guidelines for "at risk" homeowners and provides incentive payments to certain participants, including loan servicers, for achieving
modifications and successfully remaining in the program. The loan servicing agreement entitles PLS to retain any incentive payments made to it
and to which it is entitled under HAMP; provided, however, that with
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respect to any such incentive payments paid to PLS in connection with a mortgage loan modification for which the Company previously paid
PLS a modification fee, PLS shall reimburse the Company an amount equal to the lesser of such modification fee or such incentive payments.

        In connection with the Company's correspondent lending business, PLS also provides certain mortgage banking services, including
fulfillment and disposition-related services, to the Company for a fulfillment fee based on a percentage of the unpaid principal balance of the
mortgage loans. The fulfillment fee for such services is currently 50 basis points. Commencing November 1, 2010, the Company has begun
collecting interest income and a sourcing fee of three basis points for each mortgage loan it purchases from a correspondent and sells to PLS for
ultimate disposition to a third party only where the Company is not approved or licensed to sell to such third party. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded fulfillment fees totaling $103,000.

        The Company paid servicing fees to PLS as described above and as provided in its loan servicing agreement, and recorded other expenses,
including common overhead expenses incurred on its behalf by PCM and its affiliates in accordance with the terms of its management
agreement.

        Following is a summary of those expenses for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Loan servicing and
fulfillment fees payable to
PLS $ 2,833 $ �
Reimbursement of
expenses incurred on
PMT's behalf:

Compensation 402 60
Other 493 �

3,728 60
Reimbursement of
common overhead
incurred by PCM and its
affiliates 1,418 �

$ 5,146 $ 60

Payments made during the
period $ 3,852 $ �

        During the Company's startup period and through the quarter ended March 31, 2010, PCM and its affiliates did not charge the Company for
its proportionate share of common overhead expenses. Such expenses totaled approximately $500,000 and $771,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2009, respectively. No other charges
were waived by PCM during the Company's startup period and through the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Management believes that PCM does
not intend to waive recovery of common overhead costs in the future.
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        Certain of the underwriting costs incurred in the Company's IPO were paid on PMT's behalf by PCM and a portion of the underwriting
discount was deferred by agreement with the underwriters of the offering.

        Amounts due to affiliates are summarized below as of the dates presented:

December 31,

2010 2009
(in thousands)

Contingent offering costs $ 2,941 $ 2,941
Management fee 1,228 1,169
Expenses 1,426 128

$ 5,595 $ 4,238

        Amounts due from affiliates at December 31, 2010 totaled $2.1 million and represent reimbursements of common expenses paid on their
behalf by the Company.

        The Company's short-term investment represents an investment in a liquidity management fund that is managed by a strategic investor in
the parent company of PCM and PLS.

        PCM's parent company, Private National Mortgage Acceptance Company, LLC held 75,000 of the Company's common shares of beneficial
interest at both December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Note 5�Earnings (Loss) Per Share

        Basic earnings per share is determined using net earnings divided by the weighted-average shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted-average shares outstanding,
assuming all potentially dilutive common shares were issued. In periods in which the Company records a loss, potentially dilutive shares are
excluded from the diluted loss per share calculation, as their effect on loss per share is anti-dilutive.
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        The following table summarizes the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share calculations for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Net earnings (loss):
Net income (loss) $ 24,483 $ (1,883)
Effect of dilutive securities�share-based compensation instruments � �

Net income (loss) attributable to diluted common shares outstanding $ 24,483 $ (1,883)

Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Average shares outstanding 16,775 16,735
Dilutive potential common shares�shares issuable under share based compensation plan 273 �

Diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 17,048 16,735

Net earnings (loss) per common share
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 1.46 $ (0.11)

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ 1.44 $ (0.11)

        During the period from August 4, 2009 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2009, 374,810 restricted share units were
outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because they were anti-dilutive.

Note 6�Fair Value

        The Company's financial statements include assets and liabilities that are measured based on their estimated fair values. The application of
fair value estimates may be on a recurring or nonrecurring basis depending on the accounting principles applicable to the specific asset or
liability and whether management has elected to carry the item at its estimated fair value as discussed in the following paragraphs.

Fair Value Accounting Elections

        Management identified all of its financial assets, including the short-term investment, MBS and mortgage loans, as well as its securities
sold under agreements to repurchase to be accounted for at estimated fair value so such changes in fair value will be reflected in results of
operations as they occur and more timely reflect the results of the Company's investment performance. For loans and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase subject to agreements made beginning in December, 2010, management has determined that historical cost accounting
is more appropriate because under this
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method debt issuance costs are amortized over the term of the debt and not expensed as incurred, thereby reflecting the debt issuance expense
over the periods benefiting from the usage of the debt.

        Following is a summary of financial statement items that are measured at estimated fair value on a recurring basis as of the dates presented:

December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)

Assets:
Mortgage-backed securities $ � $ � $ 119,872 $ 119,872
Mortgage loans � 3,966 364,250 368,216

$ � $ 3,966 $ 484,122 $ 488,088

Liabilities:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ � $ � $ 101,202 $ 101,202

$ � $ � $ 101,202 $ 101,202

December 31, 2009

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)

Short-term investment $ 213,628 $ � $ � $ 213,628
Mortgage-backed securities � � 83,771 83,771
Mortgage loans � � 26,046 26,046

$ 213,628 $ � $ 109,817 $ 323,445
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        The Company's mortgage loans, excluding its correspondent lending loans, MBS and securities sold under agreements to repurchase were
measured using Level 3 inputs. The following is a summary of changes in items measured using Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis for the
periods presented:

Year ended December 31, 2010
Mortgage-

backed
securities

Mortgage
loans Total

(in thousands)
Assets:
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 83,771 $ 26,046 $ 109,817
Purchases 91,141 417,211 508,352
Repayments (58,560) (55,198) (113,758)
Transfers of mortgage loans to real estate
acquired in settlement of loans � (45,951) (45,951)
Sales � (5,228) (5,228)
Accrual of unearned discounts 3,287 � 3,287
Addition of unpaid interest to mortgage loan
balances in loan modifications � 155 155
Changes in fair value included in results of
operations arising from:

Changes in instrument-specific credit risk � 5,714 5,714
Other factors 233 21,501 21,734

233 27,215 27,448

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 119,872 $ 364,250 $ 484,122

Changes in fair value recognized during the
period relating to assets still held at December 31,
2010 $ 233 $ 13,316 $ 13,549

Securities sold
under

agreements
to repurchase

Liabilities:
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ �
Changes in fair value included in results of operations �
Sales of securities under agreements to repurchase 513,141
Repurchases (411,939)

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 101,202

Changes in fair value recognized during the period relating to liabilities still outstanding at December 31, 2010 $ �
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Note 6�Fair Value (Continued)

Period from August 4, 2009
(commencement of operations)

to December 31, 2009
Mortgage-

backed
securities

Mortgage
loans Total

(in thousands)
Balance, August 4, 2009 (commencement of
operations) $ � $ � $ �

Purchases 93,049 26,046 119,095
Repayments (10,569) � (10,569)
Accrual of unearned discounts 1,139 � 1,139
Changes in fair value included in results of
operations arising from:

Changes in instrument-specific credit risk � � �
Other factors 152 � 152

Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 83,771 $ 26,046 $ 109,817

Changes in fair value recognized during the period
relating to assets still held at December 31, 2009 $ 152 $ � $ 152

        Following are the fair values and related principal amounts due upon maturity of mortgage loans accounted for under the fair value option
as of the dates presented:

December 31, 2010

Fair value
Principal amount

due upon maturity Difference
(in thousands)

Current through 89 days delinquent $ 86,242 $ 135,610 $ (49,368)
90 or more days delinquent(1) 278,008 521,326 (243,318)

$ 364,250 $ 656,936 $ (292,686)

December 31, 2009

Fair value
Principal amount

due upon maturity Difference
(in thousands)

Current through 89 days delinquent $ 26,046 $ 40,071 $ (14,025)
90 or more days delinquent(1) � � �

$ 26,046 $ 40,071 $ (14,025)
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Note 6�Fair Value (Continued)

        Following are the changes in fair value included in current period results of operations by consolidated statement of operations line item:

Changes in fair value included in current period
results of operations

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from August 4, 2009
(commencement of operations)

to December 31, 2009
Interest
income

Gains on
investments Total

Interest
income

Gains on
investments Total

(in thousands)
Assets:

Short-term investment $ � $ � $ � $ � $ � $ �
Mortgage-backed securities 3,287 233 3,520 1,140 152 1,292
Mortgage loans � 27,215 27,215 � � �

$ 3,287 $ 27,448 $ 30,735 $ 1,140 $ 152 $ 1,292

Liabilities:
Loans and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase � � � � � �

� � � � � �

$ 3,287 $ 27,448 $ 30,735 $ 1,140 $ 152 $ 1,292

        The Company measures its investment in real estate acquired in settlement of loans at management's estimates of the respective properties'
fair values less cost to sell on a nonrecurring basis. The value of the real estate acquired in settlement of loans is initially established as the lesser
of either the fair value of the loan at the date of transfer or the purchase price of the property, or the fair value of the real estate less estimated
costs to sell as of the date of transfer. Any ensuing change in fair value to a level that is less than or equal to the value at which the property was
initially recorded is recognized in results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans. At December 31, 2010, the Company carried
$29.7 million of real estate acquired in settlement of loans on its consolidated balance sheet. There was no real estate acquired in settlement of
loans at December 31, 2009.

        During the year ended December 31, 2010, mortgage loans with fair values of $46.0 million were transferred to real estate acquired in
settlement of loans. Real estate acquired in settlement of loans with fair values of $9.6 million were remeasured at fair value less estimated costs
to sell, and losses totaling $806,000 were recognized in results of real estate acquired in settlement of loans for the year ended December 31,
2010.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Carried at Amortized Cost

        In December 2010, the Company acquired new debt facilities to finance its investment in nonperforming loans in the form of repurchase
agreements. As discussed above, management designated these agreements to be accounted for at amortized cost. Management has concluded
that the estimated fair value of loans sold under agreements to repurchase approximates the agreements' carrying value due to the agreements'
short terms and variable interest rates.
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Note 7�Short-Term Investment

        Short-term investment represents an investment in a liquidity management fund managed by a strategic investor in the parent company of
PCM and PLS and are not insured. The fund invests exclusively in first-tier securities as rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. The fund's investments are comprised primarily of domestic commercial paper, securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
Government or its agencies, obligations of foreign banks with operations in the United States, fully collateralized repurchase agreements and
variable and floating rate demand notes.

Note 8�Mortgage-Backed Securities at Fair Value

        Investments in MBS were as follows for the dates presented:

December 31, 2010

Credit rating

Total AAA AA A BBB
Non-investment

grade Not rated Yield
(in thousands)

Security collateral
type:

Non-Agency
subprime $ 93,783 $ 382 $ 5,627 $ 2,134 $ 2,532 $ 79,138 $ 3,970 4.46%
Non-Agency Alt-A 15,824 649 6,750 � 14 8,411 � 9.19%
Non-Agency prime
jumbo 10,265 � 10,265 � � � � 3.51%

$ 119,872 $ 1,031 $ 22,642 $ 2,134 $ 2,546 $ 87,549 $ 3,970 5.00%

December 31, 2009

Credit rating

Total AAA AA A BBB
Non-investment

grade Not rated Yield
(in thousands)

Security collateral
type:

Non-Agency
subprime $ 39,522 $ 1,910 $ 8,085 $ 8,704 $ 3,151 $ 12,620 $ 5,052 9.08%
Non-Agency Alt-A 27,060 9,022 � � 1,071 16,967 � 9.08%
Non-Agency prime
jumbo 17,189 � 14,737 � � 2,452 � 4.34%

$ 83,771 $ 10,932 $ 22,822 $ 8,704 $ 4,222 $ 32,039 $ 5,052 8.11%

All of the Company's MBS had remaining contractual maturities of more than ten years at December 31, 2010 and 2009. At December 31, 2010,
the Company had pledged all of its MBS to secure agreements to repurchase. No securities were pledged at December 31, 2009.
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Note 9�Mortgage Loans at Fair Value

        The Company's mortgage loans at fair value include recently-funded loans purchased from other financial institutions which management
intends to resell, as well as other mortgage loans. Loans acquired for sale are referred to as "correspondent lending loans." Following is a
summary of the distribution of the Company's mortgage loans at fair value as of the dates presented:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Loan Type
Fair
value

Unpaid
principal
balance

Fair
value

Unpaid
principal
balance

(dollars in thousands)
Correspondent lending loans:

Government insured or
guaranteed $ 3,212 $ 3,115 $ � $ �
Fixed-rate
Agency-eligible:

30 year 754 750 � �
15 year � � � �

3,966 3,865 � �

Other mortgage loans:
Nonperforming loans 278,008 521,326 � �
Performing loans:

Fixed 49,444 73,256 24,533 37,567
ARM/Hybrid 31,916 54,430 1,454 2,412
Interest rate step-up 4,813 7,831 � �
Balloon 69 93 59 93

364,250 656,936 26,046 40,072

$ 368,216 $ 660,801 $ 26,046 $ 40,072

        At December 31, 2010, approximately 94% of the non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio consisted of mortgage loans that
were originated between 2005 and 2007. Over 67% of the estimated fair value of the mortgage loans in this portfolio is comprised of loans with
loan-to value ratios in excess of 100% at December 31, 2010. The non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio consists of mortgage loans
originated throughout the United States with loans secured by California real estate comprising approximately 27% of the loan portfolio's
estimated fair value at December 31, 2010. The non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio contains loans from Florida, Illinois and
New York, that each represent more than 5% of the portfolio's estimated fair value at December 31, 2010.

        At December 31, 2009, approximately 98% of the non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio consisted of loans originated between
2006 and 2008. Approximately 65% of the estimated fair value of the non-correspondent lending mortgage loans were comprised of loans with
loan-to value ratios in excess of 100%. The non-correspondent lending mortgage loan portfolio consisted of mortgage loans originated
throughout the United States with no single state having a concentration of 10% or more of the loan portfolio's estimated fair value at
December 31, 2009. This mortgage loan portfolio contained loans from Illinois, California, Arizona, Texas, Maryland and Florida, that each
represented more than 5% of the portfolio's estimated fair value at December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2009
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Note 9�Mortgage Loans at Fair Value (Continued)

none of the loans in this portfolio were 90 days or more delinquent and there were no loans on non-accrual status.

        At December 31, 2010, mortgage loans at fair value totaling $329.6 million were pledged to secure sales of loans under agreements to
repurchase. No loans were pledged to secure borrowings as of December 31, 2009.

Note 10�Real Estate Acquired in Settlement of Loans

        Following is a summary of the activity in real estate acquired in settlement of loans for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

September 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ � $ �
Purchases 1,238 �
Transfers from mortgage loans at fair value 45,951 �
Changes in fair value, including net gains on sale 1,898 �
Sales proceeds (19,402) �

Balance at period end $ 29,685 $ �

Note 11�Loans Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

        Following is a summary of financial information relating to loans sold under agreements to repurchase as of and for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

September 30, 2009
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Period end:
Balance $ 147,422 $ �
Unused amount(1) $ 152,578 $ �

Weighted-average interest
rate at end of period 3.33% �
Weighted-average interest
rate during the period 3.35% �
Average balance of loans sold
under agreements to
repurchase $ 6,168 $ �
Maximum daily amount
outstanding $ 147,422 $ �
Total interest expense $ 206 $ �
Fair value of loans securing
agreements to repurchase at
period-end $ 329,631 $ �
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F-22

Edgar Filing: PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust - Form 10-K

125



Table of Contents

PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 11�Loans Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase (Continued)

the Company's ability to fund the agreements' margin requirements relating to the collateral sold.

        The repurchase agreements collateralized by loans have an average remaining term at December 31, 2010 of 10 months and 16 days. Loans
securing agreements to repurchase are serviced by PLS.

        The Company's loans sold under agreements to repurchase are summarized by counterparty below as of December 31, 2010:

Counterparty Amount at risk
Weighted-average

maturity
(in thousands)

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. $ 96,250 November 1, 2011
Citibank, N.A. $ 85,563 December 8, 2011
Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital LLC $ 189 November 1, 2011
Note 12�Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

        Financial data pertaining to securities sold under agreements to repurchase were as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

September 30, 2009
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Period-end balance $ 101,202 $ �
Weighted-average interest rate at end of period 1.34% �
Weighted-average interest rate during the period 1.39% �
Average balance of securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 44,590 $ �
Maximum daily amount outstanding $ 121,047 $ �
Total interest expense $ 620 $ �
Fair value of securities securing agreements to repurchase at period-end $ 119,872 $ �
        The repurchase agreements collateralized by securities have an average term of 23 days. All securities underlying repurchase agreements
are held by the buyer. All agreements collateralized by MBS are to repurchase the same or substantially identical securities.

        The Company's securities sold under agreements to repurchase are summarized by counterparty below as of December 31, 2010:

Counterparty Amount at risk
Weighted-average

maturity
(in thousands)

Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital LLC $ 11,412 February 2, 2011
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. $ 10,759 January 11, 2011
Bank of America Securities LLC $ 1,120 March 30, 2011
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Note 12�Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase (Continued)

        The Company is subject to margin calls during the period the agreements are outstanding and therefore may be required to repay a portion
of the borrowings before the respective agreements mature if the value of the MBS or mortgage loans securing those agreements decreases. The
Company had margin deposits totaling $4,758,000 on deposit with its securities repurchase agreement counterparties as of December 31, 2010.

Note 13�Commitments and Contingencies

        From time to time, the Company may be involved in various proceedings, claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business. As of December 31, 2010, the Company was not involved in any such proceedings, claims or legal actions that would have a material
adverse effect on the Company.

Note 14�Shareholders' Equity

        The Company was initially capitalized with a $1,000 cash contribution from an affiliate. On August 4, 2009, the Company completed
offerings of 16,735,317 of its shares as follows:

�
an IPO of 14,706,327 of its shares at $20 per share for gross proceeds of approximately $294.1 million;

�
private placement to certain of its executive officers, PCM's parent company, Private National Mortgage Acceptance
Company, LLC and certain of its investors, of 735,317 shares at $20 per share for gross proceeds of approximately
$14.7 million; and

�
direct offering to investors in the funds managed by PCM of 1,293,673 shares at $20 per share for gross proceeds of
approximately $25.9 million.

�
Offsetting these offerings were underwriting and offering costs totaling approximately $20.0 million.

        Certain of the underwriting costs incurred in the IPO were paid on PMT's behalf by PCM and a portion of the underwriting discount was
deferred by agreement with the underwriters of the offering. Reimbursement to PCM and payment to the underwriters of the deferred
underwriting discount are both contingent on PMT's performance during the 24 full calendar quarters after the date of the completion of its IPO,
August 4, 2009. If PMT meets the specified performance levels during the 24-quarter period, the Company will reimburse PCM approximately
$2.9 million of underwriting costs paid by PCM on the offering date and pay the underwriters approximately $5.9 million in deferred
underwriting discount. If this requirement is not satisfied by the end of such 24-quarter period, the Company's obligation to reimburse PCM and
make the conditional payment of the underwriting discount will terminate. Management has concluded that this contingency is probable of being
met during the 24-quarter period and has recognized a liability for reimbursement to PCM and payment of the contingent underwriting discount
as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

        On February 16, 2011, the Company issued and sold 9,500,000 common shares in an underwritten public offering at a price of $18 per
share, for net proceeds of approximately $163.8 million after the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses and the reimbursement
of certain expenses. On March 3, 2011, the Company issued and sold an additional 1,425,000 common shares pursuant to the
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Note 14�Shareholders' Equity (Continued)

exercise of an over-allotment option by the public offering's underwriters and received $24.6 million of proceeds after the underwriting discount.

Note 15�Share-Based Compensation Plans

        The Company has adopted an equity incentive plan which provides for the issuance of equity based awards, including share options,
restricted shares, restricted share units, unrestricted common share awards, LTIP units (a special class of partnership interests in the Operating
Partnership) and other awards based on PMT's shares that may be made by the Company directly to its officers and trustees, and the members,
officers, trustees, directors and employees of PCM, PLS, or their affiliates and to PCM, PLS and other entities that provide services to PMT and
the employees of such other entities. The equity incentive plan is administered by the Company's compensation committee, pursuant to authority
delegated by the board of trustees, which has the authority to make awards to the eligible participants referenced above, and to determine what
form the awards will take, and the terms and conditions of the awards.

        The Company's equity incentive plan allows for grants of equity-based awards up to an aggregate of 8% of PMT's issued and outstanding
shares on a diluted basis at the time of the award.

        The shares underlying award grants will again be available for award under the equity incentive plan if:

�
any shares subject to an award granted under the equity incentive plan are forfeited, cancelled, exchanged or surrendered;

�
an award terminates or expires without a distribution of shares to the participant; or

�
shares are surrendered or withheld by PMT as payment of either the exercise price of an award and/or withholding taxes for
an award.

        Restricted share units have been awarded to trustees and officers of the Company and to employees of PCM and PLS at no cost to the
grantees. Such awards generally vest over a one- to four-year period. Each share option awarded under the equity incentive plan will have a term
of no longer than ten years, and will have an exercise price that is no less than 100% of the fair value of the Company's shares on the date of
grant of the award. Expense relating to awards is recorded in compensation.

        The Company estimates the value of restricted share units awarded with reference to the value of its shares on the date of the award. The
Company's estimate of value included assumed grantee forfeiture rates of 14% per year for employees of PCM and its affiliates and no turnover
for PMT's officers and its board of trustees. Award values were reduced by the value of expected shareholder distributions that the grantees will
not receive during the vesting period, discounted at an appropriate risk-free rate of return. The amount of the reduction for anticipated
distributions was based on amounts included in management's earnings forecast.
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Note 15�Share-Based Compensation Plans (Continued)

        The table below summarizes restricted share unit activity and compensation expense for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
Number of shares:

Outstanding at beginning of
period 374,810 �

Granted 23,600 375,330
Vested (97,026) �
Canceled (28,400) (520)

Outstanding at end of period 272,984 374,810

Weighted Average Grant Date
Fair Value:

Outstanding at beginning of
period $ 7.58 $ �

Granted $ 7.33 $ 7.58
Vested $ 16.28 $ �
Expired or canceled $ 7.20 $ �

Outstanding at end of period $ 9.00 $ 7.58
Shares available for future
awards(1) 1,095,442 994,000

Compensation expense recorded
during the period $ 1,812,000 $ 963,000

(1)
Based on shares outstanding as of period end. Total shares available for future awards may be adjusted in accordance with the equity
incentive plan based on future issuances of PMT's shares. However, the total number of options available for issuance under the plan
cannot exceed 40 million.

        At December 31, 2010, unamortized compensation cost relating to restricted share units totaled $927,000, and is expected to be amortized
over a weighted average remaining period of 14 months.

Note 16�Income Taxes

        The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Therefore, PMT generally will not be subject to corporate federal or state income tax to the extent that qualifying distributions
are made to shareholders and the Company meets REIT requirements including certain asset, income, distribution and share ownership tests. The
Company believes that it has met the distribution requirements, as it has declared dividends sufficient to distribute substantially all of its taxable
income. Taxable income will generally differ from net income. The primary difference between net income and the REIT taxable income (before
deduction for qualifying distributions) is the income of the taxable REIT subsidiaries ("TRSs"). Other than the TRS income, the other
differences between REIT book income and REIT taxable income are not material.
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Note 16�Income Taxes (Continued)

        In general, cash dividends declared by the Company will be considered ordinary income to the shareholders for income tax purposes. Some
portion of the dividends may be characterized as capital gain distributions or a return of capital. All of the 2010 distributions will be
characterized as ordinary income. There were no distributions for 2009 as there was a tax loss in 2009.

        The Company has elected to treat two of its subsidiaries as TRSs. Income from the TRSs is only included as a component of REIT taxable
income to the extent that the TRS makes dividend distributions of income to the REIT. No such dividend distributions were made in 2009 or
2010. A TRS is subject to corporate federal and state income tax. Accordingly, a provision for income taxes for the TRSs is included in the
accompanying consolidated results of operations.

        At December 31, 2009, the Company's TRSs had tax net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $106,000, expiring in 2029. For the
year 2009, the Company ascribed a full valuation allowance to its net deferred tax assets due to the uncertainty in forecasting future TRS taxable
income. As the income for 2010 was projected to be sufficient to utilize the federal loss carryover and projected future years income was
projected to be sufficient to utilize the state loss carryover (current utilization of loss carryovers has been suspended by the state of California),
the valuation allowance was reversed in the first quarter of 2010.

        The Company files U.S. federal and state income tax returns for both the REIT and TRSs. These returns for 2009 and forward are subject to
examination by the respective tax authorities. No returns are currently under examination.

        The following table details the Company's income tax expense (benefit) which relates to the TRSs, for the periods presented:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(Commencement of
Operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Current expense (benefit):
Federal $ 1,998 $ (33)
State 694 (12)

Total current 2,692 (45)

Deferred expense (benefit):
Federal (77) �
State (27) �

Total deferred expense (104) �

Valuation allowance (45) 45

Total provision for
income taxes $ 2,543 $ �
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Note 16�Income Taxes (Continued)

        The following table is a reconciliation of the Company's income tax expense at statutory rates to the income tax expense at the Company's
effective rate:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(Commencement of
Operations) to

December 31, 2009

Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousands)

Federal income tax expense (benefit) at statutory tax rate $ 9,459 35.0% $ (659) 35.0%
Effect of non-taxable REIT income (7,272) (26.9)% 747 (39.7)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 434 1.6% (133) 7.0%
Other (33) (0.1)% � �
Valuation allowance (45) (0.2)% 45 (2.3)%

Provision for income taxes $ 2,543 9.4% $ � 0.0%

        The Company's components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(Commencement of
Operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Real estate valuation gain (loss) $ (104) �
Valuation allowance (45) 45

Total provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes $ (149) $ 45

        At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company has no unrecognized tax benefits and does not anticipate any increase in
unrecognized benefits. Should the accrual of any interest or penalties relative to unrecognized tax benefits be necessary, it is our policy to record
such accruals in our income tax accounts. No such accruals existed at December 31, 2010.
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Note 17�Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Year ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 4, 2009

(commencement of
operations) to

December 31, 2009
(in thousands)

Income taxes paid $ 3,248 $ �
Interest paid $ 484 $ �
Non-cash investing activities:

Transfer of mortgage loans to real estate
acquired in settlement of loans $ 45,951 $ �
Addition of unpaid interest to mortgage loan
balances in loan modifications $ 155 $ �

Non-cash financing activities:
Recognition of contingently payable offering
costs to:

Underwriters $ � $ 5,883
PNMAC Capital Management, LLC $ � $ 2,941

Declaration of cash distributions to common
shareholders $ 7,070 $ �

Note 18�Regulatory Net Worth Requirement

        On September 23, 2010, PennyMac Corp. received conditional approval as a seller-servicer for Fannie Mae. Fannie Mae's conditional
approval required PennyMac Corp. to deposit, for a period of 12 months, $5.0 million in a pledged cash account to secure its performance under
its master agreement with Fannie Mae. PennyMac Corp. established the pledged cash account.

        To retain its status as an approved seller-servicer, PennyMac Corp. is required to meet Fannie Mae's capital standards, which require
PennyMac Corp. to maintain a minimum net worth of $2.5 million. Management believes PennyMac Corp. complies with Fannie Mae's net
worth requirement as of December 31, 2010.
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Note 19�Selected Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

        Following is a presentation of selected quarterly financial data for each full quarterly period during the period from August 4, 2009
(commencement of operations) to December 31, 2010:

2010 2009

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the quarter ended:
Net investment income $ 13,629 $ 12,656 $ 13,915 $ 3,854 $ 1,485
Net income (loss) $ 7,349 $ 7,729 $ 8,151 $ 1,254 $ (1,153)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.44 $ 0.46 $ 0.49 $ 0.07 $ (0.07)
Diluted $ 0.43 $ 0.45 $ 0.48 $ 0.07 $ (0.07)

Cash distributions declared per share $ 0.84 $ 0.35 $ � $ � $ �
At period end:

Short-term investment $ � $ � $ 18,197 $ 115,485 $ 213,628
Mortgage-backed securities at fair
value 119,872 137,049 103,164 76,389 83,771
Mortgage loans at fair value 368,216 244,912 197,505 123,464 26,046
Real estate acquired in settlement of
loans 29,685 26,112 13,241 1,511 �
Other assets 71,322 45,898 38,371 9,839 1,001

Total assets $ 589,095 $ 453,971 $ 370,478 $ 326,688 $ 324,446

Loans sold under agreements to
repurchase $ 147,422 $ � $ � $ � $ �
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase at fair value 101,202 116,139 31,362 � �
Other liabilities 20,558 11,352 14,842 11,208 10,648

Total liabilities 269,182 127,491 46,204 11,208 10,648

Shareholders' equity 319,913 326,480 324,274 315,480 313,798

Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $ 589,095 $ 453,971 $ 370,478 $ 326,688 $ 324,446

Note 20�Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

        On February 24, 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09, which amends the Subsequent Events topic of the ASC, to address certain
implementation issues related to an entity's requirement to perform and disclose subsequent events procedures. ASU 2010-09 requires SEC filers
such as the Company to evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued. The ASU was effective immediately
upon issuance. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

        In January 2010, the FASB issued an Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"), ASU 2010-06 to the Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosure topic of the Accounting Standards Codification. The ASU requires additional disclosures about the transfers of classifications among
the fair value classification
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Note 20�Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

levels and the reasons for those changes and separate presentation of purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the presentation of the roll
forward of Level 3 assets and liabilities. The ASU also clarifies disclosure requirements relating to the level of disaggregation of disclosures
relating to classes of assets and liabilities and disclosures about inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value for both recurring and
nonrecurring fair value estimates for Level 2 or Level 3 assets and liabilities.

        The requirements of the ASU are effective for interim and annual disclosures for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2009, except for disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value
estimates. Those disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. The
adoption of this ASU did not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Note 21�Subsequent Events

        Management has evaluated all events or transactions through the date the Company issued these financial statements. During this period:

�
On January 28, 2011, The Company paid dividends totaling $7.1 million. Such dividends were included in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2010.

�
On February 16, 2011, the Company issued and sold 9,500,000 common shares in an underwritten public offering at a price
of $18 per share, for net proceeds of approximately $163.8 million after the underwriting discount and estimated offering
expenses and reimbursement of certain expenses.

�
On February 25, 2011, the Company amended one of its master repurchase agreements to finance nonperforming loans,
increasing the aggregate principal amount committed for borrowing thereunder from $125.0 million to $250.0 million.

�
On March 3, 2011, the Company issued and sold an additional 1,425,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of an
over-allotment option by the public offering's underwriters and received $24.6 million of proceeds after the underwriting
discount.

�
The Company has completed the purchase of $244.6 million of mortgage loans.

�
PCM committed to purchase mortgage loans with purchase prices totaling approximately $52.8 million. The pending
transactions are subject to continuing due diligence and customary closing conditions, and there can be no assurance that the
committed amounts will ultimately be acquired or that the transactions will be completed at all.
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SIGNATURES

        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PENNYMAC MORTGAGE INVESTMENT TRUST

By: /s/ STANFORD L. KURLAND

Stanford L. Kurland,
Chairman of the Board of Trustees and

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: March 7, 2011

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ STANFORD L. KURLAND

Stanford L. Kurland

Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive Officer) March 7, 2011

/s/ ANNE D. MCCALLION

Anne D. McCallion

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal
Financial Officer) March 7, 2011

/s/ GREGORY L. HENDRY

Gregory L. Hendry

Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer) March 7, 2011

/s/ MATTHEW BOTEIN

Matthew Botein
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ SCOTT W. CARNAHAN

Scott W. Carnahan
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ RANDALL D. HADLEY

Randall D. Hadley
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ CLAY A. HALVORSEN

Clay A. Halvorsen
Trustee March 7, 2011
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/s/ JOEL S. MARCUS

Joel S. Marcus
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ DAVID A. SPECTOR

David A. Spector
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ STACEY D. STEWART

Stacey D. Stewart
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ MARK WIEDMAN

Mark Wiedman
Trustee March 7, 2011

/s/ FRANK P. WILLEY

Frank P. Willey
Trustee March 7, 2011
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 FORM 10-K
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 INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Declaration of Trust of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

3.2 Bylaws of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

4.1 Specimen Common Share Certificate of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, Stanford L. Kurland, David A. Spector, BlackRock
Holdco II, Inc., Highfields Capital Investments LLC and Private National Mortgage Acceptance Company, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.2 Underwriting Fee Reimbursement Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P.
and PNMAC Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.3 Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.4 Management Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PNMAC
Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2009).

10.5 Amendment No. 1 to Management Agreement among PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust, PennyMac Operating
Partnership, L.P. and PNMAC Capital Management, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010).

10.6 Loan (Flow) Servicing Agreement between PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PennyMac Loan Services, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).

10.7 Amendment No. 1 to Loan (Flow) Servicing Agreement between PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and PennyMac Loan
Services, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2010).

10.8 PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2009).
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10.9 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement under the PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust 2009 Equity Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Amendment No. 3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-11, filed with
the SEC on July 24, 2009).

10.10 Master Repurchase Agreement among PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust Holdings I, LLC, and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010).

10.11 Guaranty Agreement by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).

10.12 Master Repurchase Agreement among Credit Suisse First Boston Mortgage Capital, LLC, PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage
Investment Trust and PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010).

10.13 Guaranty by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust and PennyMac Operating Partnership, L.P. and Credit Suisse First Boston
Mortgage Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010).

10.14 Master Repurchase Agreement among PennyMac Corp., PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust Holdings I, LLC, and PennyMac
Loan Services, LLC, and Citibank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 15, 2010).

10.15 Guaranty Agreement by PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust in favor of Citibank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2
of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2010).

21.1 Subsidiaries of PennyMac Mortgage Investment Trust.

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1 Certification of Stanford L. Kurland pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

31.2 Certification of Anne D. McCallion pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

32.1 Certification of Stanford L. Kurland pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification of Anne D. McCallion pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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